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My name is William H. Tanner. I am the President and, with my wife, the owner of Anchor
Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. My business address is 10049 Kitsap Mall Blvd, Suite # 303 in
Silverdale, Washington.

We began operations in August of 2000 with only one product - a Restaurant, Bar & Tavern
Program. In Washington, we wrote this program with Interstate Fire & Casualty - a non­
admitted carrier. In Oregon and Alaska, we used a sister company that was admitted:
Interstate Indemnity Company. We had underwriting authority for this program. The carrier
trusted us to underwrite and price risks on their behalf and to issue and service those
policies. We designed the underwriting and pricing criteria and essentially, they trusted that
we could write that class of business for them more profitably than they could write it for
themselves. This was an exclusive program; nobody else had access to it.

Believing that we would likely not survive long-term with only one product, we expanded into
other product lines as quickly as we could. First, we added binding authority markets - these
are markets that also give us underwriting and pricing authority but in this case, the carrier
develops the underwriting and pricing criteria. Having done so, they then hand out shared
territorial appointments to General Agents around the country, based upon their reputation for
integrity and trustworthiness and upon their potential to write a significant volume of profitable
business. The trust that was shown in Anchor Bay was always well placed; we have made
an underwriting profit for every single one of our carriers and have received roughly $1.8
million in profit sharing checks over the years as a reward for having done our job well.

We also brokered business. This was business for which we had no binding or pricing
authority. We submit the business to markets that retail producers can generally not get to
themselves. The carrier then underwrites and quotes the account to us. We in turn quote the
account to the retail producer, splitting the commission and adding a broker fee.
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These are the three principal legs upon which we built our business - program, binding
authority and brokerage. In the first six years, we grew very quickly - from a start up with no
production at all to almost $21 million in annualized premium production. This growth was a

/ result of three principal factors. First we had good markets; good products to sell. Second,
the market had hardened - which is an advantageous part of the business cycle for non­
admitted carriers and surplus line brokers to be in. And third, we were very good at what we
did. People trusted us - as well they should. We've earned it.

That's a point that I'd like to emphasize. Your Honor, Mr. Brown has seemed to delight in
calling me a thief - indeed in his Supplemental Memorandum, he alleges that I am guilty of a
Class B felony. That's showmanship, of course, meaningless hyperbole. Apparently he
thinks there's a jury in the room. Still, it demands a response.

I have made my living printing insurance policies. I have printed thousands of them. If I were
a thief, I could have stolen my insurance companies blind. Short of a formal investigation,
they have no way of checking if, for example, I issue policies at a higher premium level than
that shown on their copy of the policy - and pocketed the difference. What's more, they
know that I. can steal from them and they are unconcerned because I have demonstrated that
I am beyond trustworthy. Without meaning any disrespect toward Mr. Brown whatsoever, I
will match my ethics and my integrity with his any day of the week. I will match the level of
trust that people are willing to place in me as well. And I will not come up wanting.

Over time our business mix has changed. We lost our program market in 2004. Interstate is
owned by Fireman's Fund and both carriers have program departments. They decided to
reorganize. Interstate, as a surplus line market, got all the really "tough" classes of business.
Fireman's Fund, which wrote more "main street business" got the lighter hazard business ­
and that included our program. As Fireman's Fund already wrote restaurants, and didn't
much care for bars and taverns, we lost our contract within days of the reorganization.

We replaced Interstate with another program market that was not nearly as good - at least
not initially. We didn't have a track record with their program department and they didn't
really know us so our underwriting and pricing authority was severely limited and not very
competitive. As they have grown more comfortable with us, and with our very profitable
projected ultimate loss ratio, they have made more and more concessions to the program
and it is now every bit as strong a program as the Interstate program was.

At the same time that we lost the Interstate program, we began to write an increasingly heavy
percentage of residential contractors - principally with one carrier that was far more liberal
than their competitors as respects their underwriting appetite and pricing.

In 2004, perhaps 70% of our total book consisted of program business and 30% was binding
and brokerage business. By the end of 2006, our program book had fallen to approximately
10% of our writings and binding and brokerage had risen to perhaps 90%. Of that 90%,
approximately 90% was contractors, mostly residential contractors.
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Unfortunately, however, our top contractors market decided to pullout of the binding authority
segment of the business nationally at the end of 2006. At the time that they made that
decision, we were their largest General Agent and had more than $9 million in premiums with
them.

Regrettably, while we could move a small amount of their business to other binding authority
carriers, we had nobody to replace them with for well over half of their book. On top of that,
new competitive admitted markets were entering the marketplace and were feeding on the
lighter hazard business, the housing bubble was about to burst and contractors were shutting
down in droves. We began to lose this business at an alarming rate.

I made a decision in early-to-mid 2009 to sell off the contractor-driven portion of the business.
I was faced with a choice of taking heavy layoffs but continuing to operate all product lines or
reducing our product offerings by selling off the contractor-driven book and returning to our
core product. I opted for the latter. I felt that residential contractors would be under
continued pressure for quite some time and, rather than watch this segment of our business
continue to erode, and get nothing for it, I chose to sell it to someone with more competitive
markets.

Restaurants, bars and taverns on the other hand offered us a more stable marketplace - one
in which we were among the top players, instead of an also ran. In my view, concentrating
there offered us the best opportunity to retrench and to grow our business profitably.

With the sale of most of our book, we reduced staff accordingly and, by March of 2010, when
I took over as the sole underwriter/broker, our book of business was very small. In the last 10
months, we've almost doubled it in size.

I believe that we are positioned well for the future. Assuming that this Order is set aside, I
believe that we will triple our production in 2011 and will generate an operating profit.

MISTAKES IN TRUST ACCOUNT CALCULATION

In my opening statement on December 16th, 2010, I listed the things that I hoped to
demonstrate in this hearing. The first of those items was that the OIC examiners so botched
up the trust calculation that that it failed to provide a sufficient evidentiary base to support the
Order.

On page four of his Supplemental Memorandum, Mr. Brown, in paraphrasing Ms. Tunis,
writes that "...determining whether a premium trust account is in balance is straight forward.
The account must have sufficient assets to pay the trust obligations. If it does, the account is
'in trust'. If it does not, the account is 'out of trust'." In a very general sense, that's entirely
true. But like all generalizations, the devil is in the details - specifically in this case, the
details as to what constitutes trust assets and what constitutes trust obligations.

I would remind Your Honor of Sally Cabbell's testimony that Hull & Company, when doing
their due diligence for the purchase of much of our book of business, calculated our trust
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adequacy and they determined that we were in trust. The formula that they used also did not
include premium taxes as a trust obligation.

This was a critical issue at the time of purchase for, if we had not been in trust, the purchasL
wouldn't have gone through or the net proceeds would have been adjusted downward by th
amount needed to bring us into trust.

Hull & Company is not some slouch organization that plays fast and loose with the rules as
the OIC has implied we are. They have thirty locations in 18 states and are a division of
Brown & Brown - the seventh largest insurance intermediary in the world.

With apologies to the OIC's Mr. Brown, the real world calculation of trust adequacy is not
nearly so clear cut as he would like us to believe. If it were, we wouldn't be here. If it were,
the OIC would be using one formula - not at least five different ones.

Regardless of who is correct as to the law, there are real issues here and they cannot be
sidestepped with attempts to oversimplify the matter or dismiss our arguments as "red
herrings" that are "...designed to obfuscate and create confusion out of clarity".

Your Honor, I draw your attention to Exhibit 22. This is Ms. Cabbell's calculation of trust
• LI_~_~__~~~~~~_~_~_~_~__

adequacy going back to when we opened our doors, In 2000. It is based upon the formula
given to us by the OIC and shows us to have been substantially in trust virtually since we
opened our doors.

I also draw your attention to Exhibit 17. which is the spreadsheet prepared bv OIC examiner
Marianne Azevedo. This spreadsheet shows us to have been as much as $1 million out of
trust since January of 2007. This spreadsheet is the sole support for the OIC's alleaation that

we were out of trust. I ~
There is quite a difference, in both dollars and conclusions, between the two spreadsheets
and it tends to underscore the importance ofthe formula that is used in the calculation of trust
adequacy. Despite the wildly divergent calculations and conclusions, however, there are
really only three material differences between the Azevedo and Cabbell spreadsheets. All
three are differences over "...what constitutes trust assets and what constitutes trust
obligations".

~ The first is that the OIC failed to include monies that were in our investment account
as a trust asset. You will note from Exhibit 22 that, beginning in January of 2004, we
began showing monies in the McDonald's Investment account. These monies
reached a peak of $2.4 million in May of 2004 and gradually decreased until reaching
zero in August of 2008. All told, the examiners omitted $10,589,152 in assets from the
trust calculations.

~ The second difference in the spreadsheets is that OIC insists that premium taxes are
trust obligations while we are equally insistent that they are not. This resulted in a
difference in the two calculations, over the 45 month audit period, of $7,833,588.
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~ The third and final material difference in our spreadsheets is that the OIC has removed
commission on accounts receivable as a trust asset, unjustifiably, in our opinion. This
resulted in a difference in the two calculations, over 45 months, of $4,499,962.

I would like to address each of these differences individually.

The first is that the ole failed to include monies that were in our investment account.

Before I address that question, however, I must address the term of the audit. The OIC
performed an audit covering a period of 45 months - from January, 2007 through September,
2010. However, at the first hearing - and for the first time - we were told that the audit
actually only covered a 21 month period, from January 2009 through October, 2010. The two
years prior were, supposedly, for "illustration purposes only". No rationale was given for
cutting the audit period in less than half and no explanation was given for the need for, or
purpose of, an "illustration" period.

The OIC argues that the audit period only covered 2009 and part of 2010 and, since the
investment account was closed prior to the commencement of that period, their handling of
the investment account is not at issue. We contend that the audit period covers the full 45
months that was audited. however. for the following reasons:

First, the Order itself clearly reflects that it is based upon an audit period that began in
January 2007 - not January 2009 as OIC is claiming. At the top of page 2, the Order begins,
"The OIC's audit reflects that between January 2007 and ... " And later in the same
paragraph, "According to Anchor Bay's financial officer, since January 2007, the Company
had borrowed premium tax money... " Further, the auditor's preliminary report to decision
makers specifically refers to the years 2007 and 2008, fourteen different times.

Second, the letter that we received in October advising us of the impending audit stated that
the period audited would be 2009 and 2010 but also stated that the audit could be expanded
further back if necessary. Once on site, the auditor's first request for information was indeed
limited to 2009 and 2010. However, the audit was clearly extended as examiners made
subsequent requests for data from 2008 and 2007. Indeed, the very fact that Ms. Azevedo
was able to complete the trust spreadsheet from January 2007 forward indicates that the
audit period had been extended.

Third, at no time were the 2007-2008 figures discussed with us in a manner which indicated
that OIC was treating them any differently than the numbers generated for 2009 to 2010'1
Indeed, the first we knew that the OIC was trying to shorten the audit period was when the
made the claim in the first hearing, on December 16th

, 2010.

Fourth, if you will examine _Exhibit 17, you will see that the trust calculations for all 45 months
were shown together, on a single spreadsheet, not separated in any way, and not labeled as
"real" vs. "illustrative" (or whatever).
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Fifth, Ms. Tunis testified under cross examination that she included the entire 45 month
spreadsheet as an Exhibit in her preliminary report to decision makers. Further, she admitted
that decision makers may have relied upon that flawed 45 month spreadsheet, at least in
part, in deciding to issue the Order and/or in deciding what penalty to impose. And even if
they didn't, they certainly relied upon her report, and her report was clearly based upon that

lflawed spreadsheet. --
"---

Sixth, the "illustration period" and shortened audit term that OIC is claiming serves absolutelyL
no purpose other than to allow Ms. Tunis to escape responsibility for her botched audit. The
entire spreadsheet, if calculated correctly, would have provided the most accurate
"illustration". Indeed, the creation of a separate "illustration" period, in fact, obfuscates more
than it illustrates - in our view, as it was designed to do. 1 _

Seventh, Ms. Tunis stated in her testimony that she purposefully did not included our I

investment account as a trust asset because it was not properly labeled as a trust account in _
our automation system. She went so far as to find legislative code that she claimed 1

supported her decision. Needless to say, however, she had no reason to make thatl
determination if the audit period was limited to 2009 and 2010. I

--,---------

Eighth, the OIC is not in the business of ignoring two-year out-of-trust positions averaging
$550,000 a month. Indeed, as calculated by Ms. Azevedo, our trust position was much
worse in 2007 and 2008 than it was in 2009 and 2010 and, if Ms. Azevedo's calculations
were correct, we had not only removed premium taxes from the tax account in 2007 and]
2008 but had raided those accounts of more than $600,000 in premiums and return

----

premiums as well. This was a far more serious charge than "borrowing" premium taxes and itl
would never have been overlooked by OIC. 1 _

Clearly what happened here is that, while Ms. Tunis initially intended to perform a 21 month I '

audit, she expanded the audit term on site and conducted a full 45 month audit. Her report~
and the Order were both clearly based upon the 45 month audit term. And now, in an L
attempt to deflect criticism of that 45 month audit, she has chosen to mislabel the first two
years of that audit as "illustrative" and the OIC is attempting to limit usable testimony to
matters related to the 21 month term.

Your Honor, we argue that the audit covered a full 45 month term and we further argue that,
even if you rule that the audit only consisted of the years 2009 and 2010, it doesn't really
matter. The OIC can't un-ring the bell here. When Ms. Tunis gave decision makers the 45~1

month spreadsheet, and a report that was based upon it, she put the accuracy of that entir
spreadsheet and report in play. To allow her to provide grossly inaccurate information to
decision makers, and to then allow her to mislabel the 2007 and 2008 years as "illustrative"
and, by so doing, to escape responsibility for her botched audit, would clearly be wrong 1

headed.. --

Ms. Tunis claimed at one point to have excluded the investment account assets from the trust'
calculations because they were "improperly labeled" in our agency automation system.

6

Corporate Offices: 10049 Kitsap Mall Blvd, Suite # 303, Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: 360.613.5455 Fax: 360.613-9583 Website: http://SurplusLines.com



Specifically, she stated that the automation system did not identify the investment account as
being a trust account - as if we raided the trust account of over $600,000 in premiums and
then hid those funds in plain sight, in a non-trust account, that we told her about.

I~----;--;-------;-----:----
We missed the code citation that she testified she used as justification for that-ae.c.i.slQn but,
when we made three subsequent inquiries as to that citation, all we received was Mr.
Brown's speculation that she may have relied upon WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a). That code I

section reads, in pertinent part: ~

"(2) All funds representing premiums and return premiums received on
Washington business by a producer in his or her fiduciary capacity on or
after January 1, 1987, shall be deposited in one or more identifiable
separate accounts which may be interest bearing." (Emphasis added)

Assuming that Mr. Brown's speculation is correct, the interpretation of the code that Ms.
Tunis has applied is laughable. The word "identifiable" does not mean "labeled in the
automation system". It means "capable of being identified" and implies that if there is a lack
of clarity, some level of effort (beyond looking at a label in an automation system) may have
to be extended in order to make that identification. If our word alone was not sufficient, then
she might have asked for some proof, for example, which Gould easily have been provided.

But she didn't - she just manipulated the audit term in an effort to make her little problem go
away. Indeed, the very fact that she sought to qualify or disqualify the investment account,1
combined with her efforts to manipulate the audit term, is evidence of her knowledge that
investment account should have been included as a trust item. Further, it is also evidence of
her knowledge that the spreadsheet, and the report that was based upon it, were massively
flawed.' L

~---

For clarity, Ms. Cabbell has testified that she told Ms. Tunis about the investment accountL
lDclu.ding_tb.atJt Y'Las a trust as~et, during the _audit -whilethe ~~§mlD.?Iswere still in our _
_offi.c_e.s. Further, Ms. Cabbell has testified that the day the audit ended, October 22nd

, 2010,
'after the examiners had left our offices, she sent an email to Ms. Tunis advising her that she
had 0 mitted the inves!~_~I1~~"9ES:.9,~n!,..f[Smi~!h§JI~tSJ~C.gtc.J.)1~J[Q!i§~~Q~Jem i~~di ngher as weTfTfl at
sne~-KI1~~Ca56en~ftad told Ms. Tunis while in our office that it was a tnjsrasseT~'SEre-Exnil5rf

..ZL

Ms. Tunis responded to Ms. Cabbell's email on the next business day, October 25th, 2010,
and she did not dis~utethatthe.conversation. had taken place. So Ms. Tunis clearly had an
~RP.QaIillify]o=-Go-rrecL'6.ei]rg§I,,\rt§'cR~6§~tj~-~~!.I§_.~dr~ill:g-=-ilij~i~PD-aTo~a_ekL~i:OJ.n:f:ra:lr~t$:015o-fll
which the Order was based.

~~c~~;t~:n~~~i~e~~~t;~;;~~~iilii~~d:f~;i~~~L~~~.;~~~t~.?:~~~~tin~
knowingly delivered a grosply inaccurate report and spreadsheet to decision makers. As I

---
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such, we consider her omission of the investment account to be an error, albeit an intentional
error, that contributes to our assertion that the audit was botched and fails to provide support
for the Order.

The second difference in the spreadsheets is that ole insists that premium taxes are
trust obligations while we are equally insistent that they are not.

In our first Preliminary Hearing, I asked Mr. Brown what legal source OIC was relying on to I

support the claim that premium taxes must be retained in the trust account. His response I
was to state that the OIC was relying on the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080(5~
(a). As that language only speaks to depositing of the premium taxes, and not to the ~- "-
retention of them, I asked if there was other language that referred to the retention of such I

taxes. His response was that there was not.

On December 10th
, however, Mr. Brown submitted a-legal brief in which he introduced aM

~ntirely new theory tha! he considers to be supportive of the OIC position. In it, he intrq~uced
the claim that RCW48.18.170 defined the word "Premium" to include premium taxes u~der
the theory that prC?mium taxes are part of the "conside.Lati.Q.O". As a result of including I

premium taxes in the definition of "Premium", .~lli2S th_C1~premium taxes are due tn----'e\C-------'[
same protections due premiums - specifically designation and treatment as a fiduciary item ---
ahd trust o6Tigati~---------~'-'--~~'._.~..-.~----~~.-.-"-~.~-~-~.. ~.. _------ . . I

This is a very important theory for Mr. Brown. While he hasn't abandoned a reliance upo-n---'-~---­
WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) altogether, he has clearly switched workhorses. Mr.~B.r:o_Wr:LC.ao.J.ir.1{jj

jgngua.ge-m8ki.o.g_premiums and return Qremild..,'1l.s fiqucia~y'j!§'!Jl$_aod-tr.w·st-Qbl.igatieH&: But I

he can find no legislative or court citations affording the same protection to premium taxes,~
he is attemptLng to booJstcap_pLamlumJal<8s onto ~he defi,ni!iQ.Q,.,Q,[I'!2X?JIlLum:. If he is
successful, thenJ:![l1 ik~ ~ reJL§D.c:;g..QnlJJ~2EL~~£3.~4-12~q80@)jallQ<l§JLt9~~.s~ wpJdlQ
neces_sa~rilX'J?El.afforded all the speci§lpr()tEl~ions that,the RC",'L_ha_s_reserved for pre_m_i_ums.

I will begin with a response to the theory that WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) requires that premium
taxes be afforded fiduciary and trust account status ... 1

-------------~=-

First, WAC 284-12-080 is clearly grounded in RCW 48.17.600. Unless you rule in support of
Mr. Brown's assertion that premium taxes are included in the definition of "Premium", there is
nothing in RCW 48.17.600, or in any other code section that we have been able to find, that
allows for the insertion of the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a). As such, to
allow the OIC to rely on the parenthetical language in that provision as support for their
contention that premium taxes are a fiduciary item and trust obligation would be to ignore the
lack of legislative grounding for that language in the first place.

Second, if I am wrong about that, and if Mr. Brown is able to identify specific legislative
grounding for the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a), then I would argue that
such language applies locally only - not globally, as OIC is claiming.
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The second sentence of WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) reads as follows: "Such funds shall be
paid promptly to the insurer or to another producer entitled thereto, in accordance with the
terms of any applicable agreement between the parties." (Emphasis added) Clearly then, to
the extent that WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) is legally grounded, it only applies to those premiums
and premium taxes that are paid to the parties identified in the second sentence of that
paragraph - insurers and other insurance producers.

As the OIC is neither an "insurer" nor "another producer entitled thereto", WAC 284-12-080

L (5) (a) would still not p,~ovide t~e support that OI,C c1,aims it does for their cootHotion that
B.!'emlum faxes are a floucrarTltem-and-trcrst-ohlrg-atibli-:l"----- _

I

Additionally, if the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) was meant to be
applied globally, then why wasn't it included in WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a)? This section would
appear to have been intended to apply globally. Not putting the parenthetical language in
WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a), but putting it in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) instead, further strengthens
the argument that this language in was intended to apply locally, not globally.

Third, I would point out that the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) would
apply only to premiums - not to return premiums. The corollary to WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a)
as respects return premiums is WAC 284-12-080 (5) (b) and that paragraph does not apply
the same premium tax requirement to return premiums that are applied in the prior paragraph
to premiums. Not only iscthat illogical, if the language was intended to be applied glOballY,]
but neither our audit, nor any of the other 20 audits that we were provided with, drew any
distinctions at all in the treatment of premium taxes on premiums and return premiums.
Premium taxes on both premiums and return premiums were treated as trust obligations.

Fourth, even if you conclude that the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a)
applies to premium taxes, that language does not modify the language in WAC 284-12-080
(2) (a). It conflicts with it. I am not a lawyer but I cannot imagine that when laws conflict with
each other, the public is necessarily held to the tighter standard.

Fifth, even if all other arguments above are without merit, the parenthetical language in WAC
284-12-080 @J.§J requires thatpremium tax~_~.~~_9.eps>~!1~_d~.~<2...!!l~ trLJ?.t§.QQQll nt ..JLQQ..es,.n_ot,
bowever, requir~ thatlb_ey.,.b.e_maJQtfilD.E?2Jb,~,[e..

As such, even if the parenthetical language in WAC 284-1 ?-080 (5) (a) applies as the OIC
contends, we have met the requirements of that provision. All premium taxes were in fact

':-.. ~~c",",,..:_a,~....~,-=:,,,,~",,,,.,..~_.~

deposited to the trust account. They just weren't maintained fFiere-as-WAC ~84,:J 2-CJaO (5)
\--!--;- =-.._~_=-.~.""_,.,..,..,_........".~-,._= .._~_.,....,_","",,,~_, "",~,_ -o-:-._"....,..,',-=-or..,.",-__-c,.,.,...,. ""_,",,..~. __, ,:..~~r-"",,' __ 'C." _"_,,~,,,,_ ',_,,,,_.,__ ,. .. _ ," _ .. __ ",_, .""".'""'''"'",---,.".,.".e-;-.'- ....:. .,~,=",- .. .,,"'>:•. , .• ~"","'-;;-.,.".<..~-~-"':J::Io'

(a}lmp~o_S_e$,no_.su.gJ:treg.ljlrement 'Given the laCK of sudlcffe'qDirement, there is no implied
fiduciary and trust obligation and it was improper for OIC examiners to require that premium
taxes be maintained in trust for purposes of calculating our trust adequacy.

Mr, Brown, in his brief of December 10th
, and again in his Supplemental Memorandum of

December 28th
, notes that RCW 48.17.600 (1) requires that "all funds representing premiums

or return premiums... shall be accounted for and maintained in a separate account. .. " - with
"maintained" being his salient point. I would agree with his interpretation of that code section.
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However, I would point out that the section applies to premi,ums and return premiums only-I
not to premium taxes. So unless you rule that the term "Premium" includes premium taxes,
his argument is off point.

L
I!'S resr:>ect~M:L.J?mWn~S---1b~.Q[~JhgUhE;_ ..~t~flDl!Lon oC'.'=~~!:!:!~~~~;~2_1l1~1 ne~~48.18.170_
~n. C.IU<!~..s.J~E.~.m.._..",I•.!:J!Jl ti3X.J~.s,..a.ndJherefQ[f?.§tfpntsJbJ~mJhe-pmtectlons-thaLare~r.e.salY_e:d:fur:j
prerT11~!!1.§.,JJ~L~gJai{)~Lfive.,points. 1__-

First, Mr. Brown is applying a contract law definition to legislative intent and the legislature is
not bound by contract law definitions when setting out its intent. That intent stands on its
own.

Second, I draw your attention to the third and last sentence in RCW 48.18.170:

"Any assessment, or any "membership," "policy," "survey," "inspection,"
"service" or similar fee or charge made by the insurer in consideration for
an insurance contract is deemed part of the premium."

,ltRCW4~:.t~·.1.LQ"L~§_IJY~m§i3JJsxvhatMI.8m)':io.say§.jtm~?D.§.,.1b~!].§.~sessments,.

l
;~:;~~~~:;~~;~(i~:~;~~;~~§i;;~~;~~rv;;:~~~~~~;~gf;dC~:~:~~;
to'o mU~lriec~..:.s.s.ci(iJ.~LbR.f i.dU..9.J..C3.!yJ!§3.~..m._S..,,"9.J:tO.J.C..Li§.,f.'.P.'.6Iig.a.. ti.a..n..".s.,. as th.. e.y..' .t.oo. ar.e .c..o.nSider.,a.tion.
'However, the...QL~~.l!~t consider even one of these itern~s=lR.~b.~~fLU9,ld,f.L§.I:yjt~II!,.9!JC~,H?t
obligation. They are not evaluafea"ih-alf\t6lthe'fivi[RYlown formulae that OIC has used to
calculate trust adequacy. 1 _

I~-
Make no mistake, these are not incidental amounts. In our best year, we probably collected
more than $2 million in broker and inspection fees and in any given year, they are general1

1
at least five times the premium taxes. Further, I asked Ms. Azevedo during the audit if OIC
considered inspection fees to be a trust obligation and she said that they did not.

This is a serious blow to Mr. Brown's theory. If premium taxes are a trust obligation, then
broker fees, inspection fees and all the other fees identified in the third sentence of RCW
48.18.170 must be trust obligations as well and the OIC formula for testing trust adequacy
must recognize them as such. Since none of the OIC's five known audit formulae do so, the
OIC itself contradicts Mr. Brown's new workhorse theory.

Third, referring again to the third and last sentence in RCW 48.18.170 (above):
I

This sentence g.~§.~.~§g.ecifigexa.mpler.§ __QLGQn~ iq~,[.9Jj.QQ.Jbatcm~JncJudedj tJ.Jhe..d,eJlnlt.iQ..rull
"~em)ulD",Jlt'1(Lgcjdly, prerlliurnJaxes arenotSlrnongth()c~~~~~D'1P.tE:1~. You would think that,
if premium taxes were intended to be part of "consideration", then our legislators would have
included them among the examples of "consideration" in the code itself, if only to avoid
possible confusion on the topic.
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I mean, according to Mr. Brown, RCW 48.18.170, by including premium taxes in the definition
of "Premium", intended to provide enhanced protections for premium taxes. Surely, with ~ol
something as important as that, the legislature would make their intent very clear. Including
premium taxes in the examples of "consideration" given in that third sentence would seem to
be the bare minimum needed to protect what Mr. Brown says was legislative intent. ~_

But the legislature didn't include premium taxes in the examples of consideration - and ther~
is a very good reason that it didn't.

RCW 48.18.170 - the Definition of Premium - was not written because the legislature----­
thought that the best way to afford fiduciary and trust obligation status to premium taxes was
to bury their intent in the definition of "Premium" - as Mr. Brown's theory seems to suggest. It
wasn't written to identify fiduciary and trust obligations at all.

~CW 48.18.1LQ~J!Y~~.YfCitien to.identify.itel'!}~th~! .. are $"u.Qj~~QLtq~premi,UJD.tgX.__'{.o,u~ca)J~LbaY_e.
a taxon-pre'mTum wi!b§utji§Jdef.T.6Ici:g.,::~e:remilLm: . .It is b~gau,§C?g(BQVY.48.18.170 that I,
a[CfeveljOtfier surplus .Iine broker in this st§1e!..K1J9YvJOCiciqJb.~~RL~mliJlr1,fOgenretwhhtwo

, '1h ird sentence" 'ifem:Q.IjIJiIgk'erfe.e-.a.nd tb.€LLnsRecJ.LQoJe.e~b.efor.e-ap.p:I¥ingJb.e_ta)([ate
\.mLq_QIdving"atib_e_c_ormc.LpJ:.emiumJax-Qn..ar:J.,ilQS;:QUn.t~

As such, the clear legislative intent of RCW 48.18.170 was to include in the definition of
"Premium" onlv those non-premium items that are subject to premium tax. T,be:t{S,,",WDy_.E3..Y,c?,[Y
single item that is listed in the third sentence is a taxable item. And that's why not a single'
one of those items enjoy fiduciary and trust obligation status - while ever,y one of them would
have to enjoy that status if Mr. Brown's theory were correct. @Jlnally~ tt"li3t's also why I

premium taxes are specifically not included as a third sentence exampi'e-ofconsrderaflon ­
the S19t~.QIWf!§hingtondoes not charge a P!emi~m ~~on premium taxes. I

.'. - _.... - -.,"J...r<-;':':""• ....."...._._~..,.._:-cr"'_.........,..~~ .....::~.,,,....__~~'=, ..=_,." ... _-_._->._~.~ .... - '~-'~'''''--'''-:''"''"''''''''-:~~,':''-lr.;':",'~

----:-----:-------

The legislature didn't carelessly omit premium taxes from the list of examples in the third
sentence - tb§_y=I2.U_WQ_s~E?lldtlY~_9j9DJ,jDcJjJdetbem.as-theyarenota,taxable.itemar;,d,Qnly=_

tg.xe:t.bJejtems"are,jr;,cluded,.intheir~,E1efiniti@n,er:~R.r.:emi,um::. Therefore, premium taxes cannot
possibly be included in the definition of "Premium" within the meaning of RCW 48.18.170 and
Mr. Brown's theory is flat out wrong.

Fourth, authorized or admitted insurers pay premium taxes on admitted business just as
surplus line brokers do on non-admitt~d business. The taxes are similar - indeed the surplus
line premium tax rate is not set in the code but is tied to the codified rate for authorized
carriers.

Authorized carriers are required to pre-pay their estimated premium taxes quarterly, based
upon the premium written in the same quarter, the prior year. However, if their production
has increased, then there will be an additional premium tax obligation.

While the taxes have different legislative groundings, the relationships are identical. In both
cases, the tax is a premium tax, is collected from the insured, is held by an intermediary and
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is ultimately paid to the state. Yet OIC does not consider such additional premium tax
obligations due from admitted carriers to be fiduciary items or trust obligations. Instead, the
treat those premium taxes the same way that they treat any other tax for which there is no
specifically stated fiduciary or trust obligation. Logically, premium taxes are either fiduciary_
items and trust obligations or they are not - at least in the absence of a clear legislative
distinction as to their treatment by carriers and surplus line brokers. Clearly, the OIC is tryin
to have it both ways.

Beyond that however,Jhe..gefjDj!l9..DQJ_"E'.J..er:niurn~-isJl:1e~sar.neJoJ~b.oth,qdJXlm§,Q..J;~n,(LDgn­

admitted carriers; RC_W..i~..J§~lZQj~,{LgI9J?,?,I,.d~fini~i9n.that.appliE3~Joa!Lp[~miums,u!JP{ju,st
~s1lne RIEiQ1J~LD§~i,.SQJf Mr.. Brown'sthe6rYjs~c6:(ieCt".cmd.jfsurplus.UJ]e"pJemiumtaxes
are include.QloJb.e.~de.fin.iti.Q!JQL"Er~l1)illm~'C3ngo§l_re therefore fiduciary items and trust
o~,,-tRen~the.same"tr:eatment~wouldapplytotnoseaaditi6tlaLa:dmine:d~i5atKet
pr:-emiumjaxesJhatwere.nQLpre-paid.,Yet,.accorQjngJQJb..?~Q.lQ.~_,t.b~e.x_§[~~nQt.

By failing to treat those additional admitted market premium taxes that were not pre-paid as
fiduciary items and trust obligations, the OIC is itself, again, contradicting Mr. Brown's theory.

In Pers. Restraint of Quinn, 154 Wn. App. 816, 226 P.3d 208 (2010) the court held, "A baSiC

1
principle of statutory construction is that the legislature does not intend to create
inconsistencies in statutory language." Clearly, as the last several points have shown, in
order for Mr. Brown's theory to be correct, the legislature would have had to set out to creat
a boatload of inconsistencies.

Fifth, even if you rule that Mr. Brown is correct and that the definition of "Premium" containe~
in RCW 48.18.170 includes premium taxes, then we point out that the Order was not based
upon that theory. There is not a single reference to RCW 48.18.170 in Ms. Tunis' notes, in
the preliminary report that she gave to decision makers or in the Order itself; only WAC 284­
12-080 is cited as creating a trust obligation. Clearly Mr. Brown, recognizing that WAC 284­
12-080 (5) (a) provided insufficient support for the OIC's position that premium taxes were a

;~;:n~~~~~~~I~~~~&;~:~~!!~:~~is~t~~;ncgaf~~~ft§LOWLfi[sUelepbOAic.bearJng ."ldiSJJaWL_

However, if and onlyjLYQ.uJuJeJhattb~):j~,fi[litjon .. ot~~.~Rremium"cGntailJedinHGW.A8.J8 ..J 70'._---_...", . .'." .._."'"..,.--_.-.~._-~._'-' _._,,-', ,-,-,~", '--" '-'-.-"'.,"-. ---.-, ,,,,,-,,-.-;

inclLLd_e_s_pJ:§'OJiumJg~~_s,vveargLJethat, since the Order was not baseduponRCW 48.18.170
In_~m'i.yy'a,Y];'§h_9pe-OLform, then -Mr;.·-'Brciwrf$IiQul~f'6qrbe,gllowed~,t9:[~IY,uRon'_RtW.,. -~

(Aa:T~J7Qjn.thishearingandth_e.argum~JJt,.j3~~w~I.L§?all. thEL?X9!JIJJs;l)JtsJba,t13pdo.gfrom it,
must be ruled inadmissible. . -- -. -. _. - . ---~---.-..~-

Your Honor, I draw your attention to RCW 34.05.452 (1) which reads:

(1) Evidence, including hearsay evidence, is admissible if in the judgment of
the presiding officer it is the kind of evidence on which reasonably prudent
persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of their affairs. The presiding
officer shall exclude evidence that is excludable on constitutional or statutory
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grounds or on the basis of evidentiary privilege recognized in the courts of this
state. The presiding officer may exclude evidence that is irrelevant, immaterial,
or unduly repetitious.

If and only if all of our above arguments on RCW 48.18.170 are without merit, then we argue
that all evidence related to that code section must be excluded from evidence as RCW
48.18.170 was "irrelevant" and "immaterial" in all respects as to the issuance of the Order.

In addition, Your Honor, I draw your attention to 34.05.434. Notice of hearing, which reads in
pertinent part:

(1) The agency or the office of administrative hearings shall set the time and
place of the hearing and give not less than seven days advance written notice
to all parties and to all persons who have filed written petitions to intervene in
the matter.

(2) The notice shall include:

(g) A reference to the particular sections of the statutes and rules involved;

The Notice of Hearing which we received does not refer to RCW 48.'18.170. While the notice
dpes refer to the underlxing Order, that Order al.~().AQ~§._ooLc.ontain-aR-Y-Fefer:ence..to_RC1Y.,.
48.18.170. As such, if and only if all of our above arguments on RCW 48.18.170 are without
merit, thenwe argu.e tha1 due to.-lbaiailULe_to_i:e.fer-s.Ree-R-GW-4g.:l.8-J 70 as_r..e...quired by_RCW
34.05.434(2)(gl.iD. -eitD~[ thC? notic.Ji.QL1b,e_uod..eJ1Y1U9. OrdeL the Ol..G.~l1o~rely on this

stafutejD_attemptir:lg...tQ~Qefer:ld=QbJr~susper:lsiQr;LandJ:e,\Location. -~=~ ...~
Regardless of how you rule on that argument, however, u holdina the order on the basis of
RCW 48.18.170 alone would cr,eate a trulv stranqe result. "---------------------,-

I!:t_E?~QJ.Q~9j9n:.t9.§~D.1J:Dg.:'.~ntrl,J$Jwor:tI:1.y~ar:lQ.a..soufce--Qf-injur¥"ar;),d"1Q~$...$Jo~tbsLPJl.bJic'l
~u.s.e.Qf"gCW~.fla.J~-.JrO,;_jhey- did. so beGause."of-.tbe~-PJ:lI~o1b.e.ticaLlaJ).gu_a-Q,e,jnJ.oL~C~2B4..
1?-9~~O(§)j91.=rylr. Brown is now trying to "re-deem" me, so to speak, in this hearing on the
basis of a theory that the examiners were unaware of at the time of audit, that OIC was not
aware of at the time the Order was issued and that Mr. Brown was apparently not aware of at
our first telephonic hearing.

Your Honor, I haveQ.ne other arg~~t that I wanted to make on this issue that is not directly
related to either of Mr. Brown's claims of support.

If.our Leglslator~~ad~!Jd~JQLPl!'mjYIll.1i!~!1§j<~~J'Jr~!~<;!JJ§.i!J[Y<9Jj)Qllga!ion~en they l
wouLd h.§ye=~gLd.=~oQ~ __~cil~ady".and~sucdnctJ.~.cJ-Th eleg isIatu re-is-clearly'''capabIe·of~Grafting".s·~ch
language. In RCW 19.142.060, for example, the Legislature said this:
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(1) All moneys paid to a health studio prior to the opening of the facility shall
immediately be deposited in a trust account of a federally insured financial
institution located in this state. The trust account shall be designated and
maintained for the benefit of health studio members. Moneys maintained in the
trust account shall be exempt from execution, attachment, or garnishment. A
health studio shall not in any way encumber the corpus of the trust account or
commingle any other operating funds with trust account funds. Withdrawals
from the trust account shall be made no sooner than thirty days after the
opening of the entire facility.

The legislature was equally clear as respects sales taxes in RCW 82.08.050:

(2) The tax required by this chapter, to be collected by the seller, is deemed
to be held in trust by the seller until paid to the department. Any seller who
appropriates or converts the tax collected to the seller's own use or to any use
other than the payment of the tax to the extent that the money required to be
collected is not available for payment on the due date as prescribed in this
chapter is guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

I

If the Legislature had meant for premium t~~es to be a fiduciary item and to require thatth~
~~t~~~~~dn:~~~:;;~~~~~~llj~;L~i~~,~~Ot:~:~~t;~~n~~gc~u~r:~:~~~~~~i,n~~~~~:r~~YyL
make sense that, rather than lay their intent out clearly and succinctly, tb~J.e.gjsJal\.J):e~~Q,uld

in~tead bury its intent t~J2lQlstQL~tElJ(3~lElXJe\l"enue,sjr:Lsu:j~Dniti.QD1~1.b.e..a [gum.8,r.lt-is~ahs.u rd
on~ its face.

The very fact that the Legislature provided no such clear and succinct language make~ I

legislative intent perfectly clear. And the verY.fact that Mr. Brown has had to rely on legal
gymnastics, attempting to bootstrap premium taxes onto premium for example, instead 0

pointing to such clear and succinct language is clear and compelling evidence of the paucityfY"1--
of the OIC's claim. I

---

,A signillcant mi.!l£!i!Y.!.if nqLa m~ority",\QfMLj3LQWo.'.§J§g.qLar:gument§J~L~~5!:;;lill.JJ.P-.QD.hi~

l~~.2..~.§.!J]~sUtLqLlh.e~dQfjDjjjQ[1.gf:J~E~rrliu,rn" .inclu~es p~~rnL~flJJ§Xg§o,,9D.(:L~,Qjb£U~51,

~~~e~~;~~~9h~~~~~~~j~~~~d2:fJ~. "B"r~~';i~~~~~~~J:;P~:~ii~~~o~ ~~~ ,._
customer gives for the insurance is correctly recognized as premium, the licensees' leg~
obfuscations and rationalizations evaporate". He then goes on to quote RCW 48.17.600'

L
Repeating that citation, in pertinent part:
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(1) All funds representing premiums or return premiums received by an
insurance producer or title insurance agent in the insurance producer's or title
insurance agent's fiduciary capacity shall be accounted for and maintained in a
separate account from all other business and personal funds.

(2) An insurance producer or title insurance agent shall not commingle or
otherwise combine premiums with any other moneys, except as provided in
subsection (3) of this section.

Mr. Brown's assertion that the definition of "Premium" includes premium taxes has been
shown to be incorrect. And as a result, the citation that he uses against us in his
Supplemental Memorandum, rather than supporting his charges, actually exonerates u

For clearly, the first paragraph of RCW 48.17.600 specifically requires that premiums be
maintained in a separate account while the second paragraph specifically prohibits
comingling those funds with any other monies - and since the definition of "Premium" does
not include premium taxes, those other monies must necessarily include the premium taxese-,-_
Taken together then, RCW 48.17.600 (1) & (2) specifically prohibit (~omingling premium taxe;:l.------- .. -_.__ -.-.- ..=_._, -._- -_._. --
iQ the .premiw'iYtrtlst-aCCOUrit:!

,------------------------

In my opinion, tbl$)3X9YlIlyntIsan absolute death blow to Mr. Brown's n§wV'/9rkhqrsetheory
and WAQ~~-12-080~5) ,,(a)'~l1ich he all .butabandone-<;Ifg(itsjri$uffici~nc-y,is_6IJG~_a~i~16"
r"---.-...._".,,_,,_.,,~.. .." ...._ .•_._ ....,,__ •..• _.' __ ". ..... '., . '''. ._ ....... ,_ _,,' . __ ., ..__

all he h-as:-"Affd'-aCtually, he doesn't have thC?tyJther.
....•........,.."~."·,'-~=~.""" ....,.,..~''''-,.~..,.,.,,.,~,, ......<'''_.•.~.~_.~.,, ... ·'c~_~,";d·.:_"'".,_,.~:~.,,- ,..'C': .__ ". -, ,- .'- -..... c.::".....,.."....,...... ·,,·,.C· .. ,,- ""."·'''';cc"--:-" .

Earlier, I made the point that WAC 284-12-080 is clearly grounded in RCW 48.17.600 and
that there was nothing in RCW 48.17.600 that allowed for the insertion of the parenthetical
language in WAC 284-12-080 (5,) (a). Now we see that, not only does RCW 48.17.600 not
provide legislative grounding for that parenthetical language, it actually prohibits it. RCW
48.17.600 (1) & (2), acting together, specifically prohibit comingling premium taxes in the
premium trust account and'yet the parenthetical language in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a)
purports to allow for limited <;3omingling of premium and premium taxes.

So correcting Mr. Brown's erroneous understanding of the definition of "Premium" actuallyL
defeats both of the only two arguments that he has made in support of the OIC's position that '-,-1/_-

premium taxes are a fiduciary item and trust obligation. 1 _

Therefore, we contend that, when calculating our trust adequacy, the OIC inappropriately,
arbitrarily and without any legal basis whatsoever, increased our trust obligation by
$7,833,588. We consider that to be an error in their calculations.

For the reasons detailed above, and because surplus line licensees statewide deserve a
definitive ruling on the topic, we ask you to specifically rule that the OIC's contention that
premium taxes are a fiduciary item and trust obligation is devoid of legal merit and must be~--
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abandoned until such time as the legislature adopts such a requirement and lor the OIC
formally adopts and publishes a properly grounded administrative rule and formula.

LC!stly, even if your ruling is entirelyjoJbe~OJC'sJavor-on~aILtI1e"above~issbJesl"'then~ou.dinaL

f~1I5a"C1c:prrs~iti:Qrei~:th.j~~~~'lJpxtQ~§rtbc,?reJJb.e.$J,lIPLu,sl ine Iicen.see_$in~tbj§§tate~s uPI2Q)2~-.dJ.O
SQ.r.Uhrough aII t~ is~Od a. r,d:t&_ifl6iL<2-S2lII?£tIe..a§LLpj)~§.J1i9EL~!~~0 ~~ ,9!ly_.g~Ylci?.Dg§dr..QrrLtb~ ..
OIC?" Indeed, Mr. Brown has introduced an entirely new (and entirely flawed) legal theory in

~h~~~.e~~n;~p~·C~~if~~···~;~~~~~n;~~~J.·~1ro9~~~hf~·r9~~G·;~~Ti~~9~~~~:~D{~·t~thi~~a~;;~~~I~r-·
anticipated that move when reading the law in an attempt to determine their responsibilities.
If OIC didn't understand the law when they issued the Order, then how are we supposed to
understand it before they do? . I -

We believe that the RCW clearly supports our position that premium taxes are not a fiducia
and trust account item. If we are wrong about that, then the logic necessary to arrive at the
correct contrary decision is too complicated for licensees, and even for their attorneys, to
figure out with certainty on their own. The need for' OIC to provide guidance on this issue is
obvious and their failure to do so should not be grounds for issuing Orders against those who
have failed to properly interpret the law.

As such, ever.tjLYQur·ruliRgis.e.[lti[el.yjnJhe.~QLC:.,~=fqY,Q,l:..QJJ"aILthe.above,.issue.§,Jbe Order
I1J1ill..Lb.e~set~asiQe,;, EgRulation includes not j~st discil2.1inlt']_gJJceo.§E?J~_$._bULqtsQ.~g,~.gati6g

Jhe~J.Q..!heQ1C'$=Q\ijnjl)!.§It?i_e--.--ta._t-=io....n;.,-s....0.---f....t.----he..-=-la---.-w=.=--=--------.-----.-----,------,-,---------.---.-----.----------.-------,----------,-c----,------

Specifically, I draw your attention to~CW 48.02.160. Special duties, which reads in pertinent
part: "1he commissioner shall: (2) Disseminate information concerning the insurance laws of
this state." We argue that, in the face of an obvious need to do so, the OIC has utterly failed
to properly disseminate their interpretation of the law - at least according to Anchor Bay and

Jb_8 world's seventh larqest insurance intermediary. As such, the Order must be set aside.

The third and final material difference in our spreadsheets is that Ms. Azevedo has
removed commission on accounts receivable as a trust asset when they did our audit
whereas the formula that Ms. Cabbell used made no such adjustment.

~-- This is part of a broader issue as to what formula that OIC uses, or should use, to calculate
trust adequacy. I will take that broader topic up in a moment. At this juncture, however, I just
want to touch on this issue as respects the differences in the two trust account calculations.

Counting Anchor Bay's audit, there were 21 audit formulae that we reviewed and, of those,

1

!Mr...e... _.w..•.e".r;e=5~.u.niQu...e...fO.. I.".IJ.l1...,u. ,.I..aH_.tbatwe[~~kl§S!~q. t.q.. cal.c.J:J.Jat.,§.,L.ry..~.ta.9.J;L.9!).~q .•.g,y,:..~•..,,_....E_....O•..'... I.JJ.=..w•... ".'.'.~.'. (.'~"". shown
in Exhibit.20 ,qJ15:Ltb~fifih wasJheJormulausedJoGalcu.lq.t~~bng,bOJ.f3gy~$Jr!:,U?.LI?..Q§iiti00l _
Ii1e[e~was~no-"preGedenLinthe prior-28,·forthe'-fcYrmulathatwas,.used.with,,6wr.,..c_Q1c~Yl~!!on. I

As respects the 20 prior audits, in some instances the removal of commission on accountsr
receivable was a component of the formula. In other instances, it was not. We contend that
the use of this component on our audit as an error because:

I
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>- it was not a component on the audit for the only other surplus line wholesaler that was L
audited in the 20 prior audits

>- it conflicts with the formula that we were given by OIC

>- there is nothing in either RCW or the WAC that supports it, and

>- the OIC has never formally adopted, published or consistently applied the calculation
in prior audits.

Summarizing these errors, then ...

I stated in my opening statement that I expected to demonstrate at least $15 million in errors
in the trust calculations. In total, the three errors above amount to almost $23 million, spread
over the 45 months in the audit period, split as follows:

Omission of Investment Account $10,589,152

Unsupported requirement to include premium $ 7,833,588
taxes in the premium trust account

Unsupported elimination of commissions on $ 4.499,962
accounts receivable

It is our position that anyone of these errors, of and by itself, is sufficiently material to require
that the entire calculation be thrown out and the Order that resulted from it be set aside. I

Taken together, however, the evidence overwhelmingly supports our contention that the audit
fails to provide sufficient eVidentiary support to sustain the Order. 1 __

PREJUDICIAL INFORMATION

Your Honor, I made no reference to this in my Opening Statement as the issue did not come
up until the first hearing.

Ms. Tunis and Mr. Brown now claim that the audit covered only 2009 and 2010 - and that the
prior two years were "illustrative" only. If you agree with their contention, then we argue tha

j

t
in providing the full, botched 45 month audit spreadsheet to decision makers, as well as the
report that was based upon it, Ms. Tunis effectively tainted the decision making process, bv
providing to decision makers information that was extremely damaging, factually incorrectJ
and entirely extraneous to the examination. I .~

As such, the "illustrative" 2 year portion of the 45 month spreadsheet is so prejudicial that itL
and the examiner's report that was based upon it, should be thrown out and the Order that
was also based upon it set aside, as well.
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UNEQUAL ENFORCEMENT OF THE LAW

Your Honor, I made no reference to this in my Opening Statement. Not exactly being a legal
scholar, my legal knowledge base - while tiny still - is improving as we go.

I would argue that, even if every argument that I have made thus far in my testimony is founl
to be inaccurate, the OIC is still required to enforce the law evenly and they have failed to do
so.

In brief, Mr. Brown has argued that, under either ~eories, premium taxes are a I

fiduciary item and trust obligation in the State of Washington-an'd as such, the OIC has a ----­
responsibility, when testing trust adequacy, to include premium taxes in their calculations as
a trust obligation. While we disagree with his underlying premise, we would argue that if Mr.

~:r=~:~:~~~~
.fu:! rpIus line bro.Jse rs and_DQQ:-_8.!JII2I usJi.o.a-.br.oker.s~both.coIIect,,,r.etaio_alJd~ ve~olu,glly_fOJ:YYar:d

the exact same premium tax amouDts,on t~~E3xaGl§arnfUlGcOLJDt$",gr:1JbeE~2~§ct§aLDe

p6Tic!§.,:WI.t6Ihe'excepfi06"ofo·ur ovJn~E&O 'policy, n,ot a dirTl~."!Il'pr~_r:!:lJ~m .!axes p~~ses
t~rougb~ouLbalJds.,tRat-do.e.sn:Lfir.:sLpassthrouah the hanas'of a retail oroducer~Tt'slfie-same
money.' 1 _

If the definition of "Premium" includes premium taxes and imposes trust obligations on
surplus line brokers, then it includes premium taxes and applies to non-surplus line brokers
as well. ~fWAe 28A.:~12~Q.~Qjp)J91C1gp/iestoslJrplu$linebrokersthenitalsoappliestolJon-
s,!J q~lusline IJ!Q.kers."ArevLew.otthe2tOLGJrusLcglcL1J?tiOl1s that wehcwe,.seen,§hpYY.,s that
ole-is'attempting to enforce a fiduciary and 'trust aCGQunt.obligatio.non 2,surplus line,hrO.ke[~

~-:~~~~_in_g_'t_h_e_s_a_m_e_'_Ia_w_s_t_h_a_tt_h_e_y_r_e_ly_,u_J~_<9_D_,J_9_.d_O_, .._so_,_,w_h_e_.n_"._th_e_
y
_.•a_u_d_.it_"j_,..9_",'_1l_9_rt-_,$_Ll_CR_"I_Ll_S._~__

Your Honor, I refer you to Oyler v. Boles, 368 U.S. 448, 7 L. Ed. 2d 446, 82 S. et. 501. In
this case, the court held that "Mere selectivity in prosecution creates no constitutional
problems; defendant must show deliberate or purposeful discrimination based on an
unjustifiable standard such as race, religion, or other arbitrary classification." (Emphasisb
added) We argue that not only is the ole applying differing standards based upon an _
arbitrary classification, surplus line brokers vs. non-surplus line brokers, they have admitted
to doing so when attempting to justify their purposeful discrimination. L
To be sure, Q9_£9J:!!:th9,§Y,~Ul[LC;lJhgtsuIplusJine ..br:okerscvs,non,.surplusJjnecbrQk~,~s are an
arbitrary classification. However, it is clear that the term "arbitrary classification" applies to

"momthqnjl,J.§tdis.grimjna1ion..qgalnsT~p:~ot§gt:~a·p1~~1rs~s~'CCas"Ccfmt~;=navea'pl51i'ed'tharferffrf6
race, national origin, gender, political 53ctivity or membership in a political party, union activity
or membership in a labor union, or more generally the exercise of first amendment rights.
1:\0g ~Iearly, thegIQ,Jlas;.drawn,an"a(bJt~?r~,J:jj§tLQfJiOn.,9~iv,;'~~D.Jb~~'tI.2.~LC!~§~§pLljpeJJ:sE3.ce.~ I
t,hatiS' not Justifiedby.the.lawtlJ§ttb.eYr~IY.L1Ppn"._
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As such, the Order must be set aside.

PROBLEMS WITH THE ACTUAL FORMULAE USED BY THE OIC

In my opening statement, I stated that I also hoped to demonstrate two things:

First, absent the existence of a legally grounded, formally adopted, published and
consistently applied basis for measurement of trust adequacy, the conclusion that we are out
of trust cannot be supported, and.

Second, even if the ole has no responsibility to adopt, publish and consistently apply a
single formula, they do have a responsibility to calculate trust adequacy accurately and, even
if premium taxes are a trust obligatioA~ they have failed to do so and cannot possibly do so
until they have addressed the issues below.

As respects the first point, we contend that OIC cannot legally enforce a formula that quite
simply doesn't exist - meaning a formula that has not been formally adopted.

Our theory is that either the formula is a rule (within the meaning of RCW 34.05.010) that wa~
not subjected to required rulemaking or it is a mere "internal policy" that does not have thej­
force of law and thus should not have been invoked/applied against us in determining
whether or not we were compliant with the law.

Either way, until a formula has been formally adopted and published as a rule, neither L
examiners nor licensees know what formula to apply. We end up with what we have now - in
effect, a hodge podge of essentially secret formulae that appear to vary based upon the
unguided jUdgment of the examiner.

Further, even if you rule that the OIC is not required to adopt and publish a formula, and to
apply it uniformly to all licensees, and even if you rule that premium taxes are a trust
obligation, all five of the known formulae that OIC uses are flawed and give a faulty result.
And more specifically, the formula used to test our trust adequacy gave a false result.

The following~Ll?~--2L~rr9JjtJb.gtaUji)L~JinQ~OJPImuJ9.~~$.bgJ:e=~lb"Q.§fl=gJ~R.li.Q.C:1Qle.J.9
C)ur:~auditare_DClteck-. I

First, WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a) requires that premiums and return premiums on Washington
business be retained in a separate account. However, Ms. Azevedo stated in testimony that,
when putting together her spreadsheet, she lumped all state's taxes together and required
that they all be in trust. It was easier, working with an all states report in our automation
system than it would have been to break down the premiums and return premiums for each
state - even though individual state information was available.

Some states require that premium taxes be retained in the trust account, other states allow
them to be so retained, some states prohibit their retention in trust and, as for non-residents,
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some states defer to the practices of the licensee's home state. OIC examiners had no clue
what states do what.

In our case, according to Ms. Tunis' notes, roughly 45% of our current premium is written on
out of state business. If that is so, then perhaps 50% of the premium taxes that we collect
are non-Washington taxes, as Alaska has a higher tax rate. For most of the audit period, we
were licensed in 13 states. So even if the OIC's position that we are required to have
Washington premium taxes in trust is upheld, they have overstated the amount of premium
taxes that they require that we have in trust, potentially by as much as 50%.

As a result, even if you rule against us on every issue that I've discussed so far, the olc,j
calculation of our trust adequacy is still inaccurate. JL
Second, as noted above, there is no basis in law or logic for applying separate formulae to
surplus line brokers and non-surplus line brokers. So in addition to the question of which
premium taxes must be in trust is the related question of for whom do premium taxes have t
be in trust? In our view, either the OIC examiners were incorrect in their calculations in 2 of
21 total audits - including ours - or they were incorrect in their calculations in 19 of 21 total
audits. Either way, until they figure out which, they cannot say with certainty that they are
accurate in their calculations on any audit.

Third, as noted earlier, in calculating our trust adequacy, OIC applied the requirement that
premium taxes be retained in the trust account to both premiums and return premiums.
However, WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a), to the extent that it supports the OIC at all, speaks only to
premiums. Return premiums are addressed in WAC 284-12-080 (5) (b) and that provision
does not make premium taxes on return premiums a trust account obligation.

So even if you rule against us on the applicability of WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a), the OIG's
calculation of our trust adequacy is still inaccurate as premium taxes on both premiums and
return premiums were treated as trust obligations. (This argument would not apply if you rule
that RCW 48.18.170 includes premium taxes in the definition of "Premium".)

Fourth, are Washington Surplus Line Stamping Fees required to be in trust? And what about
the comparable fees from out of state? Certainly WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) makes no mention
of them and they are not included as an example of "consideration" in RCW 48.17.600. Ms.
Azevedo testified that she didn't know whether they were to be included or not but chose to
include all of them as trust obligations - regardless of the state that the account was located
in - because it was apparently easier than separating them out. So even if you rule against
us on every issue that I've discussed so far, the OIG's calculation of our trust adequacy is still
inaccurate. "------

Fifth, does the OIC require that Claims Payment Monies and Claims Expense Monies be
retained in trust? These are monies advanced by insurance companies so that a producer
with limited claim payment authority may make timely claim payments. This is not the
producer's money but the carrier's money - much like premium belongs to the carrier. Ms.
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Azevedo testified that she had no idea what these funds were much less any idea of whether
or not the OIC requires that they be retained in trust.

On the one hand, neither WAC 284-12-080 (5) (a) nor Mr. Brown's efforts to bootstrap
premium taxes onto the definition of "Premium" would make these funds trust obligations in
Washington State. So they.are apparently not trust obligations in this state - and none of the
five known formulae used by OIC considered them to be so. And, as such, they may not be
comingled with premiums:

The problem is, whePJJl9Dr~LsJaie"s_R1!J2!i~h their.tru,~t adequacyformula~~tll~x.,i,flcJJJ.deJh.e$e,,..

fJ.illds as trust obligations - creating a conflict of laws thafT'vJbtfTevenbegin to consider. But
regardless 6niowfFiat=conTifct is resolved, none of the OIC's five known trust formulae
consider the extent to which other states require those funds to be in trust.

Understand, Your Honor, that if these funds are not considered trust obligations in
Washington, then their existence in trust (as required by some states and apparently
prohibited by Washington), would overstate trust assets and potentially could result in an OIC
determination that a licensee was "in trust" when they were, in fact, "out of trust".

Fortunately, Anchor Bay neither has nor has had any such funds. My point here is limited to
the lack of adequacy of the OIC's five known trust account formulae. Until they resolve this
issue, they cannot claim with certainty that their trust account calculations for licensees with
claims payment monies in trust are accurate.

Sixth, Mr. Brown, in his hearing brief of December 10th
, states that producers may add

premiums from non-premium sources to his fiduciary account. First, I would point out that
WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a) specifically prohibits doing exactly that. I presume that the reason
for that prohibition is that, if it were legal, then encumbered money might be added to the
aC,count in order to trick the examiners into thinking that an account was "in trust" when, in
fact, it was not.

For example, I could keep my broker fee and inspection money in trust until the first day of
each month, inflating my month-end trust balance by perhaps $100,000 or more. The OIC
examiners make no effort whatsoever to determine if the funds in the trust account are funds
that are permissible under WAC 284-12-080 (2) (a). Lacking a control process to prevent
illegally stashing operating money in the trust account, the entire audit process becomes a bit
of a farce.

If they do not know what money is in trust, then they have no way of knowing whether any
audit that they have ever done was accurate or not.

Seventh, are accounts receivable to be capped at 90 days? 120 days? 180 days? In some I

cases, OIC has capped them at 90 days and in other cases, they haven't capped them at all.
To the extent that the formulae differ among themselves, some of those calculations must be
incorrect and the OIC cannot say that they know how to accurately calculate trust adequacy.
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Eight, are commissions to be deducted from accounts receivable? Sometimes OIC deducts
them and sometimes they don't. Again, to the extent that the formulae differ among
themselves, at least some of those calculations are incorrect and the ole cannot say that
they know how to accurately calculate trust adequacy.

I've included these under the heading "PROBLEMS WITH THE ACTUAL FORMULAE USED
BY THE OIC" but some are also additional "MISTAKES IN TRUST ACCOUNT
CALCULATION", discussed earlier.

In his Supplemental Memorandum, Mr. Brown seeks to defeat an argument that we had no
intention of making - that being that we should not be able to use an estoppel defense
because we never knew about or relied upon the various other audits that we were provided
with in discovery.

Our point was an entirely different one. Those 21 total audits conclusively demonstrate tha
the ole cannot sustain a claim that we were out of trust because, outside of premiums and
return premiums, the OIC clearly doesn't have a clue what belongs in a trust account and
what doesn't. They don't know how to accurately calculate trust adequacy and they should
prohibited from doing any audits at all until such time as they figure out how to do them I~
accurately. Since they cannot plausibly claim that our audit is accurate, the audit and the
Order that resulted from it must be set aside.

OIC SUPPLIED A FORMULA TO ANCHOR BAY

In my opening statement, I stated that I also hoped to demonstrate we were given an audit
formula by the OIC in 2004 - a formula that does not include premium taxes in the trust
calculation - and that we relied upon that formula.

To be sure, we did noLg~G.Q.p~"QUh-9if9rlJ1ldl~UlJ=wr:itingJI9J:DJbJ~,Q1QJ21!LIJ=E:!~Ltb.arJb.e

exa~ in.~rs1).2r toELQ 1C:;~b~'i\LEL9.~rLQl.I§Jy. ..9.,b aliangedJb8"e'xi~tE:!D.Q~E?, ..Q,Ubvg.Lf.gIlI!l!.Lc.l._".M:<~;:."':Jl,Jnj,s "-----__
0~=,~~~~!D2S1Jb~~!c.~~~~..~9ISLH!?JbAtthe~JQHn\d.tc:lJbgtw§~=ere,~9t"',',~~.~~~s the,non-surplus Iin~_.
t2E2ls=~LJ2!L!2g!.§l.:=~q=W~L~.n9W~JheJormu la"exists=andGIG hascprovid ea~nC:fvi~·5J·~~=91!lQill~til.
that it was notprp'~i.c1edJo us.,-
_ ........~~~._.. ~:;;""';::,"-.,..::.:.':.;;~';;,.,,'c~_ ...

Mr. Brown's question last month about whether or not Ms. Cabbell got the formula from an
OIC janitor is absurd on its face. As_r.e.s..Rec~1 issu~ofjnc.Lu"dl!J.g~prelXlilJ.lXljaxasJ.o.

the tru~gccQ!dJ:l.t§ven if it was a janitor, it was a well informed janitor as the OIC used
~tly that fo rmu Ia comRQnent JD_J_9_oLtb.e2.Q_aud.it-spr:eac;jsl:leets-p.l:o.Y.id~~d_t~u s.

Mr. Brown's further suggestion that we may have been given the wrong formula because we
faile.dJojde.otifi.8_d_QJJ rs§J.Y:~~Ua§."§.U [pLq$JjDJLQrQ.K~r~j§'J~.g1!g.Uy_.aQ$.'urd. Wed idn't know that, in
defiance of logic and law, there were different formulae for different classes of producers and "------­
so had no reason to identify which class we were in. T)JJtQLG,_bowev.er" ..did",know~tl:lat"tl:l.ey
had.,multiple formulae. and, it ~§~.J.b.~i!J~.~RQD$JbjUty_tociarif)cwhoJh.ey~~wersLS.Peg~iJJg~wHb_
l>~19Ja~p:[ovlaTn·~r.-afCElnswe'r=-,even if they let the janitor answer telephone inquiries.
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Your Honor, we believe that the elements of estoppel set out in Ruland v. Dept of Soc. &
Health Servs., 144 Wn. App. 263, 182 P.3d 470 (2008) are met. Specifically, per that ruling,
a party asserting equitable estoppel against a state agency must show evidence of:

1. an admission, statement, or act inconsistent with its earlier claim;

2. reliance on the statement;

3. injury to the relying party if the agency were allowed to contradict or repudiate its
earlier admission;

4. the necessity of estoppel to prevent a manifest injustice; and

5. no impairment of government functions if estoppel is applied.

Given that:

~ we were provided a formula by OIC and that we had no reason to suspect that it was
an incorrect formula, and

~ we relied upon that formula, that we used it approximately twice a month to test for
trust adequacy and that we were substantially in trust using it,

~ we would clearly suffer an injury if the OIC is allowed to substitute a formula other than
the one that they gave to us,

~ estoppel is necessary to prevent this manifest injustice, and

~ there would be no impairment of government functions if estoppel is applied,

...we bel ieve that the OIG should be estopped from applying any fonn ula other than the ~n, L
that they provided to us and, as such, the OIC's trust accounting worksheet and the report
that was based upon it must be excluded from evidence and the Order must be set aside.L-
CLEAR & UNSETTLING BIAS

In my opening statement, I stated that I also hoped to demonstrate that Ms. Tunis exhibited a
strong bias against us, that the Order is grounded on that bias and that it is not a fair and
objective statement of the facts.

The examl2l.~§.J2LM~"Iunis'ibias..9r.e_OJJ..lJJ.g.~~For example:

~ Everything is~b_C3Jagt~riz§JijDJ.bJ:;u:no.sLo.eg.ative_.P9~ssibleway.." The sale of our
co-ntractOi-bo~ok-iscallecfa "liquidation". There was noreason to characterize it as
anything other than what it was - a partial sale of our book of business.
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Likewise, she has repeatedly quoted us as having said that we "borrowed" funds from
the trust account, suggesting that we knew that we were taking that money illegally
from that account. We told her what we meant by the term but she withheld our
explanation while repeatedly and intentionally using the term in a misleading context.

~ I'm described as being "concerned" about the possibility of incarceration - implying
that I recognized my own guilt. Ms. Tunis fails to report that this "concern" was
conditioned on our actually being $1 million out of trust and that the statement was
made while noting that such a condition was patently absurd and obviously wrong.

~ Ms. Tunis read from emails between me and OIC in which I inquired about making
payments of the delinquent premium taxes and suggests that a failure to make
promised payments played a role in the decision to proceed against us.

What Ms. Tunis failed to include in her testimony was that my only promise was to
make full payment by the fourth quarter of 2010 - when we received the second and
final payment of the Hull purchase monies. All possibilities of earlier payments were
conditioned upon the receipt of profit sharing checks that we hoped to receive but
which were certainly not guaranteed. And even if we did receive them, the size of
those checks, by their very nature, would be impossible to predict. In support of this
claim, I offer as. ExbibjL3Q,~J::.opies of two email strings that discuss our efforts to set up
a payment plan and, In the alternative, that advise that we will not be able to make
payment until the last quarter of 2009.

~ A single judgment that OIC believes was incorrect as to the requirement to keep
premium taxes in the trust account may result in several inappropriate transfers
between accounts. But to call those transfers a "pattern", when they all resulted from
a single mistake in interpretation of the law, creates the appearance of multiple
decisions to violate trust. A sihgle error may be called a mistake. But a "pattern"
sounds like an intentional series of abuses.

It's as if we characterized Ms. Azevedo's single omission of the investment account
from Exhibit 17 as a"oattern" of 19 seoarate abuses_- one for each month durina the

I

audit period that money was In that account but that It was not shown In the monthlL
calculation on the spreadsheet. That would not have been a fair characterization of
Ms. Azevedo's work product and Ms. Tunis' report is not a fair characterization of our
operations.

~ There are close to a dozen statements in the preliminary report that was provided to I

decision makers that speak to our "pattern" of "transferring" or "using" or "moving"L
funds between accounts. ~-

=> But not once in the report is there a single mention that OIC had given us a
formula for determining trust adequacy.
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~ Not once in that report does it mention that we had relied upon that formula.

~ Not once in the report does it speak to our assertion that, using that formula, w
were never materially out of trust.

~ Not once in the report does it mention that the investment account was left out
of the Ole's calculations of trust adequacy - or that it was intentionallv not
included because it was not labeled properly. 1

~ Not once in the report does it admit that there may b~ probl.IIIS Willi lite 1I USl
account calculations as a result of obvious red flags thatl.'ere not investigated.
Some of those red flags were addressed in Ms. .t@e~e'dt>!>s testimony and are
itemized again in Exhibit 29, which I would now like to introduce.

~ Not once in the report does it state that we were challenging the accuracy of the
trust account calculations and of the audit itself.

~ Not once does it mention that Hull & Company had recently conducted a trust
audit of our books as a condition of sale, that the formula that they used did not
include premium taxes as a trust obligation and that they found us to be in trust.

Ms. Tunis could not possibly have believed that this information would not be of I

interest to anyone objectively deciding whether or not to issue an Order and decid~
what penalty to impose - but she left every single one of them out anyway.

~ Numerous times, Ms. Cabbell or I are characterized as having "admitted" to some
offense - and Ms. Tunis often added to the gravity of the admIssion y pOln Ing ou
that it was made in a sworn statement. These "admissions" are presented as if her
keen interrogation skills got us to admit wrongdoing when, in fact, we volunteered1-­
factual information fully understanding that the information was not an admission 0

wrongdoing and sometimes in the belief that it was exculpatory.

~ Several references have been made to Exhibit 10. What Ms. Tunis has failed t
mention is that after Ms. Cabbell signed that Exhibit, at the instruction of Ms. Tun·'o-,I=s'----'-­
she reviewed the document and found an error that Ms. Tunis had made. She
attempted to deliver a copy of the document with her notation of the error and Ms.
Tunis refused to accept it, stating, "It wouldn't matter anyway". A copy of Exhibit 1

with Ms. Cabbell's correction, is included as Exhibit 25.

~ Worst of all, Ms. Tunis turned in a report that can only be described as intentiona y
misleading and deceptive. She knew that her report was based upon a spreadshee

L,-----

that was error-filled. She knew that an Order and disciplinary action would very likely
be issued, and would be based upon that report. She had an opportunity to fix t~e

spreadsheet and the report but chose not to do so - choosing instead to submit a
report, including a spreadsheet, to decision makers that she knew to be massively
flawed.
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Her deceit continued during her testimony in this hearing. She's been evasive. She's pled
ignorance when ignorance was highly doubtful. And she's made several statements, under
oath, that have turned out not to be true.

);> She dodged under oath, twice as I recall, a question about her training as respects the
auditing of surplus line brokers in particular, trying on such responses as what she
majored in at college and noting that she had taken the surplus line broker class. She
just forgot to tell Your Honor that that class wasn't about auditing surplus line brokers
and, even if it had been, she attended the class after she had completed her
preliminary report.

);> As stated earlier, the Order is clearly based upon an audit period that began in
January of 2007. There are specific references to that date in the Order itself and
there are fourteen such references to 2007 and 2008 in Ms. Tunis' report - the report
upon which the Order was based. As such, it is clear that the attempt to manipulate
the audit period, in order to defeat our argument that the OIC failed to include the
investment account in the trust calculations, was a fiction that can only have been
invented after the issuance of the Order. As such, Ms. Tunis' attempts to assert that
fiction under oath are, at best, another material misstatement and another example of
her dishonesty.

);> Ms. Tunis claimed at one point in her testimony to have excluded the investment
account assets from the trust calculations as being "improperly labeled" - requiring an

- interpretation of the term "identifiable" in the code that she relied upon that is so
obviously self-serving and flawed that it is not even plausible.

Ms. Tunis failed to include any mention of the investment account in her report to
decision makers and so she also failed to mention her decision to exclude the assets
in that account. It would seem obvious that decision makers should be told that ther
was another account that had as much as $1.1 million in it during the audit (or
"illustrative") period but that hadn't been counted due to a "labeling error". If nothing
else, decision makers might have taken that information into consideration before
issuing the Order or deciding on what penalty to impose.

Beyond that are the obvious questions of when and why Ms. Tunis was looking up
legislative code in the first place. We believe that it was one of two strategies that sn
pursued, after the Order had been issued and in preparation for this hearing, in an
effort to avoid responsibility for having botched the audit - the other being the
shortening of the audit period.

In my opinion, her testimony that she did this search before preparing her report is
simply not believable and is another example of her dishonesty under oath.

);> Ms. Tunis repeatedly and emphatically testified under oath that even if the investment
account should have been counted, the omission had no bearing on the decision to
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issue the Order because she did not provide the calculation spreadsheet to decision
makers and so they were unaware of the mistakes made in the trust account
calculations.

However, later in the day, Ms. Tunis was forced to admit under cross examination that
the spreadsheet - the entire spreadsheet dating back to 2007 - was included as an I
attachment to her preliminary report, that it was provided to decision makers, and that
it may have played a role in their decision to issue the Order or, perhaps, to impose II
the severe penalty that was imposed. Ms. Tunis' sworn testimony was once again
shown not to be truthful. -

Quoting from her email, she said, "I have gone back over 10 years searching for the
calculations requested. We do not have 12 surplus line producer calculations." That
knowledge presupposes that she checked the licensing status of all the audited
licensees and is consistent with her testimony...

~ Ms. Tunis stated under oath, twice as I recall, that she had personally checked the
licensing status of the 20 licensees that had been previously audited and that only one
of those was a surplus line broker. She said much the same thing in an email to Mr.
Brown that he forwarded to us and which I would now like to introduce as Exhibit 31.

I

But in cross examination, when faced with the possibility that I might have figured out
who a large retail broker was, and might know their licensing status, she suddenly I

backed down and said that she had not personally checked the licensing status of any
of the licensees as she had not been tasked with securing that information. Yet her I

email makes clear that she clearly understood that she was tasked with securing ---
exactly that information.

I would add that twice, since the first hearing, I have requested the licensing status of
the licensees that were audited as I strongly suspect that one of the so-called retailers
has a surplus line license. If I am correct as to that suspicion, then it would
demonstrate that OIC did not consistently required that surplus line brokers treat
premium taxes as a fiduciary item and trust obligation. However, neither request has
secured the desired information.

~ I was attempting to make the point that there was no reason for the formulae to be
different for surplus line brokers than for non-surplus line brokers. Ms. Tunis defeated
that argument by stating under oath that retail producers do not split the premium
taxes out from the premium - that all get lumped together in their accounting system
as premium owed to Anchor Bay, for example. The implication was that, due to this
handling, the OIC, by requiring premium to be in the trust account was effectively
making the same requirement of premium taxes.

This was a complete surprise to me but I had no way of disputing her point and so I let
the matter drop. Subsequent to her testimony, however, we queried what we believe
to be the two largest suppliers of retail agency automation systems in the nation. As
Sally testified earlier today, both AMS and Applied Systems (with one minor exception)
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have advised that their systems do not even allow for lumping the premiums together
with the taxes and fees.

And if I'd understood accounting systems better, I would have known to point out to
Ms. Tunis that if the premium, taxes and fees were all lumped together, then the
automation system would not be able to calculate retail producer's commissions as
those are calculated on premium alone.

As such, virtually every independent agent in the state splits premiums out from taxes
and fees because the alternative - calculating their commission, their income,
manually - would be a huge undertaking, and doing it accurately would not be a
certainty. So again, her sworn testimony notwithstanding, Ms. Tunis "misspoke" on
the stand.

Your Honor, I don't know the point at which a pattern of mistakes made under oath
becomes grounds for perjury but I find it very difficult to believe that this example could
have been anything other than an intentional attempt to defeat an important argument
by misstating the truth. Whether or not non-surplus line producers pool their premium,
taxes and fees when doing their bookkeeping is something that financial auditors know
from personal observation. It is not something that they accidentally misstate or
misinterpret.

Ms. Tunis admitted that she had no training in how to perform a financial audit on a surPlu~~
line broker. We believe that that lack of training showed and she clearly should be subjecte
to far greater supervision than she apparently is. ,

We argue that Ms. Tunis' behavior goes well beyond a lack of proper training and
supervision, however. Indeed, Ms. Tunis' actions in producing a report that can only be
described as intentionally misleading and deceptive, as well as her evasive and false and/or
intentionally misleading testimony under oath, have been so egregious that the OIC's entire
case should be thrown out and the Order set aside. ~_

Your Honor, I draw your attention again to RCW 34.05.452 which reads in pertinent part:

(1) Evidence, including hearsay evidence, is admissible if in the judgment of
the presiding officer it is the kind of evidence on which reasonably prudent
persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of their affairs. The
presiding officer shall exclude evidence that is excludable on constitutional or
statutory grounds or on the basis of evidentiary privilege recognized in the
courts of this state. The presiding officer may exclude evidence that is
irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious. (Emphasis added)

(2) If not inconsistent with subsection (1) of this section, the presiding officer
shall refer to the Washington Rules of Evidence as guidelines for evidentiary
rulings. (Emphasis added)
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Your Honor, we argue that Ms. Tunis' report to decision makers, and all attachments, as well
as her testimony should be ruled inadmissible as it is not "the kind of evidence on which
reasonably prudent persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of their affairs", as
required by paragraph (1), above. Further, her work product and her testimony are so flawed
as to be "irrelevant" and "immaterial" to this Order. If you so rule, then we also argue that the
Order that is based upon her work product should also be set aside.

If you do not so rule, then I draw your attention to RCW 34.05.452 (2) and to Washington
Rule of Evidence Rule 403, which provides that "evidence may be excluded if its probative
value is substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, confusion of the issues,
misleading the jury, or by considerations of undue delay, waste of time, or needless
presentation of cumulative evidence."

In accordance with Rule 403, we argue that Ms. Tunis' report to decision makers, and all
attachments, as well as her testimony should be stricken because its probative value is
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice. Again, if you so rule, then we also
argue that the Order should be set aside as well.

ANCHOR BAY'S ACTUAL TRUST POSITION

All of this begs the question: Were we or were we not out of trust? And the answer is this: I

We're not sure.

1. We mav have been out .o.url1.s.tJor:-a~sAeFl:.-tilJ.l.e..in the sorinq of 2009. We tried to
, 'prevennnarshortage by selling our profit sharing back to First Specialty at a discount

and we did so as soon as we were able to neaotiate and finalize a.deal. It did.
howev~r< take us a little longer than we had hoped. ,---I-------------

2. We may havebeE;ln out of trust in late 2009 and early 2010 - but we are not certain of
, tllat~nd, ul1fQJ:tl,J.nalelY,.JctQnTbE3lieVE3]nat We-will 6V'ero8 ce-rtaiil-.1'--------------

I would remind Your Honor that Ms. Tunis testified that it is not unusual for producers td
experience periods where they were temporarily out of trust. The issue here isn't mino~
deviances from trust but how a producer responds to such deviances when they are±.:
discovered and we responded appropriately in each and every case.

In the ten years since we began operations, we've written almost $120 million in net premiu
- and gross might be as high as $150 million. We've most likely processed 100,000 or so L
transactions and for each transaction that we have processed, there has been an insurance -
company and/or a producer on the other side of the transaction that processed a transaction
of their own. And mistakes happen.
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When you are writing a high volume of business, sometimes those mistakes are not
apparent.· The "float" may disguise discrepancies and your test formula will not usually be
sufficient to catch float errors. But when you sell off a book of business, or in our case, much
of a book of business, the mistakes come to light - in the aggregate, if not individually.

After the sale of much of our book of business to Hull & Company, it became apparent that
there was a discrepancy between our figures and the figures that the insurance companies
had on their books. As a result, we took $123,000 out of our operating account and put it int
the trust account. This money was an estimate of the shortage. It was money that had been
held aside to pay our 2009 premium taxes but we put it into trust instead. Since the day wei
opened our doors, staying in trust has always been sacrosanct. ~L-. _

We understood that moving this money to trust would mean that we would be late paying ou

1
,

taxes, but staying in trust was more important. We could be late paying our taxes and pay a
penalty and interest. But we could not, and would not, knowingly be out of trust, ever.

At first, we believed that an error made in 2004, when we were changing banks, may have
been the cause of the discrepancy. We advanced that explanation when responding to the
audit. But after further examination, we don't think that was it - although it could have been a
factor. We believe that most of the shortage was caused by a series of small accounting
errors, both the carrier's and our own, spread over a 10 year period.

A shortage of $123,000 sounds like a severe shortage and, of course, it is. But it is also a '1
small number - approximately 8/1 ooth of 1 percent of the money that passed through our
hands over a ten year period. Some of these errors were probably made by our staff. We
think that most of them were made by the carriers.

In many cases, we sent multiple copies of endorsements to the carrier's Accounting
Department, for example, for which return premium was due and still it was never credited to
our account - as the carrier was never able to locate their copy of the endorsement (or
whatever). But regardless of who made the errors, employees on both sides of the
transaction eventually gave up, closed out their suspense "ticklers", and discrepancies did not
get reconciled.

So the answer to the question of whether or not we were ever out of trust depends upon wh~
was responsible for the accounting discrepancies between ourselves and our carriers. If wel
were entirely responsible, then we probably experienced short periods of time where were L­
out of trust. If the carriers were entirely responsible, then we almost certainly weren't out of
trust - although our inability to correct the carrier's accounting errors functionally rendered u
so. Where in the middle the fault lay, we have no way of knowing.

I will tell you this. We have never knowingly been out of trust by a single penny. In those briefl
periods of time in which we may have been out of trust, we fixed every shortage as soon as L
we became aware of it.
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There is no question that we were late paying our taxes. We admitted that up front and, after
failing to negotiate a payment schedule, assured the OIC that we would pay in full by the
middle of December and we did so - exactly as promised in early March. We have already
paid close to $20,000 in late payments and interest for that tardiness. Any further penalty is
unwarranted.

Forfeiture of licensing for not paying the taxes, while a penalty that is available to the
Commissioner, is inappropriate and should be reserved for those instances where the failure
to pay results from deliberate misuse of funds. Use of funds to cover an unforeseen and
inadvertent shortage in trust deserves no penalty at all beyond the penalties and interest that
we have already paid. Indeed, it was the proper thing to do to protect the public.

CONCLUSION

Your Honor, that concludes my testimony.
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MIKE KREIDLER
S'lIlll! lI.ISJJlI»l::E CllI.IWll!Sl:»B1

STATE OF WASHINGTON

OFFICE OF
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

1>,0. 80:': 4Q255
OLVMPIIl., WA.l11l5D4.0255
I>h~ft~·. {!l6D) 726-7000

1 do hereby certify that 1 am one of the people charged with the general control and

supervision ofall premium tax returns filed with this agency relative to the business ofinsurance

(except State Workers' Compensation) which is transacted in the State of Washington, that 1am

charged with the administration of these items, and that this office is a department of record,

having the custody oforiginal documents.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that this is a full, true, and accurate copy ofWAOIC# 168179,

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Incls 2009 Surplus Line Premium Tax return, dated March 30,

2010, the same as the original on file in the Office of Insurance Commissioner of the State of

Washington.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and ciffixed the official seal ofthe
Insurance Commissioner ofthe State of
Washington, this 14th day ofDecember, 2010.

~~
~mmiSSioner
Kriscinda Hansen
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Inre:

WILLIAM H. TANNER, and ANCHOR BAY
INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.

DECLARATION OF
MARTA DELEON

I, Marta DeLeon, am over the age of 18, competent to testify as to the matters stated

herein. Based on my personal knowledge. I make the following declaration:

1. I am an Assistant Attorney General for Washington State. Since June 2006. I

have been assigned to represent the Washington State Office of the Insurance Commissioner

(OIC).

2. On November 4, 2010, I obtained a temporary restraining order and filed a

complaint in Kitsap County Superior Court against Mr. Tanner for recovery of premium taxes

owed to the OIC. That matter is Kreidler v. Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, et al., Case

No.1 0-2-02547-4..

3. On November 9. William Tanner, Linda Tanner, and Anchor Bay Insurance

entered into a settlement agreement with the OIC, and signed a confession of judgment which

was entered on November 10, 2010. A true and correct copy of that confession of judgment is

attached hereto as Exhibit A.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of Washington that the

foregoing is true and correct.

DATED this I~ay of December, 2010, at Olympia, Washington.

~..<;7
/J:,;I- ;'"~'~ /" /'

Af;:/ ./~--t:''7/",1r,h
MARTA U. DEL ON, WSBA#35779
Assistant Attomey General
Washington State Office of the Attomey General

1



EXHIBIT A



2

3

~~:.El~<Y;".;:·~;;~!~~:::;1~~ ..:;: \.".E t,

;?\~lJ~l r t~ ;?f/tO

CON;FESSION OF JUDGMENT

NO. 10M 2-02547-4

STATE OF WASHINGTON
KlTS~COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

4

5

6

7

8

9
MIKE KREIDLER, INSURANCE'

10 COMMIS SIONER,

11 ,Plaintiff,

12 v.

13 ANCHOR BAy INSURANCE .
MANAGERS, INC., WILLIAM H.

14 TANNER, LIN;DA TANNER, husband
and wife, and their marital community.

15 and KEY BANK, .
. .

JudgmentBummary ,

Washington State Office of the Insurance
Commissioner, Mike Kreidler Insurance
Commissioner

Defendants.

Judgment Creditors

Attorneys for Judgment Creditor
Washingtpn State Office of the
Insurance Commissioi1er·

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
1125 Washingtoll Street BE

PO Box 40100
Olympin, WA 98504-40100

(360) 664.9006

1

Robert M. McKenna,
Washington State Attorney General.

Marta Deleon, Assistant Attorney General
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26 CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT



chapter 4.60 RCW, in the amount of$107,190.00.

Insurance Managers, Inc. have agreed to enter into a Confession of Judgment, pursuant to

alleged in the Complaint filed in this matter. Linda and William H. Tanner, and Anchor Bay

This confession of judgment resolves all substantive matters between the parties, and

dismissal of relief defendant Key Bank is appropriate.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
1125 Washington Street SE

PO Box40100
Olympia, WA 98504-40100

(360) 664-9006

2

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc., and
Linda and William H. Tanner, personally, and as
owners of Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.,
appearmg pro se.

$107,190.00 owed to the Washington State Office
of the Insurance Commissioner

$107,190.00

Judgment Debtors:

Principal Judgment Amount for
Taxes and Penalties:

Total Judgment Amount:

CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT

Post-Judgment Interest (per annum): 12%

Pursuant to Chapter 4.60 ofthe Revised Code of Washington, Judgment by Confession,

defendants Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc., and Linda and William H. Tanner,

personally and as owners of Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc., hereby authorize entry of a

judgment under the following terms:

Factual Basis for Judgment

The Washington State Office of the Insurance Commissioner, Linda and William H.

Tanner, and Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. admit that Anchor Bay Insurance Managers,

Inc. owes $107,190.00 in premium taxes and penalties to the Washington State office of the

Insurance Commissioner. The Parties have agreed upon a basis for resolution of the matters
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3

4

5

Authorization for Ent!'" of Jndgment

I. William H. TamJer, both personally and as Owner und President of Anchor Bay

Insurance Murutgers, Inc., being duly sworn upon onth,'aclmowledge the debt of$107.190.00

owed (0 the Office of the Insurance Commissioner•. and I authorize entry ofjudgment against

me and Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.•. for the amount set forth in the judgment

-
6

summary above. d-

: DATED this r - day ofNovernb'(l)/It...g;
WiHiam H. Tanner
Individually and as Owner, President of Anchor
Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.,

.' ~. .

/\1 I SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in~A JQ. • Washington this
...::::J:t::n.. day ofNovember, 2010.
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I, Linda Tanner, both personally and as Owner of Anchor Bay Insurance Mnnagers,

Inc., being duly sworn upon oath, acknowledge the debt of $107,] 90,00 owed to the OrTIce 0 r

the lnsurunce Commissioner, and r authorize entry of judgment ng~inst 111e und Anchor Buy'

Insurance Managers, Inc., for the amount set forth in the judgment summary above.
. 017~

DATED this~ day ofNovember. 2010. ""/ __
....... J.I' ~....--

-:::>'. .' y -------
(d~"'· ".

Dindn Tanner
Individually nnd us Owner ofAnchor BIlY
Insurance Managers, Inc.•

10 Or tl. SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me in ~j hNJrirdL . Washington this
.....:J::l:!.k. day ofNoYemher, 2010.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 CONFESSION OF JlJDGMENT 4 OI'PIC"E OF THE AITORNEY GENERAL
1\~5 WI\~hillSlonSlte,,1 5E

PO B01,~OJOO

Ol)'lJlpin, \VA 98504-<10[00
(360) 66H006



1 Order for Entry

2 The above Confession of Judgment having been presented to this Court for entry in

3 accordance with RCW 4.60.070, the Court havll'l.g found said Confession of Judgment to be

4 sufficient, now, t~erefure, it is hereby

5 ORDERED that the Clerk of this Court shall forthwith enter Judgment against Anchor

6 Bay Insurance Managers, Ipc., and against Linda and William H. Tanner, personally and as

7 owners and officers of Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc" in accordance with the terms of

8 the Confession ofJudgment.

ROBERT'M. MCKENNA
Attorney General f}i'. .. . j!'

~~
~MARTADELEON, WSBA No. 35779
Assistant Attorney General

Attorneys for the Washington State
Office of the Insurance Commissioner
Telephone: (360) 664-9006

15

16

17

18

19

21

22

"'.'
9 Entry of this judgment resolvini?; all matters brought before the court, this matter is

10 dismissed as ·to·reli~f defendant K~y Bank.

11 DONE IN OPEN COURT.this~ day of_-I-;;;;::--J''-Tr--t---r---T-'

12 ..

13

14

20

23

24

25

26 C01\lfESSION OF JUDGMENT 5 O~CEOFTHEATTORNEYGENERAL

1125 Washingtoll Street SE
POBox40100

Olympia. WA 98504-40100
(360) 6(}4·9006
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Anohor Bay Insurance Managers, In - Consolidated

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2005
Assets

Page 1

Current Assets
Cash - Premium Trust 6397 $73,055.64
Cash - Operating Key 6369 ($13,210.23)
Cash -Overnight Sweep $224,015.92
Cash - Petly Cash $100.01
Cash - McDonald's Invastment $1,015,281.72
Aooounts Reoelvable $1,047,223.70
Employee Advanoes $3,955.44
Allowance for dOUbtful aooount ($6,200.00)
Prepaid Insurance $17,743.83

Tolal Current Assets $2,351,977.03

Fixed Assets
Leesehold Improvements $76,096.08
Furniture & Fixtures $115,481.95
Aooumulated Depreoietlon ($389,575.00)
Offloe EqUipment $355,424.79
Company Vehicles $20,838.72
Computer Software . $203,956.17

Total Fixed Assets $364,124.71

Other Assets
Aocumulated Amortization ($7,949.00)
Organization Gosts $902.50
Book of Business $18,933.22

Total Other Assets $11,686.72

Total Assets $2,757,986.46 •

010/03/06 - 16 :26 Continued On Nexl Page Page 1



06/03/08 - 16:26
Anchor Bay Insurance M~n~gers, In - Consolidated

. Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
8~lance Sheet

December 31,2005
L1~blllties And Equity

P~ge 2

Current Liabilities
Carrier Payables
Conversion Adj. Carrier PeYabl
Excise tax (dorm)
Taxes Payables
FSA Medical EE deductions
401 k EE Contributions
Polley Taxes
L & I Taxes payable
Garnishments payable

Total Current Llablllties

Long Term Liabilities
Term Loan #2- Key 10001
Term Loan· Key 00001
Lease AIM - Key

Total Long Term Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Other liabilities

Equity
Capital Slack
Owner Distributions
Paid In Capital
Retained Earnings
Current Income (loss)

Total Equity

Total liabilities And Equity

$1,804,019.73
$70.10

$810.81
$2p,765.19
$1,513.20
$3,967.43

$278,423.81
$2,324.45

$400.54

$110,800.00
$158,808.27
$123,542.33

$75,000.00
($259.50)

$3,567.34
$304,094.65

($135,859.89)

$2,118,295.26

$393,150.60

$0.00

$246,542.60.
$2,757,988.46 •



06103108- 16:25 Page 1
Anchor Bay Insurance Man~gers, In ~ Consolldalad

IncomeStatemenl
Consolidated Basis

December 1, 2005 January 1 t 2005 December 1, 2004 January 1, 2004
December 31, 2005 0/0 December 31, 2005 0/0 Deaernber31,2004 December 31,2004

-- --
Income

40200 Income,;, Other 0.0 $25.00 0.0
45000 Fee Inoome $79.093.59 23.4 $78.543.59 2.5
45100 Profit Sharing Income 0.0 $241,428.41 7.6
45200 Courtesy Filing Fee Income ($450.00) -0.1 $500.00 0.0
45300 Inspection incoma $1,098.00 0.3 $19.673.00 0.6
45400 Broker Fee 0.0 $1.043.054.99 32.9
45500 Premium FinancIng Income 0.0 $5,548.47 0.2
46000 Commission Income $252.338.61 74.6 $1,745.895.42 55.0

Totallncoma $332,080.20 95.2 $3.134.665,55 95.7 $0.00 $0.00

Olher Income
40100 Interesllnccme $6.132.90 1.8 $39,997.70 1.3

Total Other Income $6,132.90 1.5 $39.997.70 1.3 $0.00 $0.00

Expenses
50000 Professional Services (.269.50) 0.0 $13.885.33 0.4
50100 Bad Debl Expense $6,258,41 1.2 - $13.103.64 0.4
50130 Bank servlca Char9as ($390.57) ·0,1 $2.592.00 0.1
50300 Fee Expense $3.891.60 0.7 $3.691.50 0.1
50306 B&O Tax - Washln9ton .640.77 0.1 $14,426.15 0.4
50315 Inspection Fee Expense 0.0 $127,335.60 3.8
50326 Company Fllln9 Fee 0.0 $60.00 0.0
50355 FSA Expenses $105.00 0.0 $593.71 0.0
50649 Payroll- Officer $50.395.90 15.2 $50.395.90 2.4
50550 Peyroll- G&A (I;?.264.95) -1.4 $454.512,75 13.7
50551 Payroll- Seattla $47.655.70 9.0 $308,465.82 9.3
50652 Payroll-Flash $12,481.23 2.4 $124.519.30 3.5
50563 Payroll-Contraots $67,275.68 12.7 $654,635.84 15.8
50564 Payroll-Programs $28.925.50 5.5 $232.775,79 7.0
50555 Contract l.abor $1.300.03 0.2 .31.660.34 1.0
50750 Payroll Taxes - Corporate $21.880.69 4.1 $160,299.76 4.8
50560 Property Tax 0.0 .1,205,26 0.0
60950 Small Balance WrHe--Ofts $146.00 0.0 $973.53 0.0

Tolal Expenses $262,875.56 49.6 $2,125.006,16 64.2 50.00 $0.00

GroSEi 1noome $75.337.54 22.3 $1,049.660.42 33.1 50.00 $0.00

Operating Expense
60010 Amorttmtion $1,351.00 0.3 $1.351.00 0.0
50135 Gharitable Contribution!! ($750.00) '0.1 $250.00 0.0
50140 Marl<eUng .6.342.92 1.2 $66,597.65 2.0
50141 ConventIons $16.65 0,0 $15.65 0.0
50145 Dues & Subscriptions $940.00 0.2 513.765.59 0.4
50150 Bldg Malntenence & Repairs $215.00 0.0 $554.64 0.0
50155 Equipment Maintenance & Repair $173.10 0.0 $9,935.90 0.3
50200 CommissIon Expanse $125,922.72 24.3 .129.955.45 3.9
50225 Professional Dev.& Education ($691.50) -0.1 $4.120,15 0.1
50230 Technology SUppl\BS & Expense $445.68 0.1 $21.959.32 0.7
50235 SoftWare Licenses & Fees $2.167.39 0.4 $12.921.05 0.4
50250 Depreciation Ex-panae $93.560.00 17.7 $93,560.00 2.5
50330 MVR Reports $66.65 0.0 $435,80 0.0
50450 Insurance Expense ($5,340.15) -1.0 $157,884'.65 4.8
50456 Interest Expanse $1,844.79 0.3 $14,061.73 0.4
50500 Legal Expense 0.0 .10.141.51 0.3
50505 Employee Benenls -Insured $12,658.25 2.4 $166,057.32 5.0
50510 . Employee Benes·non- insured-51 .2.451.31 0.5 $6.771.39 0.2
50520 Lloenses & PermIts $471.75 0.1 $9,834.81 0.3
60525 Recrultlng $24.44 0.0 $3.048.64 0.1
60550 Misoellaneous Expense 0.0 $80.00 0.0
50600 Office Supplies & EqUip-Sliver $6.946.00 1.3 549,315.28 1.5
50605 Records Management 0.0 $15.001.26 0.5
50610 EqUipment R.ental & Leases· 51 (.12.761.94) . -2.4 $7,203.67 0.2
60615 Printing &Reproduallon 0.0 $6.7B 0.0
60620 fOil< Rlan .E~p8nses " -0.0 $2.130.00 0.1
60700 R,ayrol1- Service ~d

$611:32 0.1 $6.353.72 0.2,
'50800 Postage & ShippIng-Silverdale $816.98 0.2 526,302.86 0.9
50900 Renl- Slivardale .23.135.21 4,4 $252.244.66 8.5
51000 Telephone Elq)ense ~ Silverdale $2,966.97 0.5 $47,257.65 1.4
61050 Travel· Transportation $384.51 0.1 $12.333.44 0.4



06103/08 - 16:25 Paoa 2
Anchor Bay Insuranoe Managers, In - Consolidated

Income Statement
Consolldaied Basis

December i I 2005 January 1, 2905 Deoember 1, 2004 January 1, 2~04
December 31\ 2005 % December 31, 2.005 % December 31, 2004 Docamba, 31, 2004

--
51055 Travel· lodging 0.0 $4,112,82 0.1
51060 Travel- "Meals Employee S135.26 0.0 $4,569.77 0.1
51085 Travel - .Enlarlalnment ($120.82) 0.0 ($120.82) 0.0

.Total Operating Expense $266,921.50 50.4 $1,165,520.31 35.8 $0.00 $0.00

Other ExpensBs

Total Other Expenses SO,OO. 0.0 $0.00 0.0 $0.00 $0.00

--
Net Income (S191,583.96) -56.6 ($135,659.89) -4.3 $0.00 SO.OO

\,
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RallllRT M. Ry,\N, CPA
M,me A. JOllmiNsoN, CPA
Sc:orl' M. LtMOU, CPAIAl3V

May 21, 2007

To the Shareholders
Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc,
Silverdale, WA

RYAN JORGENSON & LIMOLI, P.S.
M. EILEE£N BAIillR, CPA, MS(TAX)

JUU!I. M. CURTIS, CPA
JEAN L. SMml, CPA

BIUTT/\NYA BllYAI\'T,' CPA

We have reviewed the accompanying balance sheet of Anchor Bay insurance Mangers, Inc. (an S
corporation) lIS of December 31, 2006, and the related statements of income and retained earnings and cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services illsued by ·the American·Institute ofCertified Public Aocountants. All information inoluded in
these financial statements is tne representatIon afthe management of Anchor Bay Insurllnce Managers, 10c.

Areview consists principally of inquiries of Compnny personnel and analytical p~ocedures applied to
financial data, It is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing
stundards, the objective ofwhich is the expression ofan opinion regarding the financial statements taken as
nwhole. Accordingly, we do not express s\lch an opinion.

Based on our review, We are not aware ofany material modifications that S"hould be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to he in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles, . .

~~d-~\(j.C; ..

Ryan Jorgenson & Limoli, P.S.

7525 PlONEER Vo.'f',.Y, SUITE 20]- P.O. Box 1HI • GIG HAllllOR, WA 98335
'1"'r. ""-Q I'lhU>".1.9i', -v", 25i~-B51.2074. 1.800441-3425



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, Z006

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CIIllh and cash equivalents
Accounts recelvahle, less allowance for doubtful accounts
Employ.. advances
Prepaid insurance

Total Current IIllsets

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Transportation equipment
Lessebold Improvements
Assets under capital lease

Total Plant and Equipmeat
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net Property, Plant and EqUipment

OTHER ASSETS
Intangible ..sets, net of amortization

Total Assets

$ 1,372,136
1,653,749

2,220
16.205

3,044,310

116,826
450,783
20,839
7&,098

136,594

803,140
(504,273)

.298,867

18,933

$ 3,362,110

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT YABILITIES
Accounts payable
Business Inxes and fees payable
Payrol1 taxes payable
Line of credit
Payrol1 withholding
Current portion long-term debt
Current portion ofcapitallelllle

Total Current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease} net of current portion

Total Long-term liabilities

STOCKHOLI)ERS' EOUITY
Capital stock, 100,000 shares authorized, 750
shares issued and outstanding. $100 par value
Additional paid in capital
Retained earnings

. Total Stockholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

See accountants' report and notes to financial statements
2

$

$

2.397,353
379,383

1,966
200,000

5,195
50,787
56,558

3,091,242

60,386
19,128

79,514

75,000
3,567

112,787

191.354

3,362,110



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDEV DECEMBER 31,2006

See accountants' report and notes to finanoial statements
3



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENOED OECEMBER 31, 2006

Retained EDrnings, Beginning .rYear $ 169,922

Net loss (32,018)

Distribution, (32,164)

Priol' period adjustmont for mnartization 7,047

Retained Eornings, End of Yenr $ 112,787

See accountants! report and notes to financial statements
4
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ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31, 2006

Cosh Flow Providod(Used) by Operoting Activities
Net Los,

Adjustment' to roenneile net Income to cosh provided by opernting nelivllie,
Depreciation and amortization
(Inorease) in accounts receivable
Deorease in other assets
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in busine.s and payroll taxes payable

Net Cash Flow Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow (U.od) by lnvesling Activities
Cash paid to acquire new assets

Cnsl. Flow Provided (Used) by Finonclng Activities
Looo Proceeds
Principal paymeots on debt
Distributions

Cosh Flow (Used) by Finoncing Activities

Net Change in Cash
Cosh at Beginning ofPeriod

CRSIl et End ofPerlad

Inter~st expense

See aocountants! report and notes to financial statements
5

$ (32,018)

114,598
(611,652)

3,284
593,261

72,067

139,540

(29,340)

89,200
(95,491)
(32,164)

. (38,455)

71,745
1,300,391

$ 1,372,136

21,988



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company. began opemtions in May of2000 as an "S" Corporation in Poulsbo, Washington, The Company is a Managing
Geneml Agenoy, Wholesale Broker WId Program Manager and currently is licensed in 13 states. The Company bas bad
significant growth since 2000 and is continually looking to expand intc new markets and to write a broader range ofpolicies.

Property and Equipment

Major addition, to equipment are recorded at cost. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense a, incurred, except for those
that materially Increase the estimated usefulUfe nf an asset. Those repairs are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated
useful life ofthe asset. The major classes, estimated useful lives and balance, are:

Description
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Vehicles
Software

Years
39
7
5
5
3

Balance
78,098

116,826
383,421
20,839

203,956

Depreciation is accounted for on the straight line and declining balance methods over the estimated useful life· of the asset.
Deprecintlon expense for 2006 is $114,598. Accomulated deprecietion as ofDecember 31, 2006 is $504,273.

Revenue Recognition

TIle Company reoords revenue upon the invoicing of policy premiums.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for uncollectible acoounts based upoo prior oxperienoe and management's assessment of
the collectibilty of existing spocific acoounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in oheoking, tmst, money marlcet aad on hand. At December 31,2006, $1,347,242 was
held in tmst and restrioted for payment of premiums.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

FiD!mcinl instruments wbich potentially subject tbe Company to credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents. Tbe
Company maintains it, cash balances with one mnjor financial institution and oae investment firm. The cash balance in cheelcing
and trust ebeoldng is insured by the Fedoral Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $100,000, The cash beld in money
markctwith McDonald Investments is not FDIC insured. The Company's uninsured oash halances totaled $1,260,181 at
December 31,2006.

Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $49,606 in 2006. The advertising cost for the Company does oat contain
any deferred advertising costE and consists primarily of mailers and advertisements in industry publications.

Use ofEstimates

The prepamtion of financial stntements in eonfonaity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actunl results will vary from these
estimates and may vary significantly.

See aCCDuntants ' report
6



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

NOTE 1- CONTINUED

Pension Plan - 401Ck\

Anchor Bay Insurance Manag.rs, Inc, began a 401(k) p.nsion pian in 2002. The plan is managed by Compansation Consultanls,
Inc. The administrator in charge ofthe plan is Brian Mohoric, APA. The plan is set up for discretionary .mployer contributions
and .Iectiv. employ.e d.f.rrals. Employ.es are eligible to participate in the plan immediately upnn b.ing hired. Shnuid the
Company malte contributions to the pian, enroll.es must wait six months to be eligible for Company contributions. Currently,
there is a five year vesting schedul•. No employer contributions were made in 2006. Administrativ. costs for 2006 were $2,910,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist ofthe purchase ofa book of business is recorded at cost. The bonk ofbusiness has aa indelinitelife and
is therefore not amortized.

There is no CUITent year amortization expense.

NOTE2-NOTESPAYABLE

Short.term not.s peyabl. consistof the following:

Revolving line oforedit with Key Bank, payable on
demand, interest rate of 8.75%. Maximum amount ofline
is $200,000, secnred by accounls, equipment and
general hitanglbies and guaranteed by Company shareholders.

Long-term debt consists oftlle following:

Key Bank Lease - capital lease, computer software & equipment,
terms consist of monthly payments of$4,351, due April 30, 2008,
secured by leased equipment.

Key Bank Term Loan - terms consist of monthiy payments of
$4,876, interest rote of 8.75%, due December 10,2008, secured
by accoanls, equipment and general intangibles and goaranteed

. by Company shareholders.

TOTAL LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

TOTAL NOTES PAYABLE

Maturities oflong-term debt:
2007
2008
There after
Total

See accountants' report
7

$200,000

75,686

111.173

186,859

$386,859

$107,344
79,515

-0-
$186859



ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR 'I'HE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

NOTE 3 - INCOME TAXES

Under provisions ofthelotemal Revenue Code, the Company is toxed as an "S" Corpornlion. Under such election, the
stockholders are toxed individually on their proportionate shares of the Company's taxable Income. Therefore, no provision or
liability for federal income taxes has been recorded.

The Company depreciates Its fixed a..ets using the Modified Acceierated Cost Recovery System for tox purposes. This creates a
timing difference in depreciation expense for book and tax purposes. Tax depreciation is $85,7'12. in 2006 and is $28,876 lower
than book depreciation in 2006.

NOTE 4- LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space at 10049 Kitsap Mall Blvd, Suites 103, 104, 105, 202B, 302, 303 and 304, Silverdale, WA
98383 from Clear Creek Office Plaza. In 2005, the Company signed an operating lease scheduled to expire August 31, 2008.
Effeclive January 1,2007, the Company signed a neW flveyear operating lease set to expire in 2012. The lease wlll increase
anoually according to the "allltem," Consumer Prioe Index. The Company leases a second location at J9929 Ballinger Way NE,
Shoreline, WA 98155. Total rent paid was $254,139 in 2006. Effective 2007, the company has closed its Shoreline office and
will sublease the space. The sublesee will make payments directly to the lessor..

The Company leases office equipment under two opereting lease agreements expiring in August 2006 and October 2008. The
total minimum monthly payments for these leases as ofDecember 31, 2006 was $770. Tomllease expense under these
egreements for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $10,038.

The future minimum operating lease payments as ofDecember 31,2006 Were as follows:

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011

$195,412
205,694
210,567
'12.3,938
238,158

Capital Lease

As .rererenced in Note 2 - Notes Payable; the Company has entered into a capital lease with Key Bank. As of
December 31, 2006 the Company's software and equipment purchased under tl,e nnnconcelable capital lease had a net
book value of $77,492. Amortization expense for assets purcbased onder the capital lease is included in deprecialinn
expense,

The future minimum capital. lease payments as ofDecember 31, 2006 were as follows:

NOTE 5- PRlOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

2007
2008
There after

$56,558
19,128

-0-

During the period ended December 31, 2006, the Company discovered errors made in prior periods. Amortization was
taken on the book of business purchase which is an intangible asset witll nn indefinite life. Adjustments reiated to the
coneclion oftbis error resulted in an increase to Retained Earnings of$7,046 as of December 31,2005 and decreases
in net income in prior periods of$7,046.

See accountants! report
8
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An"hor Bay Insuranoe Managers, In - Consolld,,·ted

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet

December 31,2008
Assets

Page 1

Current Assets
Gash - Premium Trust 8397 $257,649.75
Cash - Operating Key 8389 $28,448.57
Cash - Petty Cash $126.28
Cash - McDonald's Investment ($244.51 )
Accounts Receivabie $707,472.29
Employee Advances $21.73
Allowance for doubtful account ($8,713.00)
Prepaid Insurance $65,742.17.

Total Current Assets $1,050,503.28

Fixed Assets
Leasehoid Improvements $78,098.08
Furniture & Fixtures $116,826.41
Accumuiated Depreciation ($684,972.21 )
Office Equipment $120,794.67
Company Vehicles $20,838.72
Assets Under Capital Lease $136,594.00
Computer Hardware $24,698.41
Computer Software $306,185.82

Total Fixed Assets $119,063.90

Other Assets
Accumulated Amortization ($902.50)
Organization Costs $902.50
Book of Business $18,933.22

Total Other Assets $18,933.22

Total Assets $1,188,500040



10/18/10- 11 :24
,4n"hor Bay Insurance Managers, In - ConsollclRted

. Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet

December 31 , 2008
Liabilities And Equity

Page 2

Current Liabilities
Carrier payables
Conversion Adj. Carrier Payabl
Taxes Payables
SLA Tax Adjustments
Vendor Payables
Notes Payable PFS - all agreem
401 k EE ioan repayment
FSA Medical EE deductions
401 k EE Contributions
Medicare Payroll Taxes
L & I Taxes payable
ADP Payroll Adjustments
AFLAC Payable.

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
Term Loan #2- Key 10001
Term Loan· Key 00001
Lease AIM - Key
Century Surety Loan

Total Long Term liabilities

Other liabilities

Total other Liabilities

Equity
Capital Stqck
Paid In Capital
Retained Earnings
Current Income (loss)

Total Equity

Total Liabilities And Equity

$959,526.35
$70.10

$177,160.95
($3,529.22)
$10,589.72
$52,904.20

$2,457.95
$1,743.63

($5,542.44)
($61.74)

$1,381.11.
$4,084.48

$39,41

$131,508.05
$28,506.59

$4,350.59
$80,894.46

$75,000.00
$55,000.00

($179,240.46)
($208,343.33)

$1,200,824.50

$245,259.69

$0.00

($257,583.79)

$1,188,500.40
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In - Consolidated

Income Statement
Consolidated Basis

JanuBry 1. 2008 January 1, 2008 January 1, 2007 January 1, 2007
December 31, 2008 % December 31, 2008 % December 31,2007 December 31,2007

Income
40200 Income· Other $585.96 0.0 $585,96 0.0 $100.00 $100.00
40600 Bad Debt Recovery $202.14 0.0 $202.14 0.0 $7,391.59 $7,391.59
45000 Fee Income $791,412.48 24.4 $791,412.48 24.4 $1,022,971.01 $1,022,971.01
45100 Proflt Sharing Income $427,701.22 13,2 $427,701.22 13.2 $319,085.41 $319,085.41
45300 Inspection Income $9,992.00 0.3 $9,992.00 0.3 $26,750.00 $26,750.00 .
45400 Broker Fee 0.0 0.0 $51.20 $51.20
45500 Premium Flnanctng Income $5,878.00 0.2 $5,876.00 0.2 $6,777.56 $6,777.56
46000 Commission Income $1,997,794.68 61.7. $1,997,794.68 61.7 $2,909,688.63 $2!909,6B8.63

Total Income $3,233,564.48 99.9 $3,233,564.48 99.9 $4,292,815,40 $4,292,815.40

Other Income
40100 Interest Income $3,762.59 0.1 $3,762.59 0.1 $27,239.62 $27,239.62

Total other Income $3,762.59 0.1 $3,762.59 0.1 $27,239.62 $27,239.62

Expenses
$5,090.16 $5,090.1650000 Professional Services 0.1 0.1 $14,707.33 $14,707.33

50005 Owner DlslrlbUtion Expense $2,696.80 0.1 $2,696.80 0.1
50100 Bad Debt Expense $2,082.84 0.1 $2,082.84 0.1 $22,312.40 $22,312.40
50130 Bank Service Charges $6,709.76 0.2 $6,709.76 0.2 $2,364.49 $2,364.49
50300 Late Fees • Finance charges $23,343.73 0.7 $23,343.73 0.7 .$6,367.28 $6,367.28
50304 Excise Tax· HawaII $3.48 0.0 $3.48 0.0
50305 B&O Tax· Washington $10,386.89 0.3 $10,386.89 0.3 $12,694.29 $12,694.29
50306 Corporate Income Tax $50.00 0.0 $50.00 0.0
50315 Inspection Fee Expense $98,601.90 2.9 $98,601.90 2.9 $168,788.01 $168,788.01 .
50350 FICA $263.98 0.0 $263.98 0.0
50355 FSA Expenses $915.00 0.0 $915.00 0.0 $2,067.37 $2,067.37
50521 Affiliation Fees $100.00 0.0 $100.00 0.0
50649 Payroll- Officer $193,035.75 5.6 $193,035.75 5.6 $185,986.96 $185,986,96 .
50650 Payroll- G&A $468,466,15 13.6 $468,466.15 13.6 $454,460.03 $454,460.03
50651 Payroll- Seattle 0.0 0.0 $17,933.04 $17,933.04
50652 Payroll-Flash 0.0 0.0 $20,287.46 $20,287.46
50653 Payroll-Con tracts, $613,805.94 17.8 $613,805.94 17.8 $762,145.50 $782,145.50
50654 Payroll-Programs $97,410.55 2.8 $97,410.55 2.8 $1n,540.88 $177,540.88
50655 Contracl Labor $8,143.39 0.2 $8,143.39 0.2 $34,271.39 $34,271.39
50750 Payroll Taxes· Corporate $118,638.62 3,4 $118,638.62 3.4 $143,145.39 $143,145.39
50850 Property Tax $546.71 0.0 $546.71 0.0 $593.93 $593.93
50950 Small Balance Write-Offs $714.86 0.0 $714.86 0.0 $5,202.41 $5,202.41

Total Expenses $1,651,006.51 47.9 $1,651,006.51 47.9 $2,050,868,16 $2,050,868.16

Gross Income $1,586,320.56 49.0 $1,586,320.56 49.0 $2,269,186.86 $2,269,186.86
,

Operating Expense
50050 Auto Expense $689.95 0.0 $689.95 0.0 $179.59 $179.59
50140 Marketing $12,527.04 0.4 $12,527.04 0.4 $27,112.80 $27,112.80
50141 Conventlons $2,735.00 0,1 $2,735.00 0.1 $695.00 $695.00
50145 Dues &Subscriptions $3,520.85 0.1 $3,520.85 0.1 $5,420.57 $5,420.57·
50150 Bldg Maintenance & Repairs $2,222.29 0.1 $2,222.29 0.1 $3,917.48 $3,917.48
50155 Equipment Maintenance & Repair $118.86· 0.0 $118.86 0.0
50200 Commission Expense $1,052,175.97 30.5 $1,052,175.97 30.5 $1,525,639.70 $1,525,839.70
50225 Professional Dev, & Education $408,16 0.0 $406.16 0.0 $496.82 $496.82
50230 Technology Supplies & Expense $26,285.53 0.6 $26,285.53 0.8 $42,165.92 $42,165.92
50235 software Licenses & Fees $42,220.88 1.2 $42,220.88 1.2 $57,451.94 $57,451.94
50240 Conferences & Seminars $35.95 0.0 $35.95 0.0 $3,930.75 $3,930.75
50250 Depreciation Expense $75,408.71 2.2 $75.408.71 2.2 $105.290.00 $105,290.00
50330 MVR Reports $457.30 0.0 $457.30 0.0 $719.40 $719.40
50450 Insurance Expense $114,291.89 3.3 $114,291.69 3.3 $135,575.01 $135,575.01
50451 Insurance-Owner Ufe & Disabli $7,250.40 0.2 $7,250.40 0.2 $10,875.60 $10,875.60
50455 Interest Expense $21,786.80 0.6 $21,786.60 0.6 $25,030.48 $25,030.48
50500 l.egalExpense $1,214.56 0.0 $1,214.56 0.0
50505 Employee Beneflls - Insured $130,987.40 3.8 $130,987.40 3.8 $159,487.50 $159,487.50
50510 Employee Benes-non- Insured-Si $881.53 0.0 $861.53 0.0 $5,072.06 $5,072,06
50515 Relocation $97.50 0.0 $97.50 0.0 $9,898.70 $9,B98.70
50520 Uepnses ~ Permits $9,388.05 0.3 $9,3BB.05 0.3 $6,165.91 $6;165.91
50525 Recruiting t~ $27,42·:;:: 0.0 $27.42 0.0 $254.88 $254.86
50550' Miscellaneous Expense ·$400.00'- 0.0 $400.00 0.0 ($1,077.53) ($1,077.53)
50600 Office Supplles & Equip-Sliver $10,173.44 0.3 $10,173.44 0.3 $20,436.06 $20,436.06
<;nRn" Records Management $44,795.82 1.3 $44,795.82 1.3 $45,555,08 $45,555.06

",oif< "'I:"~ At') riA $q 7lJ5.80 $9,285.80
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Anchor Bay Insurance ,Managers, In ~ ConsaUdated

Income Statement
Consolidated Basis

January 1, 2008 January 1, 2008 January 1,2007 January 1, 2007
December 31, 2008 % December 31, 2008 % December 31, 2007 December 31, 2007

50620 401 k Plan Expenses $3,160.00 0.1 $3,160.00 0.1 $2,481.00 $2,481.00
50700 Payroll Service $7,231.17 0.2 $7.231.17 0.2 $5,316.05 $5,316.05
50800 Postage & Shipping-Silverdale $26,742.13 0.8 $26,742.13 0.8 $32.229.07 $32,229.07
50900 Rent· Silverdaia $107,432.09 3.1 $107,432.09 . 3.1 $162,900.47 $162,900,47
50901 Rent· Storage $3,405.00 0.1 $3,405.00 0.1 $2,125.33 $2,125.33
50905 Rent - Shorallne $30,000.00 0.9 $30,000.00 0.9 $81,530.80 $81,630.80
51000 Telephone Expanse. Silverdale $21,940.68 0.6 $21,940.68 0.6 $29,026.98 $29,026.98
51050 Travel - Trensportatlon . $5,079.52 0.1 $5,079.52 0.1 $12,062.71 $12,062.71
51055 Travel - Lodging $3,096.73 0.1 $3,096.73 0.1 $5,363.50 $5,383.50
51060 Trevel - Meals Employee $1,227.07 0.0 $1,227.07 0.0 $3,237.61 $3,237.61
51065 Travel· Entertainment $298.32 0.0 $298.32 0.0 $232.43 $232.43

Total Operating Expense $1,790,372.19 52.0 $1,790,372.19 52.0 $2,536,305.45 $2,536,305,45

Other Expenses
50020 Clearing Account $3,501.43 0.1 $3,501.43 0.1 $6,355.46 $6,355,46

Total Other Expenses $3,501.43 0,1 $3,501.43 0.1 $6,355.46 $6,355.46

Net Income ($207,553.06) ·6.4 ($207,553.06) ·6,4 . ($273,474.05) ($273,474.05)

I

I
I
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet

December 31 , 2009
Assets

Page 1

current Asse4;
Cash - Premium Trust 8397 $86,607.92
Cash - Operating Key 8389 $360,829.94
Cash· Petty Cash $126.28
Ameritrade investment Account $1,100.00
Accounts Receivable $132,947.63
Employee Advances $1,851.01
Allowance for doubtful account ($4,245.00)
Prepaid Insurance $81,326.11

Total Current Assets $660,543.89

Fixed Assets
Leasehold Improvements $78,098.08
Furniture & Fixtures $116,826.41
Accumulated Depreciation ($703,394.50)
Office Equipment $109,449.67
Company Vehicles $20,838.72
Assets Under Capital Lease $136,594.00
Computer Hardware $24,698.41
Computer Software $301,835.23

Total Fixed Assets $84,946.02

Other Assets
Accumulated Amortization ($902.50)
Organization Costs $902.50
Book of Business $18,933.22

Total Other Assets $18,933.22

Total Assets $764,423.13
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In - ConsolidAted

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2009
. liabilities And Equity

Page 2

Current Liabilities
Carrier Payables
Conversion Adj. Carrier Payabl
Taxes Payables
SLA Tax Adjustments
Vendor Payables
Notes Payable PFS - all agreem
401 k EE loan repayment
FSA Dependent EE deductions
FSA Medical EE deductions
401 k EE Contributions
FIT Payroll Taxes
Medicare Payroll Taxes
Policy Taxes
L& I Taxes payable
Social Security payable
ORWBFT
OR EE Income Tax
OR SUI Payable
ADP Payroll Adjustments
AFLAC Payable
Adjustments

Total Current Liabilities

Long Term liabilities
Term Loan #2- Key 10001
Term Loan - Key 00001
Century Surety Loan

Total Long Term Liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Other liabilities

Equity
Capital Stock
Owner Distributions
Paid In Capital
Retained Earnings
Current income (loss)

Total Equity

Total Liabilities And Equity

$254,859.99
$70.10

$113,091.09
($3,529.22)

($54,603.21 )
($33,468.73)

$8,608.30
($1,755.07)
$2,512.68

($15,270.28)
$1,022.43
($361.74)

$0.25
($1,135.64)

($135.91 )
($15.17)

($421.14)
($354.30)

$5,060.39
($532.49)

($0.02)

$71,493.30
$5,016.67

$36,852.11

$75,000.00
($2,696.80)
$55;000.00

($373,930.01)
$624,045.55

$273,642.31

$113,362.06

. $0.00

$377,416.74

$764,423.13
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In - Consolidated

Income Statement
Consolidated Basis

January 1, 2009 January 1, 2009 January 1, 2008 January 1, 2006
December 31, 2009 % December 31, 2009 % December 31,2008 December 31, 2006

Income
40200 Income ~. other $13.73 0.0 $13.73 0.0 $565.96 $565.96
40600 Bad Debt Recovery 0.0 0.0 $202.14 $202.14
45000 Fee Income $571,259.68 18.0 $571,259.68 18.0 $791,412.48 $791,412.46
45050 Sale of Assets $736,2&7.38 23.3 $738,267.38 23.3
45100 Profit Sharing Income $632,545.42 19.9 $632,545.42 19.9 $427,701.22 $427,701.22
45300 Inspection Income $9,101.00 ' 0.3 $9,101.00 0.3 $9,992.00 $9,992.00
45500 Premium Financing Income $4,253.95 0.1 $4,253.95 0.1 $5.676.00 $5,676.00
46000 Commission Income $1,219,672.33 36.4 $1,219,672.33 38.4 $1,997,794.68 $1,997,794.68

Total Income $3,175,133.49 100.0 $3,175,133.49 100.0 $3,233,564.48 ,$3,233,564.46

Other Income
40100 Interest Income $244.51 0.0 $244.51 ' 0.0 $3,762.59 $3,762.59

Total Othsr Income $244.51 0.0 $244.51 0.0 $3,762.59 $3,762.59

Expenses
50000 ProfessIonal Services $5,997.50 0.2 $5,997.50 0.2 $5,090.16 $5,090.16
50005 Owner DistrIbution Expense 0.0 0.0 $2,696.60 $2,696.60
50016 Credit Card Clearing Account $29,566.94 1.2 $29,568.94 1.2
50100 Bad Debt Expense $10,842.51 0.4 $10,642.51 0.4 $2,082.64 $2,062.64
50130 Bank Service Charges $1,647.54 0.1 $1,647.54 0.1 $6,709.76 $6,709.76
60300 late Fees - Finance charges $13,672.42 0.5 $13,672.42 0.5 $23,343.73 $23,343.73
50304 Excise Tax· HawaII $12.46 0.0 $12.48 0.0 $3.48 $3.46
50305 B&O Tax· Washington $11,596.62 0.5 $11,596.62 0.5 $10,386.69 $10,366,69
50306 Corporate Income Tax $50.00 0.0 $50.00 0.0 $50.00 $50.00
50315 Inspactlon Fae Expense $77,499.12 3.0 $77,499.12 3.0 $96,601.90 $98,601.90
50350 FICA 0.0 0.0 $263.96 $263.96
50355 FSA Expensa, $1,276.76 0.1 $1,276.76 0.1 $915.00 $915.00
50521 Affiliation Feas 0.0 0.0 $100.00 $100.00
50649 Payroll· Oliicar $169,035.70 6.6 $169,035.70 6.6 $193,035.75 $193,035.75
50650 Payroll· G&A $382,739.14 15.0 $382,739.14 15.0 $468,466.15 $468,466.15
50653 Payroll·Contracts $416,159.45 16.4 $418,159.45 16.4 $613,605.94 $613,605.94
50654 Payroll-Programs $91,674.43 3.6 $91,674.43 3.6 $97,410.55 $97,410.55
50655 Contract Labor 0.0 0.0 $8,143.39 $8,143.39
50750 Payroll Taxes ~ Corporate $96,723.97 3.8 $96,723.97 3.8 $116,638.62 $116,636.62
50850 Proparty Tax $1,592.59 0.1 $1,592.59 0;1 $546.71 $546.71
50950 Small Balance Write-Olfs $11,617.71 0.5 $11,617.71 0.5 $714.66 $714.86

Total Expense. $1,324,110.90 51.9 $1,324,110.90 51.9 $1,651,006.51 $1,651,006.51

Gross Jooome $1,651,267.10 58.3 $1,651,267.10 56.3 $1 ,5&6,320.56 $1,586,320;56

Operating Expense
50050 Auto Expense $1,063.28 0.0 $1,083.28 0.0 $689.95 $889.95
50135 Charitable Contribution. $60.00 0.0 $60.00 0.0
50140 Marketin9 $10,067.51 0.4 $10,087.51 0.4 $12,527.04 $12,527.04
50141 Conventions 0.0 0.0 $2,735.00 $2,735.00
50145 Dues &-Subscriptions $5,385.99 0.2 $5,385.99 0.2 $3,520.65 $3,520.85
50150 Bldg Maintenance & Repairs $4,925.98 0.2 $4,925.98 0.2 $2,222.29 $2,222.29
50155 Equipment Maintenance & Repair 0.0 0.0 $116.86 $118.86
50200 CommissIon Expense $681,537.14 26.7 $681,537.14 26.7 $1,052,175.97 $1,052,175.97
50225 Professional Dev. & Education $1,471.07 0.1 $1,471.07 0.1 $408.16 $408.16
50230 Technology Supplies & Expense $16,260.65 0.6 $18,280.65 0.6 $26,285.53 $26,285.53
50235 Software LIcenses & Fees $43,708.25 1.7 $43,708.25 1.7 $42,220.88 $42,220.88
50240 Conferences & Seminars 0.0 0.0 $35.95 $35.95
50250 DeprecIation Expense $35,466.00 1.4 $35,466.00 1.4 $75,408.71 $75,408.71
50330 MVR Reports $685.35 0.0 $685.35 0.0 $457.30 $457.30
50450 Insurance Expense $38,911.89 1.5 $38,911.89 1.5 $114,291.89 $114,291.89
50451 Insurance~OWner Life & Dlsabll $7,250.40 0.3 $7,250.40 0.3 $7,250.40 $7,250.40
50455 interest Expense $31,766.45 1.2 $31,766.45 1.2 $21,786.80 $21,786.60
50500 Legal Expense $7,715.88 0.3 $7,715.88 0.3 $1,214.56 $1,214.56
50505 Employee Benefits - insured $134,021.69 5.3 $134,021.69 5.3 $130,987.40 $130,987.40
50510 Employee Benes-non- insured-Sl $870.30 0.0 '$870.30 0.0 $881.53 $861.63
50515 Relocatlon 0.0 0.0 $97.50 $97.50
50520 Lit'en.e. &Permits " .$5,577.40 0.2 $5,577.40 0.2 $9,388.05 $9,388.05
50525 , t<~GruJtlng

\,,, $200,00 0.0 $200.00 0.0 $27.42 $27.42
50550 Miscellaneous Expense $392.07 0.0 $392.07 0.0 $400.00 $400.00
50600 Office Supplies & Equip-Silver $9,570.25 0.4 $9,570.25 0.4 $10,173.44 $10,173.44
50605 Records Manage!!l~'":It 0.0 0.0 $44,795.82 $44,795.82

...., ""'r> ... n n , itO ':l?A ?Q n' $12.163.42 $12,163.42
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In - Consolidated. I
I

Income Statement

IConsolidated Basis

January 1, 2009 January 1, 2009 January. 1, 2008 January 1, 2008 j
December 31, 2009 % December 31, 2009 % December 31, 2008 December 31,2008

I50620 401 k Plen Expenses $3,681.00 0.1 $3,681.00 0.1 $3,160.00 $3,160.00
50700 Payroll Service $6,059.78 0.2 $6,059.78 0,2 $7,231.17 $7,231.17
50800 Poslage & Shipping-Silverdale $30,536.81 1.2 $30,536.81 1.2 $26,742.13 $26,742.13 I

,

50900 Rent - Silverdale $135,810.24 5.3 $135,810.24 5.3 $107,432.09 $107,432.09 i

50901 Rent - Storage $3,981.59 0.2 $3,981.59 0.2 $3,405.00 $3,405.00
50905 Rent - Shoreline 0.0 0.0 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
51000 Telephone Expense - Silverdale $22,996.24 0.9 $22,996.24 0.9 $21,940.68 $21,940.68
51060 .Travel - Transportation $3,862.34 0.2 $3,662.34 0.2 $5,079.52 . $5,079.62 I

51055 Travel - Lodging $910.43 0.0 $910.43 0.0 $3,096.73 $3,096.73 I
I

51060 Travel - Meals Employee $709.49 0.0 $709.49 0.0 $1.227.07 $1,227.07

I51065 Travel - Entertainment $23.89 0.0 $23.89 0.0 $298.32 $298.32

Total Operating Expense $1,255,902.60 49.2 $1,255,902.80 49.2 $1,790,372.19 $1,790,372.19 I
Other Expenses - -I50020 Clearing Account ($29,471.52) -1.2 ($29,471.52) -1.2 $3,501.43 $3,5OM3

I
Talai Other Expenses ($29,471.52) -1.2 ($29,471.52) -1.2 $3,501.43 $3,501.43 I

Net Income $624,835.82 19.7 $624,835.82 19.7 ($207,553.06) ($207,553.06)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT - 2010
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
, Balance Sheet
September 30, 2010 .

Assets -------~~-----

Current Assets
Cash ~ Premium Trust 8397 $120,139.86
Cash ~ Operating Key 8389 $103,697.88
Cash - Petty Cash $126.28
Ameritrade Investment Account $1,100.00
Accounts Receivable $96,588.17
Employee Advances $1,851.01
Allowance for doubtful account ($4,245.00)
Prepaid Insurance $81,326.11

Total Current Assets $400,584.31

Fixed Assets
Leasehold Improvements $78,098.08
Furniture & Fixtures $116,826.41
AccumUlated Depreciation ($721,127.50)
Office Equipment $109,449.67
Company Vehicles $20,838.72
Assets Under Capital Lease $136,594.00
Computer Hardware . $24,698.41
Computer Software $301,835.23

Total Fixed Assets $67,213.02

Other Assets
AccumUlated Amortiiation ($902.50)
Organization Costs $902.50
800\< of Business $18,933.22

Total Other Assets $18,933.22

Total Assets $486,730.55
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In
Balance Sheet·

September 30, 2010
liabilities And Equity

Page 2

Current liabilities
Carrier Payables
Conversion Ad). Carrier Payabl
Producer Payables
Taxes Payables
SLA Tax Adjustments
Vendor Payabies
Notes Payable PFS - all agreem
401 k EE loan repayment
FSA Dependent EE deductions
FSA Medical EE deductions

. 401 k EE Contributions
FIT Payroll Taxes
Medicare Payroll Taxes
Policy Taxes
L & I Taxes payable
Social Security payable
ORWBFT
OR EE Income Tax
WA SUI payable
OR SUI Payable
ADP Payroll Adjustments
FUTA payable
AFLAC Payable
Adjustments

Total Current liabilities

Long Term liabilities
Term Loan #2- Key 10001
Term Loan - Key 00001
Century Surety Loan

Total Long Term liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total other Liab11lties

Equity
Capital Stock
Owner DIstributions
Paid In Capital
Retained Earnings

. Current Income (loss)

Total Equity

Total liabilities And Equity

$190,869.91
$70.10 .

$0.01
$123,115.00

($3,529.22)
($65,815.3B)
($40,894.17)
$10,045.36
($1,755.07)
$2,866.52

($17 ,200.84)
$1,022.43
($361.74)

$5.09
($495.54)
($135.91 )

($15.17)
($421.14)

$24,225.42
($354.30)

$11,936.27
$778.52

($532.49)
$854.93

$67,552.52
$2,904.55
$7,626.40

$75,000.00
($2,854.71 )
$55,000.00

($373,930.01 )
. $421,153.21

$234,278.59

$78,083.47

$0.00

$174,368.49

$486,730.55
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In ~ Consolidated

. Income Statement
Consolidated Basis

January 1, 2010 January 1, 2010 January 1, 2009 January 1, 2009
September 30, 2010 % September 30,2010 % September 30, 2009 September 30, 2009

Income
40200 Income - Other $11,187.93 2.3 $11,187.93 2.3 $8.23 $8.23
40600 Bad Debt Recovery ($3,692.17) -0.8 ($3,692.17) -0.8
45000 Fee Income $B5,142.29 17.5 $85,142.29 17.5 .$513,784.6B $513,784.68
45100 Profit Sharing Income $129,452.30 26.7 $129,452.30 26.7 $632,545.42 $632,545.42
45300 InspectIon Income $250.00 0.1 $250.00 0.1 $B,651.00 $8,651.00
45500 Premium FinancIng Income 0.0 0.0 $3,742.84 $3,742.94
46000 Commission Income $263,229.44 54.2 $263,229.44 54.2 $1,088,163.20 $1,088,163.20

Total Income $485,569.79 100.0 $485,569.79 100.0 $2,246,895.47 $2,246,895.47

Other Income

Total Other Income $0.00 0.0 $0.00 0.0 $0.00 $0.00

Expenses
50000 Professional Services 0.0 0.0 $852.50 $852.50
50005 Owner Distribution Expense $13,991.20 2.2 $13,991.20 2.2
50018 Credit Card Clearing Account 0.0 0.0 $307.63 $307.63
50100 Bad Debt Expense $3,753.52 0.6 $3,753.52 0.6 $6,326.64 $6,326.64
50130 Bank Service Charges $2,103.17 0.3 $2,103.17 0.3 $1,130.75 $1,130.75
50231 Advertising $338.62 0.1 $336.82 0.1
50300 Late Pees - Finance charges $2,518.20 0.4 $2,518.20 0.4 $7,669.76 $7,669.76
50304 Excise Tax ~ HawaII 0.0 0.0 $12.4B $12.48
50305 B&O Tax - Washington $876.81 0.1 $876.B1 0.1 $6,988.82 $6,988.62
50306 Corporate Income Tax 0.0 0.0 $50.00 $50.00
50315 Inspection Fee EJ<pense $16,466.76 2.6 $16,486.76 2.6 $58,091.41 $58,091.41
50355 FSA Expenses $1,415.36 0.2 $1,415.36 0.2 $1,344.6B $1,344.68
'50648 Payroll - Nonofficer $146,313.67 23.2 $146,313.67 23.2
50649 Payroll- Officer $53,678.54 8.5 $53,676.54 6.5 $133,695.90 $133,695.90
50650 Payroll- G80A $44,098.93 7.0 $44,096.93 7.0 $313,661.49 $313,661.49
50653 Payroll-Contracts $2,696.68 0.4 $2,696.68 0.4 $369,166.50 $369,166.50
50654 Paynell-Programs $6,923.07 1.1 $6,923.07 1.1 $71,240.21 $71,240.21
50655 Contract Labor $140.00 0.0 $140.00 0.0
50750 paynell Taxes - Corporate $45,863.13 7.3 $45,663.13 7.3 $63,063.35 $63,063.35
50850 Pneperty Tax $1,297.00 0.2 $1,297.00 0.2 $868.04 $868.04
50950 . Small Balance Write-Offs $4,305.03 0.7 $4,305.03 0.7 $363.65 $363.65

Total Expenses $346,800.09 55.0 $346,800.09 55.0 $1,055,233.61 $1,055,233.81

Gross Income $13B,769.70 2B.6 $13B,769.70 28.6 $1,191,661.66 $1,191,661.66

Operating Expense
50050 Auto Expense $344.65 0.1 $344.65 0.1 $819.50 $819.50
50135 Charitable Contributions $50.00 0.0 $50.00 0.0 $60.00 $60.00
50140 Marketing $5,850.00 0.9 $5,850.00 0.9 $5,627.51 $5,627.51
50145 Dues & SUbscriptions $419.71 0.1 $419.71 0.1 $3,958.51 $3,956.51
50150 Bldg Maintenance & Repairs $978.00 0.2 $97B.00 0.2 $1,620.16 $1.620.16
50200 Commission Expense $137,164.60 21.8 $137,164.60 21.B $609,399.50 $609,399.50
50225 Professional Dev, & Education 0.0 0.0 $1,440.12 $1,440.12
50230 Technology Supplies & Expense $1,620.49 0.3 $1,620.49 0.3 $11,819.90 $11,819.90
50235 Software Licenses &Fees $3,384.07 0.5 $3,384.07 0.5 $28,877.01 $28,877.01
50250 Depreciation Expense $17,733.00 2.8 $17,733.00 2.8 $29,555.00 $29,555.00
50330 MVR Reports 0.0 0.0 $395.15 $395.15
50450 Insurance Expense $16,991.50 2.7 $16,991.50 2.7 $34,901.10 $34,901..1.0
50451 Insurance-Owner Life & Disabll $1,812.80 0.3 $1,81.2.60 0.3 $5,437.BO $5,437.80
50455 Interest Expense $4,131.07 0.7 $4,1.31.07 0.7 $28,051.19 $28,051.19
50500 Legal Expense 0.0 0.0 $963.01 $963.01
50505 Employee Benefits ~·lnsured $43,334.48 6.9 $43,334.48 6.9 $100,680.98 $100,680.98
50510 Employee Benes-non~ Insured~SI $412.50 0.1 $412.50 0.1 $646.73 $546.73
50520 Licenses & PermIts $12,456.35 2.0 $12,456.35 2.0 $3,556.50 $3,556.50
50525 Recruiting $100.00 0.0 $100.00 0.0
50550 Miscellaneous Expense 0.0 0.0 $392.07 $392.07
50600 Office Supplies & Equip-Sliver $1. ,168.36 0.2 $1.,166.36 0.2 $7,406.82 $7,406.82
50610 Equipment Rental &Leases - Si $7,100.86 1.1 $7,100.66 1.1 $5,221.16 $5,221.16 .
50615 Printing & Reproduction 0.0 0.0 $1,035.15 $1,035.15
50620 401k Plan Expenses $980.00 0.2 $980.00 0.2 $100.00 $100.00
50700 Pa~oll Ser:vice , '!: $1,071.64 . ,0.2 $1,071..64 0.2 $4,097.12 $4,097.12
50800. Poslage & Shlpplng,Sllverdale "."p $138.24 '0.0 $138.24 0.0 $17,897.07 $17,897.07
50900 Rent - Silverdale $6,347.00 1.0 $6,347.0~ 1.0 $110,813.69 $110,813.69
50901 Rent ~ Storage $4,185.00 0.7 $4,185.00 0.7 $2,580.00 $2,5BO.00.. ,",,,,, __...~l~ !l:1n 01::115 1.6 $10,013.16 1.6 $14,694.06 $14,894.06

...... nl:'n..,,, !I:~RfiO ::\4
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, In - Consolidated

Income Statement
Consolidated Baals

January 1, 2010 January 1, 2010 January 1, 2009 January 1, 2009
Seplembar 30, 2010 % September 30, 2010 % September 30, 2009 September 30, 2009

51055 Travel - Lodging 0.0 0.0 $910.43 $910.43
51060 Travel- Meals Employee $74.96 0.0 $74.96 0.0 $505.47 $505.47
51065 Travel - Entertainment 0.0 0.0 $23.89 $23.89

Total Operating Expense $277 .862.24 44.1 $277.862.24 44.1 $1,037,536.94 $1,037,536.94

Other Expenses
$5,582.42 $5,562,4250020 Cleerlng Aocount 0.9 0.9 ($29,780.14) ($29,780.14)

Tolal Other Expenses $5,582.42 0.9 $5,582.42 0.9 ($29,780,14) ($29,780.14)

--
Net Income ($144,674.96) -29.8 ($144,574.96) -29.8 $183,904.86 $183,904.86

I
i,

i

I
I
i

I
i

I
j
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Anchor Bay Insuran~ Managers Inc MaryTunls, Examiner
10/21/2010 4:58 PM .

Cash Transfers Key Bank AccountS (Transfer Out) Transfer In

Premium Trust
Account (Cash Out) . Operating Account

Month Date or Cash In (Cash Out) or Cash In Financial Records- Journal Entry Description

2007 Jan (25,000.00) 25,000.00 Per Sally Cabbeli's Worksheet

2007 Aug (65,000.00) 65,000.00 Per Sally Cabbeli's Worksheet

2007 Nov (40,000.00) 40,000.00 Per Sally Cabbeli's Worksheet

2007 Dec (75,000.00 75,000.00 Per Sally Cabbeli's Worksheet

2008 Jan .1/8/08 (25,000.00) 25,000;00 WA SLA to Operating

2008 Mar 3/5/08 (10,000.00) 10,OOQ;00 WA SLA to Operating

Note: Paid Washington State SurplUs Line Taxes out of the
operating account In 2008 offsetting the loans taken from

2007 Taxes 251,144.00 (251,144.00) the Premium Trust Account

2008Seo 9/19/08 (100,000.00) 100,000.00 From tax reserve in trust to operating

2008 Nov 11/12/08 (20,000.00 20,000.00 From tax fund to be repaid

2008 Nov 11/28/08 (20,000.00) 20,000.00 5LA taxes transfer

2009 Jan 1/6/09 . (10,000:00' 10,000.00 From WA 5LA tax reserve

2009 'Apr 4/1/09 (25,000.00) 25,000.00 Taxes to be returned to Trust

2009Jun 6/9/09 (10,000.00) 10,000.00 WA SLA tax funds on loan to operating

2009 Aug 8/3/09 (25,000.00) 25,000.00 Cash - Premium Trust 8397

2009 Oct 10/28/09 (2,000.00) 2,000.00 Borrow from TaxeS

Total 2007 through September 3D, 2010 Premium Trust
(452,OOO.OO) 452,000.00 funds borrowed for Operating Expenses

2009 Dec 12/.10/09 22,000.00 (22,000.00) Transfer partial tax funds back to Trust

2009 Dec 12/14/09 50,00Q;00 (50,000.00) Transfer tax reserve to Trust

2010 Jan 1/14/10 51,000.00 (51,000.00) Trarisfer to Trust Operating capital

Total 2007 through September 30,2010 return of funds to .
123,000.00 (123,000.00) PremIum Trust account from the Operating Account

I, Sally Cabbell, CFO of Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc., have reviewed this schedule arid it appears to accurately reflect the cash
transfers from the Premium Trust Bank Account to the Operating Bank Account to fund operating expenses of Anchor Bay. The.
Washington State Surplus Line taxes for 2007 were paid out of the operating account In March 2008.

S/I/I", . (J~J(l!/ (). .4.4J//~ I<I/z..t/I V
Print Name / r ISlgn Name & Date
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In Re the Matter of:
OIC Case#: '

ANCHORBAY IN"SURANCE
MANAGERS INC.

nECLARATION OF BALLY
CABBELL

L Sally Cabbell, under penalty ofperjury under the laws of the State of Washington,

. declare that the following facts are'Pltrsonally lq1ownto me, and, 'if called upon to

do so) I could and would testify competently to them.

1. I was in Human Resource/Compensation consulting with PricewaterhouseCooPers
accounting finn and have an accounting background. I originally came to work for
Anchor Bay on a consulting basis, In 2003 I became an employee and in 2005 took over
supervision of the accounting department with 3 accounting specialists.

2. My responsibilities include all traditional accounting transaction, including reconciling
all commission statements, reconciling the bank accounts, maintaining the financial
records, and 'Preparing the check payments. I currently work about 2 days per week; 1 in
the, office and 1 from home. "

# 3.

, 4.

Anchor Bay maintains two bank accounts; a premium'trust account and an operating
account. In 2008, we began using some of the premium trust account tax monies to fund
the operating account. Anchor Bay was experiencing a severe cash flow'problem. We
were depositing the premiums collected, including inspection fees, sales tax and stampinl
fees, into the premium trust account and moving some of ~he tax reserve funds to the
operating account to cover payroll and other operating expenses. We were unaware that
premium tax monies had to be maintained in a trust account.

Bank Loans. Anchor Bay has 2 loans outstanding with KeyBank. William Tarmer
borrowed $100,000 and $250,000 and now owes about $72,000 in total~ $3,178.39 and
.$68,794.07. We had to submit financials to the bank every ,quarter the first year, then
once a year after that. .

5. For 2 years, I recommended to Bill Tanner that he close the Seattle office but he firmly
believed that we could make a go ofit W'e closed the office at the end of 2006, when we
lost First Specialty -- which that office had used almost exclusively -- and the two
producers and a staffmernber, seeing the writing on the wall, took other jobs.

6. Anchor Bay's Income Statements have reported a net operating loss for at least the last 5
from at least 2005 through 2009, as well as 2010 year-to-datetl1fough September 30th

• •

DECLARATION OF Sally Cabbell, CFO
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7. The books of account are not yet closed for 2Q09. 1 We are. still waiting for adjusting
entries from the external accountant. We have not had an audit performed in several
years and this accountant is the tax preparer.

8. Rent on the Silverdale Office was 8 months in arrears at September 30, 20I O. The
Income Statement for the nine month period ending September 30, 2010 only shows 1
monthly payment of $6,347.00. The situation is okay with the landlord as the building is
in need of repair and not at full occupancy. Anchor Bay paid another 3 months this
month (October), leaving us 6 months in arrears at October 18, 2010. We have paid 4 , .
months rent and should have paid Wmonths. """'P~ ~-- -UI',u-I-,.,W. De" ft· 4 w'2..Po"f'&t- •.•i'q , ~~ , (.~.

,9. The Operating Accounts are maintained on a caSh basis. The Trust transactions are
maintained on an accrual basis. Therefore, there are unpaid operating expenses we have
not recorded in the financial books of account and I am tracking them on a spreadsheet. I
estimate that we owe about $271,000 to entities other than insurance carriers, of which
only payroll taxes, employee deductions and long term liabilities are recorded. This
would leave approximately $170,000 in expenses being tracked off the bo\,"" -

(a) The unpaid rent is part of the unrecorded experlses.

(h) Overland Solutions is owed over $30,000 in unrecorded expenses.

We intend' to pay all overdue accounts in full midDecember when we receIve the earn out
portion of the November 2009 sale of the book ofbusiness to Hull.

10. The Balance Sheet and Income Statemerlts were generated (printed) dir;ectly from the
Agency Information Manager System. Anchor Bay has paid the required fees to be on
maintenance The Balance Sheet Current Liabilities accounts may not be correct as it does
not reflect the abovementioned operating accounts payable.

(a) Some of the debit balances relate back to problems with the 2005 accounting system
conversion from QuickBooks to Agency Information Manager. Other debit balances
are correct such as payroll taxes withheld, not yet due, etc.

(h) Other debit balances may relate to having to make adjustrnerlts/corrections to invoices
that are already erltered into the system. Invoices once posted, carmot be easily ,
changed if an error occurs or the amount to be paid changes, therefore, adjusting
entries will have to be made. Some debit balances are a result of posting to the
wrong account numbers which will be corrected with the adjusting erltries.

(c) The 401K Employee Contribution debit balance of $17,200.84 goes back to 2008 and
relates to payments to American Funds. A portion of this is a result ofposting to the
wrong account. A self-audit is underway to determine where the erroneous entries

1The books for 2009 have now been closed. In a conversation with the accounting finn, I was told that they had not
prepared any adjnsting entries as yet bnt I can continne to make adjusting entries as 1fInd them in the l3 ili month of
2009 and if they fmd more at this year end, they could be made with the end of year 2010 review aud closing.

'"''''r-I I\O"TlnN nF S",lIv Gabbs!L CFO

I

I
I
J



oecured. All monies deducted have been submitted to Ameriean Funds which has
made its final distributions to the participants upon closure of the plan.

(d) In answer to your question about distribU:tions~ I stated that Bill Tanner has
periodically not taken payroll checks, but will take a distribution when he needs to,
also if the corporation paid American Funds for the 401k, Billis 401k loan payment
would be includ~dandis offset as a distribution. There is nothing in the general
ledger account to record deferred compensation but that is correct accounting in a
sub-S Corporation. '

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF. WASHINGTON
STATE THAT THE FOREGOrnG IS TRUE AND CORRECT,

•
I
I
I
I,
I

i

I
!

Dated this 1LO 'cz. day of t2~. ,2010.

.~
Signature ofDeclarant

ot::CLARATION OF Sally Cabbell, CFO
Page 3 01 3

Cell phone # 3" t) f "50/, i./ 'I/} i
Work phone# "3 (.0. ? /3, S"'IS-t' X '2- if "­

Home phone # 3C;P I tf3 7· g-fI B
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In Re the Matter of:
OlC Case #:

ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE
. MANAGERS INC.

DECLARATION OF WILLIAM H.
TANNER

I, William H. Tanner under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of

Washington, declare that the following facts are personally known to me, and, if called upon to

do so, 1. could and would testify competently to them.

1. 2000 Anchor Bay was establishedafter my wife and I left employment with M J Kelly
Northwest, Inc., which was owned by jim Adams of Springfield, Missouri..AfichorBay
was incorporated in May 2000 and began operations in September of that same year.

2. Anchor Bay generated approximately $1.2 million in premium volume in 2000. Most of
.this business was placed in an exclusive Restaurant, Bar & Tavern Program written with
Interstate Fire & Casualty (WA - non-admitted) and Interstate Indemnity Company (AK
& OR - admitted). Additional general lines binding contracts were held with Century
Surety Group and Atlantic Casualty, both non-admitted.

3. The Restaurant, Bar & Tavern Program grew exponentially and, initially, we were
extremely profitable. Believing that we could not build a long-term business on a single
program, we reinvested the vast majority of our profits back into the business, in an
attempt to grow our binding authority and brokerage books of business.

4. We lost the Restaurant, Bar & Tavern Program carrier in early 2004 but, by that time, the
market was hard, especially for homebuilders. We had strong binding authority and
brokerage markets and our contractor book grew rapidly. Indeed, our writings grew so
quickly that our total productiongrew, despite running off most of a $9 niil restaurant
program.

5. I provided my Producer Profile marketing package relating the sales volume as:"

Year Premium Volume

2000 $1,241,626

2001 $4,356,480
.

2002 $9,688,692

2003 $15,774,193

DECLARATION OF William H, Tanner
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2004 $16,338,486

2005 $17,271,305

2006 $20,803,874

2007 $15,199,288

2008 $10,394,745

This marketing package was last updated in 2008. Projecting forward, we had or
anticipate premium production as follows:

2009 $7,000,000 (See #7 below)

2010 $1,800,000 to 2,000,000

2011 $4,000,000 to $6,000,000

We currently have a little over $1.5 mil in in-force business. I hope to close the year at
about $2,000,000, but $1.8 mil might be a little more realistic.

6. In 2007 the fIrm began to experience fmancial diffIculty due to several factors:

(a) We opened a Seattle brokerage Office in approximately 2003 and by 2006 had grown
(both offIces combined) to almost 50 full-time staff. The Seattle OffIce never
generated the premium volume anticipated and overhead expenses were high. We
lost something in the range of $20,000 to $30,000 a month for roughly three years.
Despite recommendations to shut. it down, I kept the operation going far longer than I
should have.

(b) The economy softened resulting in a loss of the building contractor segment of the
business. The homebuilding economy, our principal business segment, skipped the
recession and went straight into a depression.

(c) Additionally, of course, the hard market ended and the soft market began. We
experienced greater competition at lower rates and with stronger fonns than we had in
the past, further cutting into our production. In many cases, admitted carriers
reclaimed business that they had sloughed off in the hard market.

(d) First Specialty tenninated their binding authorities nationwide at the end of 2006,
which was a devastating blow to us. We were their largest General Agent,
nationwide, with production that exceeded $9 mil. With them, we alone had binding
authority on contractor classes that were generally only written in brokerage markets
- at much higher minimum premiums. When we lost them, we had no competitive
replacement markets available to us. We might have written an account for $5,000 in
2006, for example, and have' been forced to offer a $15,000 minimum premium
renewal. As a result, our production plummeted.

DECLARATION OF William H. Tanner
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(e) I invested heavily in technological innovations that were designed to gain a
considerable competitive advantage. We designed and copyrighted our Multi-Carrier
Quoting System - which allowed us to quote most of our binding authority carriers
simultaneously. No longer would an agent have to fill out multiple applications and
go to multiple General Agents in order to demonstrate to their client that they has
"shopped the account". This system was exceedingly popular.

We also designed and copyrighted our "Certs on Line" system - that allowed agents
to generate their own certificates of insurance, including additional insured
endorsements, on line, in real time. This was a big advantage with contractors, who
were often thrown off ajob site because the General Agent didn't get a Certificate of
Insurance out quickly enough. And it greatly reduced agent E&O exposures as well.

The.d_evelopmell.t of these te~hJ1910gicflljnnQyationsrepresented (guessing) at least a '
$300,000 investment, spread over roughly 3-4 years. Unfortunately, between the
souring economy and the loss of First Specialty, even these innovations were not
sufficient to overcome the business that we were losing.

7. We anticipated writing approximately $7 million in 2009. However, as we were losing
money, in November we sold off more than 70% of our remaining business to Hull &
Company. We retained a little over $1 mil in Restaurant, Bar & Tavern Program business
and about $100,000 in Environmental business. We have a 5-year non-compete
agreement that applies to business in Alaska, California, Idaho, Oregon and Washington
only. In those states, we can only write restaurants, bars, taverns and nightclubs, as well
as enviromnental business. Subject to licensing, of course, we have no restrictions in
other states.

Hull paid the majority of the sale price up front and Anchor Bay expects the final earn
out is more than enough to allow us to pay the past due taxes out of the proceeds before
the end ofthis year.

8. We use Century Surety Company (non-admitted) for our Restaurant, Bar & Tavern
Program. We've had this market since the loss of the Interstate program. Initially, it was
not a competitive market so we lost most of our Interstate program book. Over the years,
however, as they have become more comfortable with our underwriting, the program has
become very competitive and we are once again growing the book.

In addition, we have a dozen or so enviromnental markets and access to several open
brokerage facilities. Virtually all business is written on non-admitted paper. However, at
the present time, almost all of our new business is Restaurant" Bar & Tavern Program
related.

9. Historically, we have financed almost none of our business as retail agents had access to
their own financing deals. Recently, we secured a change to our program such that we no
longer use a 25% minimum eamed premium. As a result, we have introduced a financing
plan (using Premium Finance Specialists) that allows an approximately 9% down

DECLARATION OF William H. Tanner
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payment. Since introducing this plan, we seem to be financing roughly 80% of bound
accounts. In my estimation, this is such a huge competitive advantage that it will have a
very large positive impact on our cash flow. Not only do we make 1% on the aggregate
of the declining balances, but we anticipate the availability of this financing to drive
considerable new business our way.

10. Commissions. Anchor Bay receives 21.5% commission on Restaurant, Bar & Tavern
Program premiums, and smaller amounts on non-program brokerage business. As a rule,
we generally incentivize the retail producer as follows:

(a) Target accounts/new business, 15% (Anchor Bay retains 6.5%, plus fee)
(b) Non-target/renewal business, 10% (Anchor Bay retains 11.5%, plus fee)
(c) Brokerage business, generally 10% (Anchor Bay retains various, plus fee)

Beginning January 1,2011, we are changing the above commission split arrangement
such that we are paying 12.5%, new and renewal, on program business submitted usirig'
our new on-line submission system, and 10% on all business submitted any other way.
Retail producers with more than $100,000 in the program will receive an additional 2.5%.
(This system is a proprietary system that we recently launched that allows the agent to
complete the application on line and also allows us to download the data directly into our
rating system instead of having to re-key it.)

Most appointed agents are not required to pay in advance to bind coverage. There may
be exceptions, on a judgment call basis, for agents not yet appointed, newer agents ­
especially newer Farmers agents, agents with whom we've had collection issues in the
past, etc. Any non-pays are sent to collections for the earned premium.

11. Historically, we have always taken a very conservative position as respects our trust
account. We not only left premiums in the trust account, we also left all taxes and even
inspection fees there as well. We didn't want to ever confuse those large sums with our
own funds and we believed that you can never have too much in trust.

Initially, we didn't know if it was required that we keep taxes in the trust account; we
made the decision to do so on our own, out of a sense ofprudence. Likewise, we didn't

'. pay inspection fees out of trust; we just thought it was prudent to keep a safety net in
tnlSt, should there be an error made somewhere and we informally designated the
inspection fees as our safety net.

As we began to lose money on the Seattle office and invest heavily in technological
imlOvation,cash flow became tighter and we decided to move the inspection fees into the
operating account.

As our production continued to shrink, we needed to determine whether or not it was
required that we keep premium taxes in the trust account. I specifically recall phoning
both the DOl and the SLA and asking the question. I know that I didn't get a "Yes - you
must keep the premium taxes in trust" answer - because we would have done so ifI had.

DECLARATION OF William H. Tanner
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Unforhmately, however, I don't recall (and certainly didn't document) what answer I got,
if any. But I did make at least some effort to find out.

In addition, I might well have read WAC 284-12-080, but only as far as paragraph 2­
which lists specifically what funds may be deposited to the trust account and doesn't
include premium taxes on the list. Or perhaps I read only as far as paragraph 4 - which
lists what funds in the trust account may be used to pay for, and again doesn't specifically
include premium taxes on the list. Or perhaps we read the entire section and just
overlooked the parenthetical afterthought that imposes the requirement in paragraph 5(a)
- or perhaps we thought 5(a) applied only to retailers because there was no requirement.
in it calling for the prompt payment of those funds to anyone other than the insurer or
another producer - meaning, presumably, us.

It doesn't really matter - it was our responsibility to know Whether or not the taxes must
be kept in the trust account and, despite a good faith effort to do so, we apparently
reached the wrong concfuslon.As a result, in part of 2008 -an.dall or almost all of2009,
we kept the premium taxes in the operating account and used them to fund operations,
expecting that we would recoup them, before they were due, upon the sale of our book to
Hull. Unfortunately, we over-estimated the net receipts from the sale and, in order to
continue operations, were not able to pay our taxes in a timely fashion.

Please note that for most, if not all, of2010, we have again returned to including all
premium taxes in the trust account. We do not wish to ever again get in a position where
we cannot pay our premium taxes on time.

12. Staff. Anchor Bay currently has seven (7) employees; four (4) full-time and three (3)
part-time. I am the President and the only working producer. I deal directly with the
referring agent. I am the only employee who negotiates, quotes, and places insurance
with the carrier.

(a) Linda Tanner, (my spouse and a co-owner) Vice President & Secretary. Linda has
worked principally as an underwriter and senior underwriter for Royal Insurance and
Fireman's Fund, as well as on the GA side ofthe business. She is not currently
licensed but has been licensed as an agent and broker in the past (not while at Anchor
Bay). Linda maintains an office at the business but generally works out of our
personal residence, reviewing inspection reports, pre-qualifying accounts, etc. She
may make underwriting and/or pricing recommendations based upon her reviews and
experience, but she does not release quotes and I mayor may not follow her
recommendations.

(b) Sally Cabbell, CFO and Corporate Treasurer, performs the bookkeeping/accounting
work. Sally had previously worked for Pricewatershousecoopers as a consultant in
the Human Resource Compensation consulting practice. Sally works 2 days/week.

(c) Jennifer Denton, my niece is the receptionist and general office clerk. Jennifer also
nms Agency Management System reports for both me and the CFO.

DECLARATION OF William H. Tanner
Page 5 of 6



(d) Kim LaMont is my Underwriting Assistant. She is licensed as an agent but has no
production responsibilities.

(e) Dana Gould (my sister-in-law and Jennifer's mother) performs internet searches and
researches liquor violations for the restaurant and bar program. She also inputs the
data on the application into our Restaurant, Bar & Tavern Program rating system and
performs other clerical tasks as needed. Dana works out of her home.

(f) Max Denton, Jennifer's husband, works 2 days/week as our IT consultant.

13. Until recently, we have charged a broker fee equal to 10% of the premium, subject to a
minimum of $1 00 and a maximum of $250. However, we have recently raised those
minimums and maximums by $25 so as to generate funds to offset some expected losses
associated with the premium financing plan discussed in paragraph 9 (above).

Note that, in addition to the 10% broker .fee, we also generally include'inspection
expensesin our broker fee, instead ofmaldng a separate charge for inspections.

In Washington the physical inspection fee is usually $150 per location. In addition, we
generally order a "liquor inspection" - a clandestine inspection done after 8 PM so as to
observe liquor serving practices, etc that are not viewable during the day, when the
physical inspection is done - and we charge a small "internet inspection fee". We
contract out all Washington physical inspections, and almost all liquor inspections, to
Overland Solutions and all ate intended to be priced at cost.

14. Marketing. Anchor Bay concentrates on maintaining relationships with our current
referring entities and reaching out to retailers who have Restaurant, Bar & Tavern
Program eligible business, via email, snail mail and print media. We have, on occasion,
advertised \:Jy direct mail specifically to restaurant owners but, in such cases, we have
referred them to their agents as we do not sell directly with the public.

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF WASHINGTON
STATE THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

//fz D~?~~~2:0:th~~~__ day of ""O",ct""o",b",er,-__, 2010.

W~ r~ Home phone # (360) 779-5220
Signature of Declarant

Cell phone # (360) 649-8969

William H. Tanner
Printed Name of Declarant

DECLARATION OF William H. Tanner
Page 6 of 6

Work phone # (360) 613- 5455

Email addreSS:btanner@surpluslines.com_
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Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Business Banking Statement
January 31, 2008

page 2 of 5

Beginning balance 12-31-07
42 Additions
134 Subtractions

Ending balance 1.31.08

$408,158.68
+1,030,991.14

.1,256,186.11

$182,963.71

Additions Deposits Date Serial # Source
1-2 2 Customer Deposit $14,483.88
1-2 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plstundorp 1,229.08
1-3 2 Customer Deposit 28,184.53
1-3 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 4,738.38
1-4 2 Customer Deposit 19,197.66
1-7 2 Customer Deposit 36,865.28
1.8 2 Customer Deposit 29,236.93
1-8 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Plslundorp 6,302.48
1-9 2 Customer Deposit 34,323.92
1-9 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 684.80
1-10 2 Customer Deposit 57,312.42
1-10 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 675.20
1-11 2 Customer Deposit 1,085,87
1-14 2 Customer Deposit 186,473.17
1-14 2 Customer Deposit 59,459.08
1-14 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 3,647.96
1-14 2 Customer Deposit 540.00
1-15 2 Customer Deposit 39,731.64
1-16 2 Customer Deposit 37,504.57
1-16 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 10,112.00
1-17 2 Customer Deposit 77,212.81
1-17 Direct· Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 1,480.00
1-16 2 Customer Deposit 42,046.66
1-18 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Pfslundorp 10,193.74
1-22 2 Customer Deposit 70,491.15
1-22 2 Customer Deposit 22,806.94
1-22 2 Customer Deposit 7,791.30
1-22 2 Customer Deposit 6,275.49
1-22 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Pfslundorp 1,680.00
1-23 2 Customer Deposit 12,416.37
1-23 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Plslundorp 812.00
1-24 2 Customer Deposit 65,498.64
1-24 Direct Deposit, Pis 503-223-6450Pfslundorp 10,472.89
1-25 2 Customer Deposit 22,286.71
1-28 2 Customer Deposit 47,138.43

479081028397 - 04731

~I~
77539



/V' n,.

Subtractions
(con't)
Paper Checks • check missing from sequence

Business Banking Statement
January 31, 2008

page 4 of 5

13247 1-23 5,898.75 13254 1~22 1,074.40 13261 1-28
13248 1-23 18,362.50 13255 1-23 8 ,727.30 13262 1-30
13249 1-22 2,907.15 13256 1.23 18,456.80 13263 1-30
13250 1-24 21 ,328.15 13257 1-28 2,596.35 13264 1-31

-'-'13:::.:2=..=5:..;.1__....:..1-=-2::...4:.- -=2"-',1-=3....:..4'-.::.80.=-0 _1~3~2:=:5:=.8__1~-2:c9::..-- -'5::J1,2::..::5"_':9~.7..;:6:...... Paper checks paid
13252 1-24 2,318.40 13259 1-29 212.50
13253 1-24 2,950.20 13260 1.28 2,925.00

42,411.24
850.00
120.00

1,545.19
$538,836.68

Withdrawals Date Serial #

1-15
1-15

1-30
1-31

Location
Cna.tgeoa6k ., Store·# 2
Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Trustcbord 1/08
Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Trustcent 1/08
Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Truststkld 1/08
Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Trustfsic 1/08
Direct Withdrawal , Kbcm Investmentsfund Trans
Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Trustea Nov 07

$1 ,085.87
109,319.41
101,683.25
100,577.39

19,850.40
200,000.00

2,160.50

Transfers Date Serial #
1-2

1..8
1-9
1-10
1-15
1-22

Destination
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To ·DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Total subtractions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$22,904.92. _.- ;----.,
...-:Z;909.27 _",

15,421.45
25,000.00
9}02.16
4,283.52

40,064.14
38,818.16
12,891.66
10,677.33

$1,256,186.11

Fees and
charges See your Account Analysis statement for details.

479081028397 - 04731
77539
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Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR SAY INSURANCE. MANAGERS , INC.

PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Business Banking Statement
March 31, 2008

page :2 of 5

Beginning balance 2~29-08

38 Additions
153 Subtractions

Ending balance 3-31-08

$434,805.17
+1,208,274.14

-1,227,085.24

$415,994.07

Auditions . Deposits Date Serial #
3~3 2
3-3
3..4- 2
3-4 2
3-4
3-5
3-6 2
3~6 2
3~6

3-7
3-10
3-11 2
3-12 2
3-12 2
3~13 2
3-13
3-14 2
3-14
3-17
3-18 2
3-18
3-19 2
3-19 2
3~19

3-20 2
3~20

3-21 2
3-21
3-24
3~25 2
3-25 2
3-25
3-26 2
3-26
3-27 2

479081028397 -04731
80903

Source
Customer Deposit ' $30,356.73/
Direct Deposit , Pfs 50~22~6450Pfsfundorp 6,849.89'/
Customer Deposit 23,309.69/

Customer Deposit 27,525.1.1/
Direct Deposit , Pfs 503-22~6450Pfs1undorp' 3,351.80 ...
Direct Deposit , P1s 503~223.6450Pfsfundorp 2,773,51 ".
Direct Deposit , Pfs 50~22~6450Pfsfundorp 18,946.40 ....
Customer Deposit 148,609.33 ~

Customer Deposit 81,648.44 ~

Customer Deposit 11,833.15'"
Customer Deposit 41 ,478.67....
Direct Deposit , Pis 50~22~6450Pfsfundorp 6,804.00"-
Customer Deposit 39.726.06 ,,'
DIrect Deposit , pts 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 5,088.00 -'
Direct Deposit , Pfs 503-22~6450Pfsfundorp 5,719.61 ,...
Customer Deposit 227,317.00"'-
Direct Deposit , Pfs 503-22~6450Pfsfundorp 8,118.53 .....
Customer Deposit 53,592.41"-
Customer Deposit 7,761.17"
Direct Deposit , Pts 503-22~6450Pfsfundorp 2,776.50"-
Customer Deposit 76,155.40/
Direct Deposit , Pfs 503-22~6450Pfsfundorp 2,092.60"-
Customer Deposit 28,062.40-
Direct Deposit, Pfs 50~22~6450Pfsfundorp 27,244.50/
Direct Deposit, Pfs 50~223-6450Pfsfundorp 2,266.40 "
Customer Deposit 62,248.04 ,,'
Custamer Deposit 41 ,543.72 r
Direc1 Deposit , Pfs 50~223-6450Pfsfundorp 1,153.50""'
Customer Deposit 18,670.16/
Direct Deposit , Pfs 50~22~6450Pfsfundorp 1,372,80/
Customer Deposit 39,453.13,'"



Subtractions
(consQ
Paper Checks • check missing from sequence

Business Banking Statement
March 31, 2008

page 4of5

13491 3-21 21 ,250.00 r':.-'1:..::3:=.50:::..:0~_=-3--=2.:::.b ::::.27=....::2::::..1.:.,..4.:.....(- 13509 3-25
13492 3-25 1,828.04 ( .13501 3-20 7,796.05 13510 3-26

-.:....:13'-'4'-=-9.::;...3_--'3=--=2...;..4 --=6;,;:;3.:.::2.:,.:;.8-:.-4\13502 3-21 7,318.42 \ 13511 3-24
13494 3-24 3,559.93 \13503 3-24 1 164.61 13512 3-31
13495 3-24 8,277.61 «3504 3-24 12:283.84 13513 3-27
13496 3-24· 5,038.70 3505 3-21 945.20 *13515 3-31
13497 3-25 5,207.55 13506 3-25 1,352.18 *13517 3-31
13498 3-25 1,038.70 ~3507 3-24 772.14 aper checks paid
13499 3-20 1,877.29 u ~3508 3-27 . 22.56

Wifhdrawals Date Serial #\. LocatIon

12.71
189.23

3,403.15
31735.20

9,742,40
80.00

3,930.99
$633,947.30

3-14 Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Truststrkd 3/08 $122,555.86/
qS,4"1f..td..,.-~'\~."8% ...-;3-14 DIrect Withdrawal ,Anchor Bay Trustcbord 3/08 95,259.78~

, '. J- 3-14 Direct Withdrawal , Anchor Bay Trustcent 3/08 68,350.08.,1
. fA 0 ~ a.~\S, .::;...3-~1~4------=D::..:I:..::re:.::.ct~'Ni:'-:'I~th:..::d::..:ra~w.;.:a.::;...I....L,...;..A.;;.;n""ch..:..;0:..:.r--=B;::;.ay'--:::T::'-ru=s:..:.tf::-'s:-"ice:...-.::3/"'-0::..:8=------~--'1:.:;3'-'-',5::.;;4;.::8..:..::.0'-"'0 ....

3~26 Direct Withdrawal , Kbcm Investmentsfund Trans 100,000.00'/
3-28 Direct Withdrawal 1 Anchor Bay Trustca 1/08 1,984.62 "

Transfers Date Serial #
3-3
3~4

3-5
3-5
3-11
3-19
3-20
3-24
3-25

Destination
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trt To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DOA 0000479081028389
Trf To DOA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
Total subtractions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$24,436.13--
14,463.63.....
10,000.00 ....
2,941.60 ......
9,137.41 ,...

80,750.25 ,.r

6,584,27.1
12,640.43.....
8,237.75'"
5,594.26 ,..,.

16,653.87.....
$ 1,227,085.24

Stop .:...:N..:::umc.:..:=.:be:=:.r_~ C~h~e~ck~da~te:::.__ ____'A~m~a~u~nt~ ._:.Is""s~ue::..od"-- -'Ex=p~ires:=...

payments 12671 8-31-07 $59.39 3~24-0B 9-24-08/'

All stop payments expire on date shown s unless you notify Us.

Fees and
charges See your Account Analysis statement for details.

479081028397 - 0473·1
80903



Business Banking Statement"
September 30, 2008

page 2 of 5

479081028397

KeyNotes (can't)

- Get details about your credit history from all three major credit bureaus in
one convenient report .
- Look for suspicious charges, unfamifiar or delinquent accounts -signs that
someone is using your identity "
- Requesting your report will not negativelyatrect your credit rating or score

With your My Privacy Matters membership, you'll also receive ongoing protection
through continuous monitoring ofyour credit profile with weekly PActivity
Alerts" notifying you when critical changes occur on your credit record. Visit
key.Gom/idtheftplan to learn more.

·Services prov~ded by TransUnion Interactive, Inc.

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS. INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Beginning balance 8-31-08
36 Additions
116 Subtractions
Ending balance 9·30-08

$488,887.89
+1,244,096.72'
" -935,284.05
$797,700.56

J6,867.64-

./ 7,055.69 ..

2,552.29 ...
J123,886.17-.
../44,724.64­
../ 11 ,737.50~

J 1780.80­
46,281.93-

. v: 473.06­
7119,425.94­

v 591.50 ..
374.a9i/

J 1,169".85 ..

J250,961.26­
v 524,00~

vi ,167,50 ...
'\l 7,329.28""

74,025.05 .....
/1500.00: f/

834.52 "~

::Ii 08,871 .08 ...
91,743.20 ..

" 734,635.22· ".il-3 \/
:z;t:)1Q,i1 <}10,966.20 ~

..e:\ "2.~G' 62,840.73­
&6,347.31 ...

Customer Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp

Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Direct De osit Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundor
Customer De osit

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp

Customer Deposit
Direct D osit, Premium Finance Ins. Pmnt
Customer Deposit

Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit

Dlrect Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfund0rP
Customer Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Customer Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit

Customer Deposit

Source

Direct De osit Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundor
Customer Deposit

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Customer Deposit

"Customer Deposit'

Additions
Deposits Date Seria/#

9-2
9-3 2
9-3 2
9-3 2
9-3
9-4 2
9-5
9-8 2
'9-8
9-9 .2
9-9
9-10 2
9-12 2
9-12 2
9-16 2
9-16 2
9-16 .2
9-16
9-17 2
9-17
9-18 2
9-18
9-18 2
9-18 2
9-19 2
9-19
9-19 2

479081028397 - 04731
80027



Business Banking Statement
September 30. 2008

page 4 of 5

479081028397

Subtractions
(con't)

Withdrawals Date

9-12
9-12
9-12
9-12 .
9-18
9-19
9-19
9-30

SerIB/#
2
2

2

Location
Char ebackStore # 2

Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcent 9/08
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Truststkld 9/08
Direct Withdrawal Anchor Ba Trustcborc 9/08
Direct Withdrawal Anchor Ba Trustmrkl"P mnt
Char eback Store # 2
Internet TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay TrustslaJ~ly08

Transfers.. Date Serial # Destination

9-10
9-15

9-19
9-22
9-26

Trf To DDA 0000479081028389 4731
TrfTe DDA 0000479081028389 4731
TrfTo DDA 0000479081 028389 4731
TrfTe DDA 0000479081 028389 4731
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731
Total subtractions

Fees and
cha~ges See your Account Analysis statement for details.

3 (}1o , 9/
--- -~~--~-_._----'7 t!;2.?' J '3

/3?r. '2- (;
479081028397 - 04731
80027



Business Banking Statement
November 30,2008·

page 2 of 5

479081026397

KeyNotes (can't)

The holiday season is just around the corner, and the Key Possibilities
Mastercard prepaid cards* are the perfect gift for everyone. To make your
business holiday gift giving easy, you can also purchase cards in bulle

The Key Possibilities cards are available in any denomination from $25 " $2500
and can be used anywhere Mastercard debit cards are accepted. To purchase Key
Possibilities cards, please visit your local Key Center.

*Subject to the terms of the Key Possibilities Cardh.older Agreement. Fees may
apply, Key Possibilities Card is: NOT FDIC INSURED - MA Y LOSE VALUE - NOTA
DEPOSIT

Xey's automated. telephone banking service, 1-888-KEY4BIZ·(1-888-539-4249),
offers instant acceSs to account information 24 hours a day. You can transfer.
funds between accounts, obtain balances and information regarding cleared
transactions. Ifs simple to use and all you need is your account number and
your Key Telephone Access code. If at any time you need assistance using Key's
automated banking services press zero and a phone representative will be there
to assist you.

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCEMANAGERS,INC.
PREMIUM TRUSTACCOUNT

Beginning balance 10-31-08
32 Additions .
112 Subtractions
Ending balance 11~30~08

$488,416.56
+738.050.72
':'874.095.95
$352,371.33

Additions
Deposits Date Seria/# Source

11-3 2 Customer Deposit $60,551.74
11~3 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 554.40,
11-4 Direct Deposit. Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 2,495.50
11-5 Direct Deposit, Pts 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 944.00
11-6 2 Customer Deposit 64,276.11
11-7 2 Customer Deposit 30,634.70
11-7 2 Customer Deposit 3,105.66
11-7 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 1,927.50
11-7 Direct Deposit, Premium Finance Ins. Pmnt. 1,678.50
11-10 2 CLlstomer Deposit 67.970.79
11-10 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 2,223.10
11-12 2 Customer Deposit 26,059.85
11-12 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp: 1,460.50
11-13 2 Customer Deposit 73,304.60
11-13 2 Customer Deposit 32,143.69
11-13 Direct Deposit, Pfs 50S-223-6450Pfsfundorp 46.33
11-14 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 5,397.60
11-18 2 Customer Deposit 122,023.70
11-18 2 Customer Deposit 17,296.80
11-18 2 Customer Deposit 7,603.35
11-18 Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 1,490.20

479081028397 - 04731
74584



Subtractions
(con't)

Paper Checks

Business Banking Statement
November 30, 2008'

page 4 of 5

479081028397

,* check missing from sequence

Checl< Date Amount Check Date Amount Check Date Amount
14416 11-25 6,675,05

Paper Checks Paid $453,208.80

. See your Account Analysis statement for details.

Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Truststkl11/08
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcent 11/08,

. ,Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbrd 11/08
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustak 3Rd Qtr
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustea 9/08

Fees and
charges

Withdrawals Date Serial #
11-13
11-13
11-:13
11-24
11-25

Transfers Date Seriaf#

11-7
11-12
11-12
11-18
11-18
11-25
11-28

Location

Destination

TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To 'DBA 000047908t028389
TriTo DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
TriTo DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTe DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTe DDA 0000479081028389
Total subtractions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

,4731

$103,684.34./
97,450.71./
43,902.56 v -­

6,400.26 V"

531.45 v'

$39,434.27/·
20',0-00,00·'
10,409.37 "
22,773.24
22,275.34~""

34,025.61""
20,000.00 .....

$874,095.95

11/
(~-I1Vf // f 2-2, 7-;;',2'1

~?, 7/>,2-~

479081028397 - 04731
74584



Business Banking Statement
January 31,2009'

page 3 of 6

47908102B397

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Beginning balance 12-31-08
38 Additions
111 Subtractions
Ending balance 1~31~09

$407,480.14
+579,312.79
-721 ,691.21
$265,101.72

Source

Key Capture Deposit' 39,721.99

Key Capture Deposit 57,767,71

Customer Deposit 1f\ h e i.. c~ 92.00

Key Capture Deposit 4,508.40
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp k9A- 3=4,--- 1,716.76 0
Key Capture Deposit 514.32

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp . 717.00

Key Capture Deposit 32,699.76
Key Capture Deposit 35,277.04
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 1,449.00

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-"6450Pfsfundorp 1,767.92

Key Capture Deposit 33,379.11

Key Capture Deposit 16,701.10

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 1,393.60
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsftlndorp 880.00
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 2,808.68
Key Capture Deposit 3,234.99
Key Capture Deposit 14,601.19

Key Capture Deposit 44,388.38

Key Capture Deposit 14,058.21

Key Capture Deposit 48,346.92
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 3,429.74

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 3,226.05

Key Capture Deposit 31,723.15

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503~223-6450Pfsfund6rp 670.40

Key Capture Deposit 18.299.23
Key Capture Deposit 12,086.73

Key Capture Deposit 10,807;56

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450PfsfLindorp 4,381.60

Direct Deposit. Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 5,772.00
Direct Deposit, Allegiance Direcmwpf Fundi 1,150.45

Key Capture Deposit 19,251.49

Key Capture Deposit . .12,498.76 ---
Key Capture Deposit 7,486.66

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp $652.80

. Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp 978.08

Additions
Deposits Date Serial #

1-2
1-5 . 2
1-5 2
1-5
1-6 2
1-6 2
1-6
1-7
1-7
1-8 2
1-8 2
1-12 2
1-12 2

VI:.! f) I L{ :) 1 7 1-12

I '-! ("{J ~
1-13
1-14 2

{fj£jl t! 1-14 2
1-15 2
1-16
1-20 2
1-20 2
1-20
1-21 2
1-21 2
1-21
1-21
1-23
1-26 2
1-26 2
1-27 2
1-27 2
1-27
1-27 2
1-28
1-29 2
1-29 2
1-29
1-30

Total additions $579,312.79

479081028397 - 04731
74285





- • ••
Business ,,-_nking Statement·

April 30, 20.09 ..
page 2of6

.
479081028397

KeyNotes (can't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance limit.

Please read and retain this information with all of your Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

May is KeyBank SmaJi Business Month!
Stop in your branch from May 1 through May 31 to find out about special offers
avaifabfe just for Small Business owners!

Key Business OnJine®
Productivity, simplified. . .
Get back to the business you love by reducing the time you spend on the tasks of

- - accouhting and banking. Key Business Online helps you gain new clarity and
control of your company's cash flow. .
- Simple dashboard format, designed exclusively for businesses
- Secure access to accounts gives you an instant overview ofyour cash position
- Control timing and delivery of payments and transfers
- Delegate access' to employees or trusted advisors

Experience Kr9Y Business Online for yourself. Try the demo at key.com/KBOdemo
or call1~8B8~KEY4B{Z®'

Subject to terms and conditions of the Key Business Online C!greement.
KeyBank is Member FDIC. Key.com is a federally registered sendee mark of
KeyCorp.
©2009 KeyCorp

Time to reorder banking supplies for your business checking account? KeyBank has
a wide variety of, business products to meet ever-changing needs of your
business. With products ranging from three-to-a-page checks and computer/laser
checks (compatible with over 1400 types of software) to deposit tickets, stamps,
and security. deposit bags, you're sure to find something you need. Calf
800-503-2345 to speak with abasiness product expert, or go online to
expertchecks.com to place your order today! Your satisfaction is always
guaranteed when you buy checks and accessories. through KeyBank.
.
KeyBank now offers personalized stationery and accessories! Visit
retaifdirect.comlkeybank for more details!

/<IS'I'l'S'" 5"/.­
I y q01 -:::; 0 }-,.,

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, ING.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

~dditions

Beginning balance 3-31-09
4TAdditions
132 Subtractions
Ending balance 4-30-09

$311,440.43
+927,113.41
-798.216.11
$440,337.73

Deposits Date

4-1

'9081028397 - 04731
644

Seria/# Source

Dlrect Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp $9,601.58



'~ ...
}',

i

Subtractions
(con't)

Withdrawals Date Seria/# Location

~

April 30,2009
page 5 of 6 ..

4790810283~7

Transfers

'.

4-30

Date
"4-1
4-1
4-2

. 4-16
4-24
4-30

SeriaJ#

Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustoverdue?? ......---__J'6;004.8'O

Fees and
charges See your Account Analysis statement for details.

479081 028397 - 04731
73644 .



Business Banking Statement
June 30,2009

page 2 of 5

479081028397

KeyNotes . (can't)

that sweep lo other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance limit.

Please read and retain this information with all of your Account Agreements and
o;sciasures. .

1-888~KEY4BfZ®
Direct business safuuons are only a phone calf away.

Call 1-888·KEY48IZ for immediate access to your KeyBank business accounts.
Get answers from financial specialIsts, eVen outside traditional banking hours.
Plus, you can call toff-free from anywhere in the United Stat~s.

,-We are dedicated to providing exceptional financial products and innovative
services. We spend a gffJ8f deal of time listening fa our customers' concerns,
analyzing, researching and communicating with support areas to resolve issues
in a courteous and efficient manner.

We're here to help.
Any time you have questions about your accounts, call1-888-KEY4BfZ and discover
why service is the Key difference.

Member FDIC

Key4Women is a dynamic program offering networking opportunities, ongoing
education, access to capital and customized solutions to women business owners
across the country. Key4Women has, since 2005, lent $3 biJlion to quaJified
women-owned businesses, and has pledged to lend another $3 billion to
women-owned businesses by 2012. Lean more about the program and enroJ! by
visiting key. com/women today.

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Beginning balan'ce 5-31-09
34 Additions
94 Subtractions
Ending balance 6·30-09

$397,242.06
+858,132.48
-790,052.50
$465,322.04

Additions
Deposits Date Serial # Source

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Oeposlt
774.15
212.5Q

26,909.01

4,467.20
2,380.00

25,228.36
53,547.15

33,892.27
$14,204.80

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp

Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223~6450Pfsfundorp

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

DIrect Deposit. Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
2

2

2

2

2

6-8

6-4
6-4

6-2
6-4
6-4

6-1
6-2

479081028397.- 04731
77669



Business Banking Statement ._
June 30, 2009

page 4 of 5

479081028397

Subtractions
(con't)

Paper Checks ~ check missing from sequence

Check Date Amount Check Date Amount Check Date
15122 6-16 8.715,45 15130 6-24 3,874.40 15140 6-30
15123 6·15 34,057.68 15131 6-22 4.328.20 15141 6-29
15124 6-26 3.50 15132 6-22 18.73 15142 6-29
15125 6·19 2Q,104.00 15133 6-22 5,018.85 "15145 6·25
15126 6-18 5,932.15 *15135 6-26 5,641.45 "15147 6·26
15127 6-19 11,354.60 "'15137 6-26 6,065.50 15148 6-30
15128 6-19 371.25 15138 6·29 4,154.70 "15150 6·26
15129 6-24 1,542.40 15139 6-30 2,275.05 *15152 --6·26

_.--

Paper Checks Paid

Amount
619.16

1,299.05
. 3,359.03

336.71
1,629.34

13,181.58
6,760.89

771.29
$348,028.39

Withdrawals Date Serial #
6-11
6-11

6-11
6-19

Locatfon
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Truststrkld6/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbord 6/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbrok 6/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcblnd 6/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustmontp 6/09
Direct Withdrawal, Adb Bank Loan Pmts

$121,703.12
81 ,692.70
47,273.74
20,319.33
18,693.60

1,840.42

Transfers Date Serial # Destination

::-6---::4'-- --cT=rf-:::T=='o=-._-=D:-:D:':A"'-'O=0:.:;0~04_;.:7:=::970=_81:_:0~2:::_83::.:8 :-:9;---+.47::-:3:-:-1 ~$2:::;3~,458A9
6-9 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731 12,713.46
6~9 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731 10,000.00
6-11 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731 19,539.60
6-16 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389 4731 42,286.67
6-23 TrfTo DDA0000479081028389 4731 31,332.16
6-30 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028369 4731 11,170.82

Total subtractions $790;052.50

Fees and
charges See your Account Analysis statement for detaifs.

479081028397 - 04731
77669



Business Banking Statement
August 31, 2009

page 2 of 5'- -

479081028397-

KeyNotes (con't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance .limit.

Please read and retain this information with all of your Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

Payment processing built for your business. .
With Key Merchant Services, you can confidently accept checks or any debit or
credit card your customers use for payment. We offer affordable rates and a
broad range of services, all through our safe, secure and reliable network. And
best of all, you'll have next-day funds availability when you combine your Key
checking account with your Key Merchant Services aCGount." __

Learn more when you cal/1-888-KEY4BIZ®.

"Next-day funding available to clients with a KeyBank Checking Account.

Funds will be deposited directly into the checking account.

Control Access ACH 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Additions

Beginning balance 7-31-09
32 Additions
116 Subtractions
Ending balance 8-31-09 .

$342,027.39
+747,279.97
-763,281 .59
$326,025.77

Deposits

479081028397 - 04731
73465

Date

8-3
8-3
8-3
8-6
8-6
8-6
8-6
8-10
8-11
8-11
8-11
8-13
8-13
8-13
8-13
8-14
8-17
8-18
8-19
8-19
8-21

Seria/#
2
2
2
2
2
2

2
2

2.
2

2

2

2
2

Source
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture DepoSit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp

$44,319.80
29,230.35
29,188.62
24,294.55
18,519.13
11 ,892.75

700.80
45,781.99
17,537.07

2,872.80
53,561.30
21,685.70
19,584.00

285.00
5,195.30

195,771.23
1,524.00

17,636.58
12,070.77

944.80



Business Banking Statement
August 31,2009

page 4 of 5

479081028397.

Subtractions
(con't)

Withdrawals Date Sen"aJ# Location

1,533.75/

$2,123.04\/
552.78..1

103,955.31 v
51A68.4RV
32,292.20v'"
25,487.38/
7,693.60:;'
4,173.91

Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trusttune 09

Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustea 4/09
Direct Withdrawal] Anchor Bay Trustea 3/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Truststkld 8/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbord .8/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbrok 8/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustcbind 8/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Trustmontp 8/09
Direct Withdrawal, Anchor BayTrust2ND Qtr 09

8-12
8-12
8-13
8-13
8-13
8-13
8-13
8-26

- ---

Transfers Date SeriaJ# Destination

8-3
8-3
8-5
8-7
8-11 .
8-17
8-24
8-27

TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
Trf To DDA 0000479081028389
TrfTo DDA 0000479081028389
Total subtractions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$25,OOO.00~

9,359.07v
23,638.98,./

3,646.37 V
9,150.98V

42,235.18.,('
22,726.09/
. 722.35/

$763,281.59

Fees and
charges See your Account Analysis statement for details.

479081028397 - 04731
73465



Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

479081028397·04731
73423

Business Banking Statement
October 31,2009

page 3 of 6,··

479081028397.

Beginning balance 9-30-09
37 Additions
102 Subtractions
Ending balance 10-31-09

$306,507.83
+541,734.69
-623,160.67
$225,ll81.85



Business Banking Statement
October 31,2009

page 4 of 6-

4790B1028397'

Amount
3,487.97
5,907.82

12,675.00
7,04B.80
6,642.90
1,603.40
4,193.05

9.14
38.35

685.02
-17,333.86

16,174.55
11.17

1,307.70
2,080.90 -

14,154.00
3AGO.00
1,285.47

60.26
23.74

1,300.00
3,055.00
1,706.75

474.37
182.56
745.60

1,304.00
386.75

16,500.00

$306,706.60

$95,416.99-'
90,013.11,­
29,320.09­
16,665.54

7,026.68c..
314.85 -

$11 ,226.42--­
8,117.67'---­

24,887.55 .....
16,757.34--- _
9;089.47~

2,809.18..-/
2,809.18
2,000.00-­

$623,160.67



Business Banking Statement"
December 31, 2009

page 3 of 5

479081028397

KeyN,otes (con't)

after the day of your deposit" unless the routing number listed above is denoted
,with an asterisk (*). If the routing number is denoted with an asterisk ("),
then the first $100 of your deposit will be available on the first business day
after the day ofyour depDsit, and the remaining funds wIll be avaIlable Dn the
second business'day after the day Df deposit. The rest of the Funds Avallabilty
Policy remains unchanged.

Please retain this important information for your records. A complete copy of
the revised Funds Availability Policy is available at any KeyBank branch.'

Save time and money in 2010 by outsourcing your business' payroll and tax filing
responsibilities. Contact us today at -1..;888"KEY4BIZ for a-complimentary -quote'
fDr KeyBank Payroll Services, Powered by CompuPay.

KeyBank is Member FDIC.

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Additions
Deposits Date Seria/#

V'01 t> S
12-3 2
12-3 2

A-~ ~ ~/o~
1,2-3 2
12-7 2

1CS-~/3
12-7 2
12-14 2

ltf 12-14 2
tt,. 12-21 2

12-21
12-21 2
12-29
12-29 2
12-29 2
12-29 2

Transfers Date Seria/#
12-10
12-14

479081028397· 04731
, 77263

Beginning balance 11-30-09
16 Additions
56 Subtractions
Ending balance 12-31-09

Source

Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit '
I<ey Capture Deposit
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503"223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture DeposIt
Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

Source

Tn Fr DDA0000479081028389 4731
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028389 4731
Total additions

$95,111.15
+323,694.15
-283,655.67
$135,149.63

$34.470.24
6,546.49

283.06
66,763.02
4,368.63

53,382.03
1,254.93

72,761.11
946.06
46.13

4,273.20
3,119.33
2,009.45
1,470,47

$22,000.00
50,000.00

$323,694.15



/~
Business Banking Statement

December 31,2009
page 3 of 5'

47908102838~

KeyNotes . ri,;Dn't)

after the day DfYDur depDsit unless the routing number listed above is denoted
with an asterisk (*)./f the routing number is denoted with an asterisk (*),
then the first $100 ofyour deposit will be available on the first business day
after the day of your deposit, and the remaining funds wii! be availabie on the
second business day after the day of deposit. The rest of/he Funds Availabilty
Policy remains unchanged.

Please retain this important information for your records. A complete copy Df
the revised Funds Availability Policy is available at any KeyBank branch.

Save time and money in 2010 by outsourcing your business' payroi! and tax filing
responsibilities. CDntact Us today at 1-888-KEY4BIZ for a complimentary qUDte
fDr KeyBank Payroll Services, PDwered by CompuPay.

KeyBank is Member FDIC.

Key Business Checking 479081 028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATINGACCOUNT

Additions

Beginning balance. 11-30-09
5 Additions
60 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 12·31·09

$424,798.29
+55,847.45

-176,220.42
-166.17

$304,259.15

Deposits Date
12-3
12-14
12-29

Serial #
1
1
1

Source
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

$698.63~·'

284.17",.
485.20,1'

Transfers Date Serial#
12-3
12-30

Subtractions

Source
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731
Total additions

$50,106.25",
4,273.20·

$55,847.45

Paper Checks , * check.missing from sequence

Check
13690 J

*13720 i
*13729 ../
13730"
13731/{

Date
12-2
12.7
12-7
12-24
12-10
12-8
12-8

AmDunt
$2.000.00

2,453.37
30.95

200.00
380.00
130.90
959.17 '

Check
137330/
13734 •
13735' "
13736 c'

13737 u

13738 v

13739 J

Date
12-10
12-11
12-9
12-9
12-8
12-9
12-8

Amount Check Date Amount
182.53 13740

,
12-9 440.94

220.00 13741 f 12-8 2,100.00
3,885.00 13742 " 12·7 22.25

15,385.17 13743 ' 12-8 875.62
479.25 13744 if 12·11 85.50

6,346.41 13745 d 12·9 280.00
1.122.03 13746 v 12-7 69.30

479081028389 - 04731
17262



i~,. "V" ne Business Banking Statement
Decemb'er 31,2009

page 4 of 5'

479081028389

Subtractions

(con't)

Paper Checks 1< check missing from sequence

Check Date Amount Check Date Amount Check Date
13747 • 12-9 227.73 13755 / 12-31 332.24 13766 v' 12-28
13748 , 12-9 562.00 '13757.1 12-30 453.19 13767 v 12-28,;

13758 "13749 12-11 1.013.51 12-24 163.00 13768 ,/ 12-28
13750 / 12-8 201.75 13759'1,. 12-28 458.94 13769 ",' 12-31
13751 12-7 63.82 13760 ' 12-29 1.200.00 13770 ;7 12-24
13752 • 12-10 406.30 '13762 ,( 12-30 757.68 '13772 0/ 12-28
13753 " 12-9 65.49 13763 ,f 12-30 703.26 13773 ){ 12-31
13754 v 12-17 388.08 '13765 ,I 12-29 261.52 '13792 12-2

Paper Checks Paid

Withdrawals Date Serial # Location
12-3 Direct Withdrawal, American Funds Investment
12-4 Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
12-7 Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Inc. Cloan #21
12-10 Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFinci Svcadp - Tax
12-10 Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFinci Svcadp - Tax
12-14 Direct Withdrawal , American Funds Investment
12-16 Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Inc. 30tr Late
12-18 Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
12-23 Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
12-23 Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFinci Svcadp - Tax
12-28 Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
12_29 Direct Withdrawal, WA St D.D.R. Ex Olc
12-29 Direct Withdrawal, American Fund§ Investment

Transfers Date Serial # Destination
12-10 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028397 4731
12-14 TrfTo DDA 0000479081028397 4731

Total subtractions

Amount
370.00

1,406.59
863.37

4,943.04
474.80
507.68
163.00
474.00·

$54,109.38

$22,000.00/,
50,000.000/

$176,220.42

Fees and
charges Date

12-9-09
Quantity

Nov Analysis Service Chg 1
Fees and charges assessed this period

Unit Charge
166.17 -$166.17 /

-$166.17

See your Account Analysis statement for details.

479081028389 - 0473'1
77262



Business Banking Statement
January 31,2010

page 3 of 5

479061028397

KeyNotes (con'it)

after the day ofyour deposit unless the routing number listed above is denoted
with an asterisk(*). If the routing number is denoted an asterisk(*), then the
first $100 afyour deposit wiJl be available on the first business dayafterthe
day ofyour deposit, and the remaining funds will be available on the second
business day after the day of deposit. The rest of the funds Availability Policy
remains unchanged.

Please retain this important information for your records. A complete copy of
the revised funds Availability Policy is available at any KeyBank branch.

Key Business Checking 479081028397
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
PREMIUM TRUST ACCOUNT

Beginning balance 12-31-09
16 Additions
32 Subtractions
Ending balance 1"31"10

$135,149.63
+151,236.63
-208,479.22
$77,907.04

Additions
Deposits Date Serial # Source

292.43

431.62

4,595.62

4,940.62

1,112.42

6,900.01

5,360.76

1,556.77

21,519.17

30,007.57

$2,943.33

2,178.40
12,392.04

Key Capture Deposit

Key CaQture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture DeposIt

Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Key Capture Deposit

Direct Deposit, Pfs 503-223-6450Pfsfundorp
Key Capture Deposit

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2
2

2

2

2
2

2

1-25

1-19

1-27
1-27

1-14

1-21

1-11
1-11

1-19

1-14

1-4
1-5
1-11
1-11

Transfers Date Serla/# Source

1-14 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028389 4731
Total additions

$51,000.00
$151,236.63

Subtractions

Paper Checks .. check missing from sequence

Check Date Amount Check Date Amount Check Date Amount
15351

*15533
1-13
1-4

$618.99
341.90

*15611
*15659

1-14
1-4

4,253.50
606.22

*15662
15663

1-5
1-4

1,038.50
2,027.02

479081028397 - 04731
73400



EXHIBIT -14



Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT

Business Banking Statement
January 31, 2008

page 2 of 5

Beginning balance 12-31-07
56 Additions
57 Subtractions

Ending balance 1·31~08

$.00
+1,372,606.32

-1,372,606.32

$.00

Additions Deposits Date Serial II Source .... J----_.._--- .- - .....

1-2 1 Customer Deposit $68.09 I
1-3 1 Customer Deposit 845.79
1-8 1 Customer Deposit 363.81/
1-10 1 Customer Deposit 1,340.72-1
1-22 1 Customer· Deposit _4a.3~
1-24 1 Customer Deposit 202.14."j--Transfers Date Sadal # Source

1-2 Investment Maturity $35,177.7V
1-2 Tli Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 22,904.92.../
1-2 Income Maturity 6.25«
1-3 Investment Maturity 57.632.81 :;-
1-3 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 2,909.27
1-3 Income Maturity 5.12~

1-4 Investment Maturity 59,113.32:;
1-4 Income Maturity 5.25
1-7 Investment Maturity 56,850.01'/
1-7 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 15,421,45V
1-7 Income Maturity 15.16~

1-8 Investment Maturity 71,915.44,::/
1-8 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 25,000.00
1-8 Income Maturity 6.S9¥'
1-9 Investment Maturity 94,957.32 .,/
1-9 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 9,702.16-/
1-9 Income Maturity 8..44,)(
1-10 Investment Maturity 97,335.5~
1-10 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 4,283.52
1-10 Income Maturity 8.65 ;,(
1~11 Investment Maturity 42,874.56/
1-11 Income Maturity 3.81->(
1-14 Investment Maturity ../42,751.37
1-14 Income Maturity 11.4~
1-15 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 40,064.1!1-'/
1-16 Investment Maturity 61,558.2()i/,o'
1-16 Income Maturity 5.47.x

479081028389- 04731
77538



Business Banking Statement"
March 31, 2008

page 2 of 5

$.00
+ 1,799,547.29

a u -1,799,393.85)
\ 1/9 -\ ,---d.o I.:r1. -67.44

Beginning balance 2-29-08
41 Additions
69 Subtractions
Net fees and charges

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.

OPERATING ACCOUNT

Ending balance 3-31.08 $86.00

Additions Deposits __ .Qfjte

3-6
3-11
3-12
3-20
3-27
3-31

Serial #.
1
1
1
1
1
1

Source _

Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit

Transfers Date Serial # Source
3-3 Investment Maturity $267,742.31,/
3-3 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 24,436.13./
3-3 Income Maturity 43.51.,/'
3-4 Investment Maturity 286,916.40"'-
3A Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 14,463.63v'
3-4 Income Maturity. 15.54 v'
3.5 Investment Maturity 297,837.66,/
3-5 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 10,000.00../
3-5 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 2,941.60 v"

3-5 Income Maturity 16.1Y
3.6 Investment Maturity 59,676.40/
3-6 Income Maturity 3.23'/
3-11 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 9,137.41'/
3-19 Trf.Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 80,750.25/
3-20 Investment Maturity 83,314.8Y
3-20 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 6,584.27-./
3·20 Income Maturity 2.78"
-=-3-~2,---,-1 ---,Ic:.:n.:..:ve=--=s=tm.:.:.;e=-::-n.:.:.;t---.--:.-:--M=ac:.::tu=rj,-,-,ty'--o-- ~. 4.:..:::.0,194.09V
3-21 Income Maturity 1.34.......
3-24 Investment Maturity 83,218.29v
3-24 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 12,640.43.,,1
:::c3~~2,---"4 ---,I:.:.nc~o:::--m"-,e,,--,-,M,,,,ao;;tu=r.:.:.lty,,----~ ~. 8.32/
3-25 Investment Maturlty 95,638.79/ .
3-25 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 8,237.75'/
3-25 Income Maturity 3.19/
3-26 Investment Maturity 97,463.80.........
3-26 Income, Maturity 3.25 v

479081028389 - 04731
80902



Business Banking Statement
September 30,2008

page 2 of 4

479081028389'

KeyNotes (con't)

Protect Your Identity .'
Reviewing your credit records from all three U.S. credit bureaus is one of the
best ways to see if someone may be using your identity. As a KeyBank customer,
unlimited access to your Triple Bureau Credit Report and Score*(a $29.95 value)
is yours for only $1.00 when you try MY PRIVA CYMATTERS for 30 days.
- Get details about your credit history from all three major credit bureaus in
one convenient report
- Look for suspicious charges, unfamiliar or delinquent accounts -signs that
someone is using your identity
- Aequesting your report wilJ not negatively affect your credit rating or score

With your My Privacy Matters membership, you'll also receive ongoing protection
through continuous monitoring ofyour credit profile with weekly "Activity
Alerts"· notifying you when critical changes occur on your credit record; Visit·
key.com/idtheftplan to learn more.

I
I

- ------,

"

*SeNices provided by TransUnion Interactive, Inc.

Key Business Checking 479.081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATINGACCOUNT

Beginning balance 8-31-08
10 Additions: . .
85 SubtrCjctions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 9~30-08

$49,535.30 .
+350,643.14 .1 rJ
-247,055.0~~>t1

-66.00
$153,057.41

Additions
Deposits Date

9-4
9-4
9-19

Serial #
1
1

Source
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Internet Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731

$73,135.00 ~
261.9(j~

46,030.05

$49,897.37,j.
20,261.87~

4,28'6.53
..23,673.23.)</
100,000.00V
18,602,70;;:
14,494.43 .

$350,643.14

4731
4731

4731
4731

4731
'4731
4731

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

Source
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 000047908102.8397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397

Seria/#

9-22
9-26

9-4
9-10
9-15
9-16

·9-19

Transfers Date

Subtractions
--~---~------~----------_-----:-----:--------

Paper Checks * check missing from sequence

\/ 40.S£.

Amount
'/ { 3,000.00

Date

9-19
9-8

Check

13129
*13128

7 688.51

Amount
JL 28.37

Date

9-3

Check
*13109
*13126

/ Amount

J 28.38
V,$2,650.00

Date

9-4
9-413059

Check

*13103

479081028389 • 04731
80026
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Business Banking Statement.
Novemb'er 30, 2008

page 2 of 4

479061028389

KeyNotes (con't)

The holiday season is just around the comer, and the Key Possibilities
Mastercard prepaid cards~ are the perfect gift for everyone. To make your
business holiday gift giving easy, you cah also purchase cards In bulk.
,
The Key PossibHities cards are available in any denomination from $25 - $2500
and can be used anywhere Mastercard debit cards are accepted. To purchase Key
Possibilities cards, please visit your local Key Center.

"Subject .to the terms of the Key Possibilities Cardholder Agreement. Fees may
apply. Key Possibilities Card is: NOT FDIC INSURED - MA Y LOSE VALUE - NOTA
DEPOSIT

Key's automated telephone banking service, 1·888-KEY4BIZ (1-888-539-4249),
offers instant access to account information 24 hours a day. You can transfer
funds between accounts, obtain balances and Information regarding cleared
transactions. It's simple to use and all you need is your account number and

. your Key Telephone Access .code. /fat any time you need assistance using KeY's
automated bankihgservices pre~s zero and a phone representative will be there
to assist you.

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT

Additions
Deposits Date

11-7
11-21

Serial #

1
1

Beginning balance 10-31-08
9 Additions
54 Subtractions
Ending balance 11-30-08

Source
Customer Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

$59,606.08
+169,133.65
-194,032.80
$34,706.93

~'\-IOlp. (r~

(\ilOO ')

~~
$130.080/ 1:2­

85.74/

Transfers Date Seria/# Source

11-7 Tli Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4781 $39,434.2]/
11-12 Tli Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 20,000.00/
11-12 TrfFr DDA00004790810283974731 10,409,;:l1.~

11-18 TrfFr DDA0000479081028397 4731 t' 3&l7324--/~
11-18 TrfFr DDA0000479081028397 4731 =·-~~,L15.34../

11-25 Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397 4731 34,025.61 /
71~1--:':2-::-8-------=T:'-:rfc-'.::F-:-r-----'-'D=-D='A-:-'-:=:O-=-00=-:O:-:4:-:::7~90::-:8:-;-1~02~8~3:-::9-=7-4-7:7::-;3:-:1---------=2-=-O~,OOO.OOJ .

Total additions $169,133.65

SUbtra~tjons

Paper Checks " check missing from sequence

Check
13106

"13200

Date
11-19 ;/
11-6 :,;

Amount
$28.38

2,650.00

Check
*13271
13272

Date
11-14
11-4

Amount
2,650.00
9,144.00

Check
13273
13274

Date
11-5 v
11-3 7

Amount
263.79

1,304.42

479081028389 - 04731
74583



Business Banking Statement
January 31, 2009 ..

page 3 of 5

479081028389 ~./

Key BusinessChecking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT

Beginning balance 12-31-08
13 Additions
51 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 1·31·09

$13,565,45
+251,020.86
-210,683.28'> obI'

-167.82/'V.
$53,735.21

Additions
Deposits Date

1-2
1-14
1-14
1-26

SerJaJ#

1
1
1

. Source

Direct Deposit, Anchor Bay Inc Return
Key Capti.ln3· Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

10,000.00/
1,172.31V'

17,223.19/
16,772.99/
16,447.8~~

8,999.9:Y

$19,216.31:/
.17,070.24

5,356.67v'
$251,020.86

4731

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

4731
4731

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

Source

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081 028397
Trl Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397

Seria/#

1-27

1-2
1-5
1-6
1-6
1-12
1-14
1-20
1-26

Transfers Date

. Subtractions

Paper Checks * check missing from sequence

Check Date I Amount Check Date Amount Check Date Amount
13340 1~28 OJ $1,709.74 13353 1-22 1/ 6,807.24 13367 1-26 V" 1,662.24
13341 1-27 ./ 351.42 13354 1-22 7' 275.00 13368 1-22 .,/ 1,246.99
13342 1·21 J 29.25 13355 1-23 ,/ 8,771.47 13369 1-22 v 10,071.90
13343 1-23 7' 886.54 13356 1-29 J 64.50 13370 1~28 >/ 435.00
13344 1-28 v 392.26 *13358 1-21 ,/ 100.98 13371 1-26 ,J 844.95
13345 1-26 j 1,029.25 13359 1-23 v 1,168.56 13372 1~26 ./ 310.00
13346 1-29 ,; 2,650.00 13360 1-27 v 1,000.00 13373 1-28 ./ 384.84
13347 1-22 .; 110.82 13361 1-26 V' 3,360.00 13374 1-23 ./ 1,30B.75
13348 1-26 ./ 224.05 13362 1-29 ,/ 70.11 13375 1-26 0/ 439.40
13349 1-27 v 403.50 13363 1-26 / 4,130.89 13376 1-21 .; 458.96
13350 '1-22 ;; 1,181.57 13364 1-26 ./ 79.65 13377 1-26 ,/ 1,646.15

. 13351 1-26 v 794.72 13365 1-23 v 7,892.13 13378 1-23 V 1,203.10
13352 1-22 v 3,720.79 13366 1-22 ,/ 144.49

Paper Cliecks Paid $67,361.21

Withdrawals Date

1-2
1-2
1-9

, Seria/#

8199
Location
Wire Withdrawal Ad 3170
Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax

? $42 840.68
178.85V

31,788.77'/

479081028389 - 04731
74284
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ausiness Banking Statement
April 30, 2009-­

page 2 of 5

479081028389

KeyNotes (con't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
- eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to·the FDIC's
standard insurance limit.

Please read and retain this information with all of your Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

May is KeyBank Small Business Month!
Stop in your branch from May 1 through May 31 to find out about special offers
avaiJable just for Small Business ownersl

Key Business Online®
-Productivity, --simplified;- -- --- - ---
Get back to the business you love by reducing the time you spend on the tasks of
accounting and banking. Key Business Online helps you gain new clarity and
control of your company's cash flow.
- Simple dashboard format, designed exclusively for businesses
- Secure access to accounts gives you an instant overview ofyour cash position
- Control timing and delivery of payments and transfers
~ Delegate access to employees ortrusted advisors

Experience Key Business Online for yourself. Try the demo at key.com/KBOdemo
or call 1-888-KEY4BIZ® .

Subject to terms and conditions of the Key Business Online agreement.
KeyBank is Member FDIC. Key.com is a federally registered service mark of
KeyCorp.
@2009 KeyCorp

Time to reorder banking supplies for your business checking account? KeyBank has
a wide variety of business products to meet ever-changing needs of your
business. With products ranging from three-to-a-page checks and computer/laser
checks (compatible with over 1400 types of software) to deposit tickets, stamps,
and security deposit bags, you're sure to find something you need. Call
800-503-2345 to speak with a business product expert, or go online to
expertchecks.com to place your order today! Yoursatisfaction is always
guaranteed when you buy checks and accessories through KeyBank.

KeyBank now offers personalized stationery and accessories! Visit
retaildirect.comlk"eybank for more detai/sl

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
QPERATINGACCOUNT

Beginning balance 3-31-09
8 Additions
81 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 4·30-09

$22,415.35
+529,198.20
-450,602.71

-202.20
$100,808.64

479081028389 - 04731
73643



Additions
Deposits Date

4-8
4-16

Transfers Date

Seria/#

1
1

Seria/#

Business Banking Statement
April 30, 2009' .

page 3 of 5

.
479081028389

Source

Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

Source

$362,196.00 v"
1.137.45........

4-1
4-1
4-2
4-16
4-24
4-30

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$25,000.00 v
6,890.54.......

18,640.SV
54,405.19v'"
45,070.18v
15,858.3~_.

.. $529,198.20



..¢-K Business Banking Statement
June 30,2009

page'2 of 5

479081028389

KeyNotes (con't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accoun'ts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance limit.

Please read and retain this information with all ofyour Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

1-888-KEY4BIZ®
Direct business solutions are only a phone call away.

CaI/1-888-KEY4BIZ for immediate access to your KeyBank business accounts.
Get answers from financial specislists, even outside traditional banking hours.

-Plus, you can call tof/-free from anywhere-in the -United- States.-

We are dedicated to providing exceptional financial products and innqvative
services. We spend a great deal of time listening to our customers' concerns,
tlnalyzing, researching and communicating with .support areas to resolve issues
in a courteous and efficient manner.

We're here to help.
Any time you have questions about your accounts, caI/1-888-KEY4BIZ and discover
why service is the Key difference.

Member FDIC

Key4Women is a dynamic program offering networking opporlunities, ongoing
education, access to capital and customized solutions to women business owners
across the country. Key4Women has, since 2005, fent $3 billion to qualified
women-owned businesses, and has pledged to lend another $3 billion to
wom~n-owned businesses by 2012. Lean more about the program and enroll by
visiting key. com/women today.

Key BusIness Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT

"Beginning balance 5-31-09
9 Additions
41 Subtractions
Net fees and charges

$85,209.36
+150,501 .78
-169,734.89

-22.67

Additions
Deposits Date

6-17
6-17

Seria/#

Ending balance 6-30·09

Source
Direct Deposit, Td Ameritrade ACHMicro'
Direct Deposit, Td Ameritrade ACH Micro

$0.30"/
0.28/

Transfers Date

6-4
6-9
6-9
6~11

479081028389 - 04731
77668

Serial # Source
Tii Fr
Tli Fr
Tli Fr
Tn Fr

DDA 0000479081028397
DDA 0000479081028397
DDA 0000479081028397
DDA 0000479081028397

4731
4731
4731
4731

$23,458.49 ./
12,713.46v1
10,000.00./
19,539.60/
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Business Banking Statement

August 31, 2009
page 2of4

479081028389

,
KeyNotes (can't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance limii.

Please read and retain this infonnation with all ofyour Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

Payment processing built for your business.
With Key Merchant Services, you can confidently accept checks or any debit or
credit card your customers use for payment We offer affordable rates and a .
broad range of services, all through our .safe, secure and reliable network. And
best of all, you'll have next-day funds availability when you combine your Key '-f I:. 0):
checking-account with -your Key Merchant SelVicesaccount. *-- ... -- _.- - --- -- - -------

Learn more when you call1-888-KEY4BfZ®. dJ;lll):;f...(/· ~:., ~,:;h'LJ
*Next-day funding available to clients with a KeyBank Checking Account. b~ f "btl ...0 .AcP
Fuods will be deposited directly into the checking account. Y0Jv((j/ljt.t!J-. 5;;~'l /'1 (C:'.) :~8-

----------------------------'''------+-.···Z;L.--4r,
Control Access ACH 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATINGACCOUNT

Additions

Beginning' balance 7-31-09
9 Additions '
29 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 8~31 ..09

$57,893.78
+137,260.13
-160,132.06

-87.71

Deposits Date

8-6

Transfers Date

8-3
8-3
8-5
8-7
8-11
8-17
8-24
8-27

Subtractions

Serial #
1

Sen'a/#

Source
Key Capture Deposit

Source

Tti Fr DDA 000047908102.8397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DbA 0000479081.028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Tti- Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$781.11,/

$25,000.00 v'
9,359.07./

23,638.98 v
3,646.37/
9,150.98~

42,235.18
22,726.09/

722.35./
$137,260.13

Paper Checks * check missing from sequence

Check
13601

Date
8-10

Amount
$87,97

Check
*13611

Date
8-7 \I

Amount
2,809.00

Check
13612

Date
vI' 8-5

Amount
j 974.30

479081028389 - 04731
73464
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October 31, 2009

page 3 of 5

479081028389

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATINGACCOUNT 4bb11.-- ,'3G $69,139.17

1le1~l.ts;+79,561.23

I I.../.~.J.-,rl 11-145,422.61 /
• .::; .c.:llQ' . -197.86.,./

Additions
Deposits Date Serial #

10-8 1
10-22 1
10-29 - - 1

Beginning balance 9-30-09
11 Additions
36 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 10-31-09

~~i-

Source

Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit
Key Gapture Deposit -

31~ .'S10;,
1"2.$' \ Ct \ )(

~VLCu.U..

$3,079.93
- 3/ to.S 7
~ I'll: Al

$1,432.96/
266.35......

----165.11v -

Transfers Date

10-2
10-8
10-13
10-22
10-27
10-28
10-28
10-28

Seria/# Source

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA OQ00479081 028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

4731
4731

_4731
4731
4731
4731
4731
4731

$11,226.42V
8,117.67v

24,887.55,/'
16,757.34"/
9,089.47./
2809.18/

(j)!++0.AtLWYLd<2jog,18~)
2,000,001/

$79,561.23

Subtractions

Paper Checks * check missing from sequence

Check Date Amount Check Date Amount Chec:k Date Amount
13664 10-7 j< $13,711.14 13672 10-6 X 3,387A8 13680 10-8 IX 100.00
13665 10-6 Y 1,761.15 13673 10-6 .x 388.08 13681 10-8 iX.. ~35.66

13666 10-7 ~ 230.30 13674 10-6 s: 738.42 13682 10-8 IX .1,571.77
13667 10-5 'i( 2.372.72 13675 10-7 X 996.95 13683 10-13 0$ 8,879.90
13668 10-13 iX: 721.26 13676 10-7 y; 325.97 13684 10-14 792.28
13669 10-6 X 500.00 13677 10-8 ).. 280.00 13685 10-16 ,)S, 2,233.26
13670 10-19 :x 5,618.00 13678 10-14 ,A 100.00 13686 10-23 0. 217.31

·13671 10-8 'K 1,000.00 13679 10-14 0- 175.00
Paper Checks Paid . $46,236.65

Withdrawals Date Serial #
10-1
10-1
10-2
10-6
10-9
10-15
10-15
10-16
10-23

·479081028389 - 04731
73422

Location
Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFinci Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal, Adp TX/Fincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal, American Funds Investment
Direct Withdrawal, American Funds Investment
Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal, American Funds Investment
Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees

23,226.99~
7,965.36'$(

883.46,/
293.07...'\



I

/'Ot-7r. Business Banking Statement··
January 31,2010

page 3 of 5

'479081028389

KeyNotes (can't)

after the day of your deposit unless the routing number listed above is denoted
with an asterisk(*). Jf the routing number is denoted an asterisk(*), then the
first $100 ofyour deposit will be available on the first business day after the
deyaf your deposit, and the remaining funds wifl be available on the second
business day after the day of deposit. The rest of the Funds Availability Policy
remains unchanged.

Please retain this important information for· your records. A complete copy of
the revised Funds Availability Policy is available at any KeyBank branch.

Vc/i>

Key BusinessChecking 479081028389
ANCHOR SAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT .

I~ 8'~1 z.. - "2-'-'0

';$"13 -So

Beginning balance 12-31-09
4 Additions
64 Subtractions
Netfees and charges
Ending balance 1-31-10

$304,259.15
+53,805.98

-138,527.01
-119.68

$219,418.44

Amount
600.00
225.00

70.00
250.00
250.00
155.00
100.00

20.00
40.00

1,490.03
958.54
995.67

1.070.19
753.88

. 450.03
2,089.52



Subtractions
(can't;

Paper Checks

Business Banking. Statement
January 31,201'0

page 4 of 5

479081028389

* check missing from sequence

Check
13832

Date
1-27

Amount
669.81

Check Date Amount. Check Date
----:-::-::-::--=-----,.------,.........,=-c~

---"13::.::8<.:::3c.=.3_~--'1....:-2==5'-- -'-'1.L:::6.:::35:::.:..5:::::6::.... 13834 1-26
Paper Checks Paid

Amount
3,405.11

$52,407.16

Withdrawals Date Serial # Location
1-4 Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees $156.85 .,/
1-7 Direct Withdrawal, Anchor Bay Inc. Loan #22 4,OOO.00.v-
1~7-" Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFinci Svcadp ~-Ta>c --- 14;209.4717""-
1-7 Direct Withdrawal, Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax 9,864.50 v
1-11 Direct WithdrawaL American Funds Investment 651.59 .....
1-15 Direct Withdrawal, Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees 156.85, ·
-:-1-::-1:-::5:- ;:::D7-ir::o:ec~t:._;W7;i;::;th..:.::d~ra~w~a~I,c...;P....:a~y!..:ro~II~-;-;.:....P=:_ayl.!.r::::.!ol.:....1 ---:- ~__::__:_~O~.~971~
1-25 Direct Withdrawal, Irs . Usataxpymt 5,428.03v·
1-27 Direct Withdrawal, American Funds Investment 651.59 Y""

Transfers Date

1-14
Serial # Destination

TrfTo DDA 0000479081028397 4731
Total subtractions

$51,000.00 V'
$138,527.01

Fees and
charges Date

1-11-10
Quantity

Dec Analysis Service Chg 1
Fees and charges assessed this period

Unit Charge

119,68 -$119.68V
-$119.68

See your Account Analysis statement for delails.

479081028389 - 04731
73399



Business Banking Statement
March 31, 2008' .,,'

page 2 of 5

$86.00

$.00
+ 1,799,547.29

9
u -1,799,393.85.....,

\ ,'lq ,I (0 i:~q . -67.44 /
:

Beginning balance 2-29-08
41 Additions
69 Subtractions
Net fees and charges

Ending b~lance 3-31.08

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC.
OPERATING ACCOUNT

Additions Deposits Date Serial #

3-6 1
3-11 1
3-12 1
3-20 1
3-27 1
3-31 1

Source
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit
Customer Deposit

$38.07p/'
363.81 V

50.82"""
55,000.00/

135.14,/
85.74v

Transfers Date Serial # Source
3-3
3-3
3.S
3-4
3.4
3-4
3-5
3-5
3-5
3-5
3-6
3-6
3-11.
3-19
3-20
3-20
3-20
3-21
3-21
3-24
3-24
3-24
3-25
3-25
3-25
3-26
3-26

Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Income Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment> Maturity
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Ttf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity

. Investment Maturity
Income Maturity

4731

4731

4731
4731

4731
4731

4731

4731

4731

$267,742.31 ,/
24,436.13if

43.51"'"
286,916.40 ......

14,463.63-./
15.54 v'

297,837.66>/
10,000.OOv'
2,941.60 .......

16.1Y
59,676.40/

3.23 ,./
9,137.41'/

80,750.25/
83,314.87v
6,584.27/

2.78"'"
40, 194.09v'

1.34/
83,218.29v
12,640.43-.1

8.32v'
95,638.79/
8,237.75"/

3.19/
97,463.80"""'­

3.25 v'

479081 028389 - 04731
B0902



Business Banking Statement
March 31, 2008'" .:'.: .::

page 3 of 5

Additions
(can't)

Transfers Oate Serial #
3-27
3-27
3-27
3-28
3-28
3~31

3-31
3-31

Source
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA· 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Income Maturity
Investment Maturity
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Income Maturity
Total additlons

4731

4731

96,178.34 .....
5,594.26 v

3.21,,/
78,549.16.......

. 2.62/'
65,594.32......
16,653.87""""

6.56 V'
$1,799,547.29

Subtractions

Paper Checks • check missing from sequence

'12751 3-27 ./ $10.68 12813 3-28 ./ 900.50 12832 3-27
* 12794 3-4 v 3,000.00 12814 3-25 V 3,067.64 12833 3-28
* 12796. 3-3 \7 4,350.59 12815 3-24 ,/ 228.25 *12835 3-26

12797 3-4 ./ 497.91 * 12817 3-27 'I 43.00 12836 3-31
* 12799 3-3 vi 954.96 12818 3-28 \I 215.47 12837 3-28
*12802 3-4 if 60,00 * 12820 3-26 / 1,069.96 . * 12841 3-31

12803 3-6 -if 37.50 12821 3-28 J' 19.00 *12843 3-31
12804 3-5 ./251,118,99 12822 3-27 ../ 980.90 12844 3-31
12805 3-6 7 62,81 12823 3-31 7' 794.72 12845 3-31
12806 3-12 ./. 550.02 12824 3-27 V 374.30 12846 3-27
12807 3-18 :.7 497.91 12825 3-27 V 4,350.59 12847 3.31
12808 3-19 ../ 1,868.40 12826 3-27 07 2,415.75 *12849 3-28
12809 3-19 ./ 200.00 12827 3-26 "7 46.75 12850 3-31
12810 3-27 ./ 497.91 * 12829 3-28 ./ 8,579.12 Paper checks paId
12811 3-25 ./ 1,461.55 12830 3-27 7 12,782.57
12812 3-21 V 11,844.20 12831 3-27 :; 50.00

1,620.08
V 560.18
:;" 172.00
-/ 1,793.76
.,/ 2,585.45
V 1,408.94
yo 273.00
17 403.50
l"'" 175.00
..r 101.01
./ 778.00
".... 54.34
.,/ 219.70

$323,076.91

Withdrawals Date Serial #

3-6
3-6
3-10
3-10
3-13
3-13
3.14
3-20
3-20
3-21
3-25
3-28

479081028389 - 04731
80902

Location
Direct Withdrawal , Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal I Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal , American Funds Investment
Direct Withdrawal , Adp TXlFlncl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal , Pfs 503-223-6450Pfspymtorp
Direct Withdrawai I Pfs 503-223-6450Pfspymtorp
Direct Withdrawal , Adp Payroll Peesadp - Fees
Direct Withdrawal , Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal , Adp TXlFincl Svcadp - Tax
Direct Withdrawal , Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees
Direct Withdrawal , American Funds Investment
Direct Withdrawal J Adp Payroll Feesadp - Fees

$35,845,69,/
13,971.58 -/
2,654.02 ,,/

53.18/
9,008.08 ,,/
1,712.19v"

176.30/
35,916.06'/

·13,791.77 v
132.94../

1,886.74V
178.40/



Business Banking Statement
April 30, 2009· c·,

page 2 of 5

479081026369

KeyNotes (can't)

that sweep to other KeyBank FDIC insured domestic deposit accounts that are not
eligible for the Guarantee Program would be FDIC insured up to the FDIC's
standard insurance limit.

Please read and retain this information with all of your Account Agreements and
Disclosures.

May is KeyBank Small Business Month!
Stop in your branch from May 1 through May 31 to find out about special offers
available just for Small Business owners!

Key Business Online®
Productivity, simplified.
Get back to the business you love by reducing the Urne you spend on the tasks of
accounting and banking. KeyBusiness Online helps you gain new clarity and
control of your companY's cash flow.
- Simple dashboard format, .designed exclusively for businesses
- Secure access to accounts gives you an instant overview of your cash position
- Control timing and delivery of payments and transfers
- Delegate access to employees or trusted advisors

Experience Key Business Online for yourself. Try the demo at key.com/KBOdemo
or call 1-888-KEY4BIZ®

SUbject to terms and conditions ofthe KeyBusiness Online agreement.
KeyBank is Member FDIC. Key.com is a federally registered service mark of
KeyCorp.
@2009KeyCorp

Time to reorder banking supplies for your business checking acCount? KeyBank has
a wide variety of business products to meet ever-Changing needs of your
business. With products ranging from three-to-a-page checks and computer/laser
checks (compatible with over 1400 types of software) to deppsit tickets,. stamps,
and security deposit bags, you're sure to find something you need. Call
800-503-2345 to speak with a business product expert, or go online to
expertchecks.com to place your order today! Your satisfaction is always
guaranteed when you bUy checks ahd accessories through KeyBank.

KeyBank now offers personalized stationery and accessories! Visit
retai/direct.com/keybank for more details!

Key Business Checking 479081028389
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS,INC.
OPERATING ACCQUNT

Beginning balance 3-31-09
8 Addltions
81 Subtractions
Net fees and charges
Ending balance 4-30-09

$22,415.35
+529,198.20
-450,602.71

-202.20
$100,808.64

479081028389 - 04731
73643



Additions
Deposits Date

4-8
4-16

Seria/#

1
1

Business Banking Statement
April 30, 2009 .

page 3 of 5

479081026389

Source

Key Capture Deposit
Key Capture Deposit

$362,196.00~
1,137.45v

Transfers Date

4-1
4-1
4-2
4-16
4-24
4-30

Seria/# Source

Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr DDA 0000479081028397
Trf Fr . DDA 0.000479081028397
Trf Fr . DDA 0000479081028397
Total additions

4731
4731
4731
4731
4.73:1.
4731

$25,000.00 v
6,890.54.......

18.640.52/
54,405.19v

.u45,070.18~ .j

15,858.3V
$529,198.20
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Reconciliation Report •
For Account #00-00-10040

Statement Date: 1/31/2008 - Batch # 229993

Beginning Baiance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

Date

$35,177.74
$188,738.44
$183,215.87

Description

'Statement Balance:
Acct Baiance:
Variance:

Reconciied Transactions

Type Credit

$40,700.31
$40,700.31

:;~~lDi
Batch

212413
214172
210869
209699
210571
215534
216437

.. 21087'3.
211150
210232
210236
210944
210245
210788
230027
212414
209998
214826
216450
213016
214843
213020
213019
218075
216451
216452
213017

·213018
210792
214844
214845
216449
213015
213014
214842
218074
218076
218077
218085

$222.30 214763
$2,500.00 214773
$2,654.60 214782
$1,654.07 214782
$1,386.44 214782

$659.45 214782
$583.54 214782

$2,650.00 207439
$333.75 207439

$1,468.54 208698
$436.69 208698

1/15/2008 Income 111 0108 to 1/14108 ,.JE:E··!
1/21/2008 Income 1/15/08 to 1/20/08 ~ "-----
1/812008 WA SLA to Operating • I JE

12131/2007 Income 12/26/07 to 12/31107 JE
117/2008 Income 1/1/08 to 1/6/08 JE

1/24/2008 Income 1/21/08 to 1/23/08 JE
1/30/2008 Income 1/24/08 to 1/29/08. JE
1/912008 Income 1/7/08 to 1/8/08 . .JE

1/10/2008 Income 1/9/08 . .. .... JE
1/3/2008 Oct. 07 & Nov. 07 Investment interest T JE
1/3/2008 Oct. 07 & Nov 07 Investment Interest Tra JE
1/9/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #210944 PA
1/3/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #210245 PA
1/8/2008 .Record Cash Receipt Batch #210788 PA

1/24/2008 Gallegos-Wrong Account-Write Off Payment JE
12/31/2007 Correcting Entry Date to 12/28/07 JE

112/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #209998 PA
1/22/Z008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #214826 PA
1/22/2008 Interest 1/22/08 JE

11712008 Interest 1/7/08 JE
1/14/2008 Interest 1/14/08 JE
1/10/2008 Interest 1/10/08. JE'

1/9/2008 Interest 1/9/08 JE
1/28/2008 Interest 1/28/08 JE
1/23/2008 Interest 1/23/08 JE
1/24/2008 Interest 1/24108 JE

1/812008 Interest 1/8/08 JE
1/8/2008 Interest 1/8/08 JE
1/2/2008 Interest 1/2/08 . JE

1/16/2008 Interest 1/16/08 JE
1/17/2008 Interest 1/17/08 JE
1/18/2008 Interest 1/18/0il JE

1/412008 interest 1/4/08 JE
1/3/2008 Interest 1/3/08 JE

1/11/2008 Interest 1/11/08 JE
1/25/2008 interest 1/25/08 J E
1/29/2008 Interest 1/29/08 JE
1/30/2008 Interest 1/30/08 JE
1/31/2008 Interest 1/31108 JE
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12761 CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12763 CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12767 CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12765 CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12764 CHK
1/22/2008 ## Record Check # 12762 CHK

12/17/2007 ## Record Check # 12721 CHK
12/17/2007 ## Record Check # 12727 CHK
12/21/2007 ## Record Check # 12737 CHK
12/21/2007 ## ReGord Check # 12730 CHK

....'r~----- ---
'$1I0~064.14
$38,818.16
t25JjriQ,glL
$22',904.92
$15,421.45
$12,891.66
$10,677.33

$9,702.16
$4,283.52

. $2,909.27
$2,909.27
$1,340.72

.$845.79
$363.81
$202.14
$147.01

$68.09
$43.34
$21.79
$15.16
$11.40

$8.65
$8.44
$7.71
$6.81
$6.60
$6.39
$6.39
$6.25 .
$5.47
$5.47
$5.47

'. $5.25
$5.12
$3.81
$2.76
$2.28
$2.24
$2.20

03/06/08 . 13:55 Continued On Next Paoe 0-=0'-'0 '1



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-10040

State'ment Oate: 3/31/2008 - Batch # 239925

3/6/2008 ## Record Check # EFT (Manuai) CHK $2,654.02 230270
3/6/2008 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK $53.18 230263

3/27/2008 ## Record'Check # EFT (Manual) CHK $178040 236396
3/27/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #236486 PA $135.14 236486
3/3/2008 Income 2/26/08 to 3/2/08 JE $24,436.13 229057

3/10/2008 Bank Service Charge 3/08 JE $67044 239922
3/10/2008 Bank Service Charge 3/08 (Reversal) JE $67044 239926
3/20/2008 Operating-Payroll JE $35,916.06 235013
3/20/2008 Operating-Taxes JE $13,791.77 235013
3/20/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #235301 PA $55,000.00 235301
3/20/2008 Income 3/19/08 JE $6,584.27 235304
3/11/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #231721 PA $363.81 231721
3/11/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #231723 PA $50.82 231723

3/3/2008 Interest 3/3/08 JE $43.51 231726
3/4/2008 interest 3/4/08 JE $15.54 231727

3/11/2008 Income 3/5/08 to 3/10/08 JE; _$9,137041_ 231729- -
2/291200a Record CasfiReceipt Batch #229347 PA $38.07 229347
3/31/2008 Income 3/27/08 to 3/30108 JE $16,653.87 236799
3/31/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #236926 PA $85.74 236926
3/21/2008 Interest 3/21/08 JE $1.34 237012
3/24/2008 Interest 3/24/08 JE $8.32 237013
3/25/2008 Interest 3/25/08 JE $3.19 237014
3/26/2008 Interest 3/25/08 JE $3.25 237015
3/28/2008 Interest 3/28/08 JE $2.62 238509
3/5/2008 income 3/4/08 JE $2,941.60 230032
3/5/2008 WA SLA to Operating JE $10,000.00 230065
3/6/2008 Operating-Payroll JE $35,845.69 230068
3/6/2008 Operating-Taxes JE $13,971.58 230068

3/20/2008 Interest 3/20/08 JE $2.78 236080
3/31/2008 Interest 3/31/08 JE $6.56 238847
3/27/2008 Interest 3/27/08 JE $3.21 237924
3/25/2008 Income 3/24/08 JE $8,237.75 235814
3/6/2008 Interest 3/6/08 JE $3.23 231930

3/10/2008 Bank Service Charge KeyBank 2/08 JE $67044 231926
3/5/2008 Interest 3/5/08 JE $16.13 231929
3/4/2008 Income 3/3/08 JE $14,463.63 229484

3/27/2008 income 3/25/08 to 3/26/08 JE $5,594.26 236383
3/19/2008 Income 3/11108 to 3/18/08 JE $80,750.25 234792
3/24/2008 Income 3/20108 to 3/23/08 JE $12,640043 235538

Open Transactions
Open Debits: $0.00

Open Credits: $24,478.52

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12864
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12863
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12862
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 1286'1
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12860
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12859
.3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12858
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12857
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12856
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12855
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12854
3/31/2008 ## Record Check # 12853

04/15108 - 10:53

CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK

Continued On Next Page

$28.06 237327
$3,522.52 237327

$100.00 237327
$844.95 237327
$770.97 237327

$79.65 237327
$1,073.19 237327
$1,141.87 237327

$9.50 237327
$5,300.00 237327

$427.89 237327
$1 ,800.00 237327

P:;:'Inp?



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0040

Statement Date: 9/30/2008 - Batch # 276360
,

$153,057.41
$153,057.41

$0.00

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

Date

$49,535.30
$426,778.14
$323,256.03

Description

Statement Balance:
. Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciled Transactions

Type Debit Credit
~~D

Batch

8/29/2008 From tax reserve in trust to operating
9/412008 Profit sharing from Catiin
9/4/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #269085
9/4/2008 Income Sweep 8/28 - 9/3/08

9/19/2008 Income sweep 9/16 - 9/18
9/16/2008 9/9-9/15 Income Sweep
9/10/2008 Income sweep 9/5 - 9/9/08
9/22/2008 Income sweep for 9/19/08
9/26/2008 income sweep 9/20 - 9/25
9/15/2008 PFS E&O Contract change transfer
9/30/2008 Record Void Check #13220

9/4/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #269083
8/31/2008 ## Record Check # 13159
8/31/2008 Net Payroll
8/31/2008 Operating Taxes
9/10/2008 ## Record Check # 13194

9/4/2008 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual)
9/17/2008 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual)
9/26/2008 NSF charges for ABIM checks paid

9/812008 ## Record Check # 13165
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13166
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13180
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13164
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13187
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13189 .
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13175
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13162
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13163
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13169
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13172
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13160
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13170
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13176
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13186
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13161
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13184
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13179
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13188
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13173
9/8/2008 ## Record Check # 13190

9/26/2008 ## Record Check # 13220
9/15/2008 Cash - Operating Key 8389
9/18/2008 Net Payroll .
9/18/2008 Operating Taxes
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13205
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13209
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13203
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13215
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13207
9/16/2008 ## Record Check # 13199

JE
JE
PA
JE
JE
JE
JE
JE

. JE
JE
VOD
PA
CHK
JE
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
JE
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK

$100,000.00
$73,135.00
$73,135.00
$49,897.37
$46,030.05
$23,673.23
$20,261.87
$18,602.70

- -$14-;494.43
$4,286.53
$3,000.00

$261.96
$397.11

$37,012.06
$13,900.93

$848.38
$2,421.55

$141.78
$66.00

$844.00
$844.00
$706.44
$453.93
$442.53
$400.00
$303.00
$258.00
·$225.72
$212.28
$177.94
$170.00
$150.95
$124.11
$120.00
$100.00
$100.00
$80.91
$55.04
$52.00
$31.67

$3,000.00
$204.45

$37,118.83
$14,006.42

$8,364.55
. $7,974.08

$4,907.30
$3,575.64

.$3,088.85
$1,702.42

268326
269020
269085
269039
272358
271617
270174
272491

- 273110­
271309
275203
269083
269005
269037
269037
270293
269099
271913
273101
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
269305
273125
271255
272315
272315
271562
271562
271562
271562
271562
271562

10/09/08 - 15:38 Continued On Next Page Page 1



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0040

Statement Date: 11/30/2008 - Batch # 288867

11/11/2008 ## Record Check # eft (Manual)
10/31/2008 ## Record Check # 13286
10/31/2008 ## Record'Check # 13289

11/7/2008 Income Sweep 11/1-11/6
11'/11/2008 Income Sweep.10/7-10/10
11/27/2008 SLA taxes transfer
11/7/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #282228

11/20/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #284499
11/25/2008 Income sweep 11/19-11/24
11/11/2008 From Tax Fund to be repaid
11/17/2008 Income sweep 11/11-11/16
11/18/2008 Income sweep 11/17-11/18

CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
JE
JE
PA
PA
JE
JE
JE
JE

$39,434.27
$10,409.37
$20,000.00

$130.08
$85.74

$34,025.61
$20,000.00
$22,275.34
$23,773.24

$16.00 282696
$15.00 280896

$1.77 280896
282215
282693
285526
282228
284499
284860
283494
283497
284013

9/30/2008 PFS E&O Contract change transfer (Revers JE
11/30/2008 ## Record Check # 13317 CHK
11/30/2008 ## Record Check # 13316 CHK

3/2512008 ## Record Check # 12838 CHK

Date Description

Open Transactions

Type Debit

Open Debits: $0.00
. OpelD.Credils: $5,233.24

Credit Batch

$4,286.53 283029
$908.71 285771

$25.00 285771
$t3.00 235845



,.
"

1/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290930
1/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #291079
1/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #291204
1/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #291457

12/31/2008 PFS paymentfor D&O (Reversal)
12/31/2008 Cash - Premium Trust 8397

1/14/2009 Record Cash, Receipt Batch #291731
1/14/2009 -Income Sweep 1/13~ 1/14-

,1/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292758
1/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292763
1/19/2009 RecOrd Cash Receipt Batch #292823
1/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292826
1/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292922
1/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292950
1/20/2009 Income sweep 1-14 thru 1-20
1/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293039
1/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292401
1/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #292435
1/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293191
1/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293194
1/26/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293443
1/26/2009 Income sweep 1/21-1/26/09
1/27/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293801
1/27/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293804
1/27/2009 Income sweep 1/27/09
1128/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #297620
1/28/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #297643
1/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #298292
1/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt.Batch#29S327
1/12/2009 Income sweep 117-1/12

12/31/2008 Income sweep 2/11-2/13
12/31/2008 Income sweep 2/11-2/13 (Reversal)

1/26/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293531
1/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290320
1/5/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290161
1/5/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290175
1/5/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290180
1/5/2009 Income Sweep 12/31/08 - 1/5/09

1/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #291069
1/27/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #293855

12/31/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290008
12/29/2008 Record Void Check #14505
12/30/2008 ReCord Void Check #14474
12/31/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #289761
12/31/2008 Record Cash Receipt Batch #289777
12/31/2008 Income sweep 12/29 -12/30
12131/2008 Record Void Check #14578

1/6/2009 Income sweep 1/6/09
1/6/2009 From WA SLA tax reserve
1/7/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #290400

05/12/09 - 12:56

..
J>'

406,112.31
608682.2;;;;

$752,869.4C

lPescriptionl

IReconciled TransactionS!

PA
PA
PA
PA
JE
JE
PA
JE
PA
PA
PA
PA
PA
PA
JE
PA
PA
PA
PA
PA
PA
JE
PA
PA
JE
PA
PA
PA
PA
JE
JE
JE
PA
PA
PA
PA .
PA
JE
PA
PA
P.A
'VOL'
VOD
PA
PA
JE
V\)0
JE
JE
iJA

Cont;I'i'"i~~(\ .)i' Next Page

$29,79628
$61,077.73 '
$3,226.05

$31,723.15
$9,155.70

,$39,721.99,

$670.40 .
$33,379.11

$880.00
$44,388.38
$14,601.19
$2,808.68

$3,234.99
$48,346.92
, $3,429.74
$1,393.60

$16,701.10
$57,767.71

$4,508.40
$14,058.21 .

$32,699.76
$1,767.92

$35,277.04
$717.00

$17,914.59
$514.32

$10,807.56
$19.251.49

$4,381.60
$5,772.00

$978.08
$1,449.00

$12,498.76
$1,599,80

$677.95
$7,486.66,

$652.80

$1,830.15

$1,150.45

290930
291079
291204
291457
291604

$9,155.70 291610
291731

$16,7}2.99 _291763
292758
292763
292823
292826
292922
292950

$16,447.83 292956
293039
292401
292435
293191
293194
293443

$8,999.93 293781
293801
293804

$5,356.67 294234
297620
297643
298292
298327

$17,223.19 291405
$17,914.59 301420

301426
293531

,290320
290161
290175
290180

$17,070,24 290183
291069
293855
290008
289046
289365
289761
2897'77

$19,216.31 289872
290192

$1,172.31 290369
$10,000.00 290372

290400
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Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0030

Statement Date: 3/31/2009 - Batch # 321603

3/2/2009 #It Record Check # 14772
3/5/2009 ## Record Check # 14790
3/5/2009 ## Record Check # 14791

CHK
CHK
CHK

$22,477.95 304043
$2,414.75 304770
$2,225.00 304770

Open Transactions
Open Debits: $18,712.66

, Open Credits: $186,333.08

Batch

453.50 299125
, $1,774.98 237359
$2,027.15 307244
$1,113.87 308890
$5,349.15 308890

$18,640.52 310577
$2,017.38 289905

$276.00 289905
$343.90 289905
$127.15 289905

$6.94 289905
$122.25 289905

$87.50 306764:t- _
$31.59 244515

$660.68 250427
$85,42 250427

$391.80 268639
$943.50 309514

$2,916.37 309514
$2,169.64 309564

$544.64 309564
$1,455.70 309564

.$695. 57 309564
$330.15 309564
$135.14 309564
$81.67 309721'

$832,48 309721
$544,49 303665
$178.80 303665
$57.39 308188

$3,589.82 308265
$2,016.94 - 280677

$14.76 285604
$3,564.00 301779-'1J...ft..i­
$6,890.54 309878

$161.9l:) 309952
$153.80 309952
$756.00 '309952

Credit

309716
309480
309706V
309713
291610_ ,.:2. t:) l, to q
299644
306761 3 0 1..1!tL

$38.00 307846
$25,000.00 09 2

DebitType

PA $9,601.58
PA $3,345.60
PA ' $2,125.28
PA $1,654.20
JE . $1,000.00 ,.... -__PA~X~. ..$636.00
PA $350.00
CHK
JE
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK

, CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
JE
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK

DescriptionDate

3/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309716
3/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309480
3/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309706
3/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309713

12/31/2008 Cash - Premium Trust 8397
.. 2/4/2009 Hec.ord Cash Receipt.Batch .#299644.
3/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #306761
3/23/2009 ## Record Check # 14818
3/31/2009 Taxes to be returned to Trust
2/28/2009 Cash - Premium Trust 8397

2/2/2009 ## Record Check # 14646
4/1/2008 ## Record Check # 13549

3/18/2009 ## Record Check# 14815
3/26/2009 ## Record Check # 14829
3/26/2009 ## Record Check # 14830
3/31/2009 Income Sweep 4/1/09 - 4/2/09

12/31/2008 ## Record Check # 14572
12/31/2008 ## Record Check # 14574
12/31/2008 ## Record Check # 14577
12/31/2008 ## Record Check #14537
12/31/2008 ## Record Check # 14548
12/31/2008 ## Record Check # 14550

3/16/2009 call. servo fee portion of debtor payme
5/1/2008 ## Record Check # 13647
6/2/2008 ## Record Check # 13784
6/2/2008 ## Record Check # 13776

8/31/2008 ## Record Check #14112
3/30/2009 ## Retord Check # 14832
3/30/2009 ## Record Check # 14831
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14839
3/31/2009 #If. Record Check # 14842
3/31/2009 #If. Record Check# 14843
3/31/2009 #If. Record Check # 14844
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14833
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14837
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14846
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14845

3/2/2009 ## Record Check # 14757
3/2/2009 ## Record Check # 14761

3/24/2009 #If. Record Check # 14826
3/25/2009 ## Record Check # 14827
11/3/2008 ## Record Check # 14366
12/1/2008 #If. Record Check # 14443
2/17/2009 ABIM Fireman's Fund policy fin payment
3/31/2009 Income sweep 3/25-3/31
3/31/2009 ## Record Check# 14900,
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14897
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14873

06104/09 - 14:34 Continued On Next Paqe Paoe4



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-10030

Statement Date: 4/30/2009 - Batch # 321691

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

$311 ,440.43
$1,268,320.31
$1,138,736.59

Statement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciled Transactions

$440,337.73
$441,024.15

($686.42}

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

4/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #313078 PA $9,274.40 313078
4/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314692 PA $42,428.68 314692
4/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314738 PA $948.75 314738
4/23/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #315040 PA $38.107.63 315040
4/23/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #315124 PA $14,156.78 315124

4/9/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #311685 PA $33,030.41 311685
4/9/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #311723 PA . $5,001.22 311723

:4(14/gQ()f!H~~on:tCashReceiptBatch #312907 . PA .. $51,149.26-- - 312907--
4/14/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #312939. PA $886.40 312939
3/31/2009 Income sweep 3/25-3/31 JE $6,890.54 309878
3/31/2009 Record Cash R~ceipt Be.tcb #3097.06, PA $2,12528 309706
3/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309713 PA $1,654.20 309713
.4/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310103 PA $880.00 310103
2/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #299644 PA $636.00 299644
4/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #31.1030 PA $3,531.20 311030
4/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #311040 PA $362,196.00 311040
4/8/2009 transfer misdeposited profit sharing che . JE $362,196.00 311043
4/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch#311117 PA $45,133.88 311117
4/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310775 PA $67,178.27 310775
4/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310852 PA $62.73 310852

3/31/2009 Taxes to be returned to Trust JE, $25,000.00 309882
4/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #312246 PA $78;640.33 312246
4/13/2009· Record Cash Receipt Batch #312311 PA $8,330.16 312311
4/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #312351 PA $3,113.20 . 312351
4/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314051 PA $90,914.07 '314051
4/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314103 PA $53,260.86 314103
4/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314187 PA $6,476.25 314187
4/27/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #315420 PA $86,796.18 315420
3/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309480 PA $3,345."60 309480

4/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310297 PA $23,972.19 310297
4/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310330 PA $1,032.70 310330
4/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #311171 PA $3,960.14 311171

4/13/2009 Record Void Check #14898 VOD $51.00 312078
4/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #312097 PA $3,815.99 312097
4/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #313085 PA $70,292.51 313085
4/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #313497 PA $30,711.34 313497
4/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #313551 PA $712.50 313551
4/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #313560 pA $2,364.00 313560
4/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314488 PA $2,090.40 314488
4/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314493 PA $5,410.26 314493
4/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #314497 PA $5,025.73 314497
4/21/2009 Record Void Check #14907 von $20.00 314507
4/28/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #315854 PA $2,573.25 315854
3/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #309716 PA $9,601.58 309716
3/31/2009 Income Sweep 4/1109 - 4/2/09 JE $18,640.52 310577
4/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310709 PA $20.77 310709'
4/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #310731 PA $953.60 310731

4/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #312048 PA' $30,504.38 312048
4/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #311097 PA $267.75 311097

4/15/2009 Income Sweep 4/3 - 4/15 JE $54,405.19 313201

07/27109 - 17:41 Continued On Next Page P:olt1A 1



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0030

Statement Date: 6/30/2009 - Batch # 330064

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

$397,708.75
$1,229,627.72
$1,151,824.28

Statement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciled Transactions

,
$465,322.04
$475,512.19
($10,190.15)

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

6/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323220 PA $16,695.49 323220
6/16/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323262 PA $5,066.40 323262
6/16/2009 Income Sweep 6/11 - 6/16 JE $42,286.67 323269
6/16/2009 Income sweep 6/17 - 6/22 JE $31,332.16 323270
6/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #325209 PA $59,954.83 325209
6/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #325288 PA $1,144.00 '325288
6/24/2009 Income sweep 6/23/09 - 6/29/09 JE $11,170.82 324918

6/9/2009 Income Sweep 6/4 - 6/9 JE $12,713.46 321903
6/9/2009-WASLA lax funds on loan to operating-- .IE -- - ---------- -$10,000.00 321904
6/5/2009 correct deposit should be in Operating ( JE $362,196.00 321724

6/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #325438 PA $21,912.00 325438
6/10/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322115 PA $2,064.08 322115
6/10/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322160 PA $45,720.56 322160
6/24/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #325006 PA $14,608.81 325006
6/11/2009 Income sweep 6/10 - 6/10 JE $19,539.60 322250
6/11/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322255 PA $64,395.27 322255
4/30/2009 Correct erroneous entry-should be trust JE $11,139.66 316828
6/10/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322046 PA $70,502.73 322046

6/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321651 PA $53,547.15 321651
6/4/2009 correct deposit should be in Operating JE $362,196.00 321693

5/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #320929 PA $33,892.27 320929
6/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321861 PA $14,766.35 321861
6/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321882 PA $2,380.00 321882

6/17/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323435 PA $9,158.32 323435
6/18/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323850 PA $1,648.00 323850
6/18/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323855 PA $49,472.21 323855
6/23/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #324757 PA $2,795.89 324757
6/23/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #324764 PA $2,296.75 324764

- 6/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322996 PA $163,541.16 322996
6/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323103 PA $29.16 323103
6/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323112 PA $18,380.80 323112
6/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #324152 PA $107,485.77 324152
6/2212009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #324277 PA $907.20 324277

6/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321551 PA $25,228.36 321551
6/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321596 PA $212.50 321596
6/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321599 PA $774.15 321599
6/4/2009 Income sweep 5/27 - 6/3 JE $23,458.49 ,321602

6/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322927 PA $1,197:75 322927
6/17/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #323446 PA $15,154.69 323446

6/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321322 PA $26,909.01 321322
6/2/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321404 PA $14,204.80 321404
6/4/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #321645 PA $4,467.20 321645

6/11/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #322853 PA $5,778.40 322853
6/11/2009 ## Record Check # ord 6/09 (Manual) CHK $81,692.70 322648
6/11/2009 ## Record Check # ind 6/09 (Manual) CHK $20,319.33 322670
6/11/2009 ## Record Check # rok 6/09 (Manual) CHK $47,273.74 322688
6/11/2009 ## Record Check # and 6/09 (Manual) CHK $121,703.12 322718
6/11/2009 ## Record Check # ntp 6/09 (Manual) CHK $18,693.60 322836
5/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15043 CHK $49,745.00 319158
5/26/2009 ## Record Check # 15059 CHK $1,010.62 320164

07/29/09 - 09:33 Continued On Next Page Page 1



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0030

Statement Date: 8/31/2009 - Batch # 351713

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

$359,714.10
$764,433.54
$780,435.16

StatementBalance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciled Transactions

,
$326,025.77
$343,712.48
($17,686.71)

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

. 8/11/2009 ## Record Check # Aug 2009 (Manual) CHK $103,955.31 332071
8/11/2009 ## Record Check # 15303 CHK $63,577.60 331957
8/12/2009 ## Record Check # ord 8/09 (Manual) CHK $51,468.48 332426
8/17/2009 Cash - Premium Trust 8397 JE $42,235.18 333101
8/17/2009 ## Record Check # 15316 CHK $33,946.17 332932
8/12/2009 ## Record Check # rok 8/09 (Manual) CHK $32,292.20 332410
8/12/2009 ## Record Check # ind 8/09 (Manual) CHK $25,487.38 332445
. 8/2/2009 Cash - Premium Trust 8397 JE $25,000.00 330644

8/5/20.09 Income Sweep 8/.1 /09.-8/4/09 JE $23,638.98 .331422.
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15308 CHK $22,838.32 333182
8/24/2009 Income Sweep 8-18 thru 8-24 JE $22,726.09 334382
8/11/2009 ## Record Check # 15304 CHK $20,434.40 331992
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15311 CHK $15,678.25 333182
8/13/2009 ## Record Check # 15306 CHK $14,880.25 332667
7/29/2009 ## Record Check # 15231 CHK $14,263.04 330126
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15315 CHK $14,178.25 333216
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15310 CHK $13,840.20 333182
7/30/2009 ## Record Check # 15244 CHK $13,298.76 330581
7./30/2009 ## REjcord Check # 15237 CHK $10,795.24 330581
7/31/2009 Income sweep 7-29 -7-31 JE $9,359.07 330643
8/11/2009 Income sweep 8-7 thru 8-10 JE $9,150.98 331928
7/30/2009 ## Record Check # 15242 CHK $9,145.52 330581
7/29/2009 ## Record Check # 15230 CHK $8,340.80 330126
8/12/2009 ## Record Check # Aug 2009 (Manual) CHK $7,693.60 332395
8/11/2009 ## Record Check # 15300 CHK $7,397.50 331945
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15322 CHK $6,991.20 333501
8/17/2009 ## Record Check # 15317 CHK $6,964.66 332932
7/29/2009 ## Record Check # 15232 CHK ,$6,903.00 330126
7/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15295 CHK $6,823,87 327608
7/29/2009 ## Record Check # 15229 CHK $6,500.00 330126
8/4/2009 ## Record Check # 15294 CHK $6,300.00 331194

8/2512009 ## Record Check # 15326 CHK $6,187.50 334458
7/30/2009 ## Record Check # 15245 CHK $5,843.75 330620
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15307 CHK $5,270.92 333182
8/25/2009 ## Record Check # 15325 CHK $5,098.10 334458
7/23/2009 ## Record Check # 15276 CHK $4,978.43 329216
7/23/2009 ## Record Check # 15282 CHK $4,963.50 329216
8/26/2009 ## Record Check # 2nd Qtr (Manual) CHK $4,173.91 334685
7/30/2009 ## Record Check # 15240 CHK $4,080.23 330581
8/27/2009 ## Record Check # 15338 CHK $3,909.56 334779

8/7/2009 Income Sweep 8/5 - 8/6/09 JE $3,646.37 331671
7/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15291 CHK $3,400.00 330928
7/23/2009 ## Record Check # 15284 CHK $3,304.56 329216
8/25/2009 ## Record Check # 15331 CHK $3,160.80 334595
8/25/2009 ## Record Check # 15328 CHK $3,075.00 334458
7/29/2009 ## Record Check # 15228 CHK $2,759.20 330126
8/25/2009 ## Record Check # 15327 CHK $2,673.00 334458
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15313 CHK $2,628.80 333182
8/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15323 CHK $2,550.00 333614
8/11/2009 ## Record Check # 15302 CHK $2,362.50 331945
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Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-1 0030

Statement Date: 10/31/2009 - Batch # 351718

p ••• ,.' "

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
WIthdrawals:

$324,194.54
$539,660.52
$621,086.50

Statement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciled Transactions

$225,081.85
$242,768.56
($17,686.71 )

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

10/1/2009 Record Cash Rec~ipt Batch #339655 PA $2,674.78 339655
10/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339680 PA $1.,252.00 339680
10/1/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339683 PA $754.72 339683
10/2/2009 Income sweep 9-30-09 thru 10-2-09 JE $11,226.42 339718
10/5/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339910 PA $43,415.06 339910

10/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #341871 PA $13,388.57 341871
10/13/2009 Income sweep 10-9 thru10-13-09 JE $24,887.55 341171
10/14/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #341352 PA $37,826.27 341352
10/27/2009-lncomesweepOct-22·thru Oct-26 - -JE . - ·$9~"O89.47--34341l

10/27/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343463 PA $4,838.25 343463
10/28/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343540 PA $560.00 343540
10/28/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343606 PA $22,089.67 343606
10/28/2009 Income sweep 10-27 & 10-28 JE $2,809,18 343660
10/28/2009B0rrow from Taxes JE $2,000,00 343661
10/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343737 PA $9,094.66 343737
10/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343766 PA $990.40 343766

10/5/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340042 PA $1,878.40 340042
10/6/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340159 PA $8,098.05 340159
10/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340203 . PA $19,769.41 340203
10/8/2009 Income sweep 10-3 thru 10-8-09 JE $8,117.6,7 340342
10/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340360 PA $12,295.66 340360
10/8/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340385 PA $1,665.00 340385
9/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339086 PA $8,052.98 339086
9/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339212. PA $908.80 339212
9/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #339215 PA $21,641.81 339215

10/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342428 PA $82,867.65 342428
10/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342532 PA $1,095.0q 342532
10/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342846 PA $600.00 342846
10/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342849 PA $1"6,360.45 342849
10/20/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342664 PA $4,620.04 342664
10/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340862 PA $50,510.94 340862
10/12/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #340894 ,PA $7,468.80 340894
10/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #341015 PA $1,078.40 341015
10/13/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #341049 PA $98,725:51 341049
10/21/2009 Income sweep 1.0-14 thru 10-21 JE $16,757.34 342930
10/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342960 PA $979.20 342960
10/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #342994 PA $14,306.41 342994
10/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343017 PA $652.09 343017
10/26/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343169. PA $32,759.75 343169
10/26/2009 Record Void Check #15483 VOD $735.01 343182
10/26/2009 Record. Cash Receipt Batch #343202 PA $3,183.45 343202
10/26/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343337 PA $8,972.70 343337
10/26/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #343360 PA $434.32 . 343360
10/19/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349410 PA $3,116.25 349410

10/8/2009 ## Record Check # rd 10-09 (Manual) CHK $90,013.11 340711
10/8/2009 ## Record Check # Oct 09 (Manual) CHK $16,665.54 340664
10/8/2009 ## Record Check # ok 10-09 (Manual) CHK $29,320.09 340678
10/8/2009 ## Record Check # nd 10-09 (Manual) CHK $7,026.68 340688

10/27/2009 ## Record Check # Aug 2009 (Manual) CHK $314.85 343414
10/8/2009. ## Record Check # Oct 09 (Manual) CHK $95,416.99 340538

01/19/10 - 14:21 Continued'On Next Page Page 1



Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-10040

Statement Date: 12/31/2009 - Batch # 351408

Beginning Balance:
Deposits: '
Withdrawals:

$425,41322
$131,847.45
$252,512,91

Statement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

Reconciied Transactions

$304,259,15
$304,747.76

($488.61)

11/13/2009 Set aside SLA taxes JE
12/22/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350306 PA
12/22/2009 Record Void Check #ach VOD
12/28/2009 Net Payroll JE
12/28/2009 Operating Taxes JE
12/22/2009 Transfer tax reserYe back to Operating JE
12/31/2009 Correcting Nov balance ADP/typo on ADP e JE

12/3/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349155 PA
12/3/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349157 PA
1213/2009 Income sweep 11/10 c1212109 JE

12/30/2009 Transfer - PFS payment for ABIM Wrap JE
12/9/2009 Net Payroll JE
12/9/2009 Operating Taxes JE

12110/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349704 PA
12/10/2009 Transfer partial tax funds back to Trust JE
12/1412009 Transfer tax reservEi to Trust JE
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # ACH (Manual) CHK
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK
12122/2009 ## Record Check # ACH (Manual) CHK
12/30/2009 ## Record Check # Qtr late (Manual) CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK

12/22/2009 ## Record Check # ach (Manual) CHK
12/30/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK

12/4/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK
12/21/2009 ## Record Check # ACH (Manual) CHK
12/30/2009 ## Record Check # EFT (Manual) CHK
11/14/2009 ## Record Check # 13690 CHK
11/14/2009 ## Record Check # 13720 CHK
11/14/2009 ## Record Check # 13721 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13729 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13730 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13731 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13732 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13733 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13734 GHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13735 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13736 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13737 CHK
12/3/2009## Record Check # 13738 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13739 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13740 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13741 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13742 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13743 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13744 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13745 CHK
1213/2009 ## Record Check # 13746 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13747 CHK
12/3/2009 ## Record Check # 13748 ' CHK

Date

01/12/10 - 14:09

Description Type

Continued On Next Page

Debit

$485,20
$4,000,00

$72,000,00

$284,17
$414.46

, . $5'0;106,25
$4,273.20

$284,17

Credit Batch

$72,000,00 345353
350306
350340

$15,23324 350355
$3,021.86 350355

350326
$127.22 351409

349155
.3+S1.p7,' --------

349160
350490

$15,527.03 349408
$4,785.73 349408

349704
$22,000.00 349723
$50,000,00 349759
$4,000.00 349695

$166.17 349695
$746.65 349695
$127.48 350301 '
$416.62 351412

$1,911.24 349188
$4,000,00 350331

$651.59 350410
$3,375.00 349274

$156.85 350238
$156.85 350481

$2,000.00 345391
$2,453,37 345391

$30,95 345391
$200.00 349150
$380.00 349164
$130.90 349171
$959.17 349222
$182.53 349222
$220.00 349222

$3,885,00 349222
$15,385.17 349222

$479,25 349222
$6,346.41 349222
$1,122,03 349222

$440,94 349222
$2,100.00 349222

$22,25 349222
$875.62 349222

$85.50 349222
$280.00 349222
$69.30 349222

$227.73 349222
$562.00 349222

Page 1



Anc . Bay Insurance Managers, In - lionsolloC!'

Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-10030

Statement Date: 12/31/2009 • Batch # 351818

Beginning Balance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

$110,327.31
$347,307.58
$322,485.26

Sta.tement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Va.riance:

Reconciled Transactions

$135,149.63
$135,149.63

$0.00

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

12/28/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350400 PA $3,119.33 350400
12/29/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350403 PA $1,470.47 350403
12/30/2009 Transfer - PFS payment for ABIM Wrap JE $4,273.20 350490

12/3/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349137 PA $283.06 349137
12/312009 Income sweep 11/10 - 12/2/09 JE $50,106.25 349160
12/3/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349178 PA $4,368.63 349178
12/7/2009- -Record Void Check #15613_ VOD $4,478.91 349306
12/7/2009 Record Void Check #15614 VOb $990.74 . 349311
12/7/2009 Record Void Check #15616 VOD $2,467.78 349316
12/7/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349321 PA $66,763.02 349321
3/11/2010 Reconcile 00-00-10030 REC CR

12120/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351860 PA $4,273.20 351860
11/25/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #348846 PA $6,546.49 348846
11/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #348949 PA $34,470.24 348949
12128/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350397 PA $2,009.45 350397

12/9/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349452 PA $1,254.93 349452
12/10/2009 Transfer partial tax funds back to Trust JE $22,000.00 349723
12/14/2009 Transfer tax reserve to Trust JE $50,000.00 349759
12/14/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349762 PA $53,382.03 349762

8/6/2009 PFS payment for financed E&O premium JE $29,695.50 331502
12/15/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #349956 PA 349956
12/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350101 PA 350101
12/21/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350186 PA 350186
12/31/2009 Record Void Check #ACH 4109 VOD 353492
12/9/200~ ## Record Check # Dec 09 (Manual) CHK $844.51 349559

12/28/2009 ## Record Check # Oct 2009 (Manual) CHK $440.94 350362
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # Dec 09 (Manual) . CHK $9,159.90 349630
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # nd 12/09 (Manual) CHK $1,795.14 349646
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # rd :12109 (Manuai) CHK $34,274.37 349656
12/10/2009 ## Record Check # ok 12/09 (Manual) CHK $9,401.15 349674
3/31/2009 ## Record Check # 14866 CHK $152.85 309952
7/23/2009 ## Record Check # 15275 CHK $419.74 329216

10/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15503 CHK $5,285.86 342133
10/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15521 CHK $75.00 343924
10/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15531 CHK $5.00 343924
11/18/2009 ## Record Check # 15600 CHK 347653
11/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15612 CHK $500.71 348279
11/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15613 CHK $4,478.91 348279
11/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15614 CHK $990.74 348279
11/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15615 CHK $775.39 348279
11/24/2009 ## Record Check # 15616 CHK $2,467.78 348801
11/24/2009 ## Record Check # 15617 CHK $1,396.50 348801
11/24/2009 ## Record Check # 15621 CHK $2,676.80 348838
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15622 CHK $118.32 349037
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15623 CHK $70.00 349037
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15624 CHK $650.01 349037
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15625 CHK $100.00 349037
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15626 CHK $1,232.40 349037
12/1/2009 ## Record Check # 15627 CHK $29.81 349037
1211/2009 ## Record Check # 15628 CHK $771.00 349037

,...._._.1-:_ .. _..1 ,-."._ 1\1_".. n .............
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Reconciliation Report
For Account #00-00-10030

Statement Date: 1/31/2010 - Batch # 356730

Beginning Baiance:
Deposits:
Withdrawals:

$135,149.63
$153,454.72
$210,697.31

Statement Balance:
Acct Balance:
Variance:

$77,907.04
$77,907.04

$0.00

Reconciled Transactions

Date Description Type Debit Credit Batch

$78,130.83 351048
$52,418.08 350959
$35,793.41 352282
$15,485.60 351021
$4,309.60 351446
$4,253.50 348279
$3,857.20 351391
$2,212.50 351709
$2,027.02351>497
$1,532.80 351071
$1,196.66 357009
$1,088.55 350567
$1,038.50 350497

$977.28 351067
$968.00 351387
$745.30 350567
$618.99 335666
$606.22 349865
$411.51 350567
$393.91 350567
$344.00 348801
$341.90 343924
$332.80 351380
$292.43 351655
$289.60351380
$252.08 350567
$191.88 350567
$160.54 350567
$154.83 350567
$112.65 350641
$44.00 350567
$42.00 351376
$33.50 350502
$18.00 351614
$13.84 350611
$4.84 351372
$2.96 350567

350570
350630
357001
350436
351449
35.1458
351513
351624
351518
351521

·350881
351073
351092

$1,112.42
$2,178.40
$1,196.66
$2,943.33
$5,360.76

$344.00
$252.08

$21,519.17
$1,068.86

$51,000.00
$4,940.62

$12,392.04
$292.43

CHK
CHK
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK

. ···CHK­
CHK
JE
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
CHK
PA
PA
JE
PA
PA
VOD
VOD
PA
PA
JE
PA
PA
PA

1/11/2010 ## Record Check # Jan '10 (Manual)
1/11/2010 ## Record Check # Jan '10 (Manual)
1/28/2010 Income sweep 12/3 -12/31/09
1/11/2010 ## Record Check # 15679
1/13/2010 ## Record Check # 15683

11/19/2009 ## Record Check # 15611
1/12/2010 ## Record Check # Jan '10(Manual)
1/18/2010 ##Record Check # 15687

12/31/20(}9 #II Record Check # 15663
1/11/2010 ## Record Check # 15680
1/31/2010 Correct Bank Rec adjustment (Reversal)

12/31/2009 ## Record Check.# 15670
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15662

1/1112010 ## Record Check # Jan '10 (Manual)
1/12/2010 ## Record Check # Jan 2010 (Manuai)

12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15665
8/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15351

12/15/2009 ## Record Check # 15659
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15666
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15671
11/24/2009 ## Record Check # 15618
10/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15533

1/1212010 ## Record Check # 15682
1/18/2010 ## Record Check # 15686
1/12/2010 ## Record Check # 15681

12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15667
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15668
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15673
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15669
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15675
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15674

1/12/2010 ## Record Check # 15678
12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15664

1/18/2010 ## Record Check # 15684
1/11/2010 ## Record Check # 15676
1/12/2010 ## Record Check # 15677

12/31/2009 ## Record Check # 15672
12/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350570
12/31/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350630

1/31/2010 Correct Bank Rec adjustment
12/30/2009 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350436

1/13/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351449
1/13/2010 Record Void Check #15618
1/14/2010 Record Void Check #15667
1/18/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351624
1/14/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351518
1/14/2010 Transfer to Trust Operating capitai

1/7/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #350881
1/11/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351073
1/11/2010 Record Cash Receipt Batch #351092

03/26/10- 14:11 Contin ued On Next Page Page 1
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12-3-08.xls

June July . August. September October November December Total CY
47,234 29,802 70,936 34,'62:1-· 41,739 40,756 75,081 723,071
46,343 5,637 34,363 306,343

-
1,787 2,462 6,777

I 120,000
65,000 40,000 75,000 205,000 230,000 Actual

662 28,015 299 261 6,366 128 81 50,520 4,210
229 32,911 628 34,431

218,609 157,250 221,421 204,565 189,743 168,937 137,740 2,510,597
265,843 187,052 292,357 239,189 231,482 209,693 212,821 3,233,668

77,119 12,176 88,967 99,913 40,176 25,370

203,584 206,795 210,503 222,564 179,560 182,544 179,726
218,609 157,250 221,421 204,565 189,743 168,937 137,740

15,025 (49,545) 10,918 (17,999) 10,183 (13,607) (41,986)
7.38% -23.96% 5.19% -10:02% 5.58% -7.57% (179,726)

60,262 10,717 21,635 3,'636 13,819 212 (41,774)
16.23% 14.78% 14.25% 11.80% 11.48% 10.68% 9.04% I

10/21/201{)) Income-Expenses 2007 10/21/2010
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12-3-08.xls

- ----- -----,---- ----~-'--'------,.~~~---,.,--,----,_ .._- .. , ,-_._---- -- - , .. - ,._,.. -~ -- - - ---------~~-

12-3-QB.xls·

INCOME ITEMS TotalYTD 'January February March: April 'May June I July
Other Income 723,071 26,569 275 202,662 32,727 120,666 47,2a4 l 29,80~

Carrier Bonuses 306,343 0 189,629 30,371 46,3~

Premium Finance Income 6,777 1,236 1,292 1,78i
Loans 120,000 120,000

Borrow from I Repay to Taxes 205,000 25.000
Interest Income 50,520 333 275 13,033 472 595 66.2- 28,OH

Other Cash In 34,431 592 71 229
Swept Income 2,510,597 218,316 294,376 191,176 258,733 249,731 218,609 157,25C
Total Income 3,233,668 244,885 294,651 393,838 291,460 370,397 265,843 187.05~

Actual Amount in. Bank I 41,238 69,844 37,181 94,682 60,937 11,119 12,11E
,

Projected Income 213,536 235,075 221,106 278,923 I 218,455 203,584 206,79t
Swept Income 218,316 294,376 191,176 258,733 249,731 218,609 157,25C
Discrepancy in $ ! 4,780 59,301 (29,930) (20,190) 31,276 15,025 (49,54~

Discrepancy in % I 2.24% 25.23% -13.54% -7.24% 14.32% 7.38% -23.96C

Rolling Discrepancy in $ 4,780 64,081 34,151 13,961 45,237 60.262 10,71 j

RoJling Discrepancy in % 2.24% 15.35% 15.38% 12.33% 13.90% 16.23% 14.7W

Income-Expenses 2007 10/2112010)

._.)~'



OIC Case # 98 0538
Separate Premium Account

Balance as of
November 30, 1997

- -~
Marianne Wise

11/1712010
12:59 PM

Nov-97 Oct-97 Sap-fl7 Aug-97 Jul-97 Jun-97

Separate Premium Acct Checktng #1 2616 69041 16981 1475 65131 1441
Separate Premium Acct Checking #2- 66 66 66! 66: 66 66
Separate Premium Acct savings 5na9 .71215 52142 38367 50978 50978
Separate Premium Acct Monev Market ,

Accounts Receivable "44313 17563 45986 61346 52529 49639
Less: Commissions 12.5 % -5539 -2195 -5748 -7668 -6566 -6205
Le$s: Accounts over 90 days old -3510 -3650 -4856 -3475 -4046 . -6524
Totar $ 95,735 $ 89,903 $ 89,288 f $ 90,111 ,$ 158,092 $ 90,395

,
! I

Payable to insurers -902391 -80582 -98414 -116559 . -111490 -83676
NET DIFFERENCE $ 5,496 $ 9,321 $ (9,126) $ (26,44B) $ 46,602 $ 6,719

Pa~e1



OIG Gase # 98 0258

separate Premium Account
Balance as of
April 30, 1998

Marianne Wise
11/17/2010

12:55 PM

Aor-98 Mar-98 Feb-98 Jan-98 D00-97 Nov-97

Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 8418 7993 . 15043 923 4031 3776
Separate Premium Acct Checking #2

,
i

Separate Premium Acct Savings 54359 541471 53957 53746 53533 53329
Separate Premium Acet Money Market 62047 842351 42573 86379 85058 107914
Accounts Receivable 516891 294771 37879 17733 36524 25643
Less: Commissions 12.5 % -B461.125 -3684.625 -4734.875 -2216.625. -4565.5 . -3205.375
Less: Accounts over 90 days old -13537 -8319 -16233 -10449 ' -12994 1 3442
Total $ 156,515 $ 163,848 $ 128,484 $ 146,115 $ 161,587 I $ 190,899

i

I , i
Payable to Insurers -77286 -73446 -62374 -66362. -92684 -111503
NET DIFFERENCE $ 79,229 [$ 90,402 $ 76,110 $' 79,753 $ 68,903 $ 79,396

Page 1



OJe Case # 980294

Separate Premium Account Ken Combs and
Marianne WISe

11117/2010

. £.JAs..h~ 11/} (J

-.J
Jan-98 I Feb-S8 Mar-98 Apr-9a I M2iV..gs

I

Separate Premium Acet Checking #1 $349,958 ' $217,670 $312,156 $237,279 $160,757
Separate Premium Acct Checking #2
separate Premium Acct Savings I
Brokers Accounts Receivable I 406,080 374,432 293,769 215,394, 309,225
Accounts Recefvable 40,702 30,882 29,369 30,095 16,653
Less: .Accounts over 90 days old !

Total ·$796,740 $622,984 $635,294 $542,768 $486,635

I ,

Payable to Insurers ($811,160) ($612,491)1 ($630,887) ($525,376) , ($482,134)
NET DIFFERENCE 1$ (14,420)1 $ 10,493 $ 4,407 $ 17,392 $ 4,501

Page 1
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OIC Case # 98 0490
separate Premium Account
. Baiance as of

Month day, yr

Marianne Wise
11117/2010

12:58 PM

,

Jul-S8 Jun-S8 Mav-S8 Apr-S8 Mat-S8 I Feb-S8

SeparatePremium Acct Checking #1 76313
Separate Premium Acct Checking #2
Separate Premium Acet savings ,
Separate Premium Ace! Monev Market \ 105000 I
Accounts Receivable i 87222
Less: Commissions 12.5 % -10902.75 0 0 0 0 0

. Less: Accounts over SO days old
Total $ 257,632 $ - $ - $ - ,$ - $ -

Payable to Insurers -164111
NET DIFFERENCE ,$ 93521 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ .

~s over 1.5 million in cd's 100,000 alotted to each aoencv

Page 1



OIC Case #OO~0125 .
Ken Combs

ABIIJTY OF AGENCY TO MEET PREMIUM LIABIIJTIES;

To determine the agency's "Trust Position:' on March 31, 2000 we performed the following
calculations:

Trust Bank Accounts
Accounts Receivable
Funds Availah1e for Premium Liabilities

Insurance Company Payab1es-(Gross)

Overage or (Shortage)

$ 45,857.82
21.609.77
67,467.59

65,774.80

$ 1.692.79

\line above calculations show that tile agency is "jn Trust" as ofMarch 31, 20~Q.

5



OIC Case #01-0004
Ken Combs

We calculated the agency's ability to meet premium'liabilities or its "Trust Position" with the
following calculations based on balances on Apri130, 2001.

PremiumJrust Account-Acct #t·
I Treasury - Ace! •
:Su15"ACcount - Acet # r .

Accounts Receivable
Less: Commissions (10% est.)
Funds Available

.Insurance Company Payables

Overage (Shortage) .

$ 491,373.13
752,091.70
270,712.56

$1,587,898.90
158.789.82 10422,109.01

2,943,286.40

2.934,428.J5

$ tmM58.0a

Basedorttheabovecf\louhttionstheagenoyis "In Trust"as ofApril 30, 2001

~.
Ken Combs, CPA
.Insurance Examiner



I.' •

ole Case #01-0443
Ken Combs

"' ¥ .....

ABJl.J.'IY OF AGENCY TO MEET PREMIUM LI1\BILI11ES;

\To determine the agency'sHTrustPosition" on August31, 2001 we per(onned the following /
calculations:

.Trust Checking Accounts
Trust Investment Account
Accounts R~ceivable .
Less Commissions
Funds Availablc' for Premium Liabilities
Insurance Company Payables

.Overage or (Shortage)

$8,521,573
190,59B

$ 9.717,996
. 201,938..
8,330,975

18)50)909.
16,497.418

i
I

$.1.753.421 !
I

. I

o /
7



OIC Case#: 10555 Case Description Notes:

To determine the agency's ability to meet premium liabilities or its "Trust Position" on

December 31, 2001 we performed the following calculations:

Trust Bank Accounts $ 78,187.66

Money Market Account 142,052.48

Accounts Receivable $360,622.62

less Commissions (7.5% est.) 27,046.70 333,575.92

Funds Available for
, Premium liablilties 553.816.06

less Insurance Company
Payables 979,243.22

Overage or (Shortage} (425,427.16)

The above shows that the agency is "Out ofTrust" as of December 31,2001 by $425,427.16.

I(en Combs, Investigator



OIC Case #: 20176 Case Description Notes:

To determine the agency's aoility to me~t premium liabJltties we performed the following
calculations based on the agent's 04/31/02 balance sheet,

Premium Trust Checking $ 7,379,03

Premium Trust Savings 12,341.19

Trust Money Market .1,134.60

New Tmst Savings 1,816,65

Accounts Receivable $62,956,16,'

Less Commissions (12% est.) 7,554,74 . 55,401.42

Total Funds Available 78,012',89

Insurance Company Payables 75,145,51

Overage or (Shortage) $2,927.38

The above calculation shows that the agency is "In TrUst" as of April 30, 20b2.



OIC CaSe #: 30098

AGENCY'S ABILITY TO MEET PREMIUM OBLIGATIONS: To determine the agency's ability to meet

obligations as theY come due, I performed the following calculation based on the balances

February 28, 2003.

Separate Premium Account Balance $ 497,717

Separate PremIum Acct. Money Market $ 52,783

Accounts Receivable $1,578,817

Less: Avg. commission @12.5% <$197,352> $1,381,465

Less: Accounts over 90 days old <$ 333,776>

Total: $1,598,189

Payable to Insurers

NET DIFFERENCE:

Investigator/Examiner: Not Ken Combs

<$1,769,734>

<$ 171,545>



OIC Case #: 30437

AGENCY'S ABILITY TO MEET FUTU~E PREMIUM LIABILITIES:

In order to calculate the agency's lItrust posltion'l the following calculations were made based

on balance sheet balances on 7/17/03.

Trust Checking $2A58.68

Trust Sweep Account 1,114.18

Trust Savings .25,607.44

Accounts Receivable $76,368.86

Less

commissions (est. @ 12.5%} 9,546.11 66/822.75

Funds available 96,003.05

less

Insurance Company Payables 74}659.77

-- ---'1

IIl n Trust ll Balance

Ken Combs, Investigator

$21,343.28



Case: # 40451 Case Description Notes:

AGENCY'S ABILITY TO MEET PREMIUM LIABILITIES: In order to determine if the agency is "In

Trust" we performed the following com putations based on the Balance Sheet figures as ofJuly

20,2004:

Trust Bank Accou nt

Accounts Receivable

Funds Available

less:

$231,565.29

246,620.34

478,185.63

Insurance Company Payables' 402,410.48

In Trust 75,775.15

The above shows the agency is In trust by $75,775.15.

Ken Combs, Investigator



Case #40544 Description of Case Notes:

AGENCY'S ABILITY TO MEET PREMIUM LIABILITIES: In order'to determine if the agency is "In

Trust" we performed the following computations based on Balance Sheet figures as of August

18,2004:

Trust Bank Account

Accounts Receivable

Funds Available

Less: Accounts Payable-

Insurance Companies

In Trust

$38,573.90

(16,381.57)

$22,192.52

4,500.81

$17,691.52

Ken Combs, Investigator Non-Surplus Line Agency



f
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C
OIC Case # 40587

Ken Combs

AGENCY·S ABIUTYTO MEET PREMIUM LIABILITIES: Based on

Sheet as of November 30, 2004 the agency's IITrust Position" was as follows:

~.

Balance

Trust Account

Accounts Receivable

$ 9,439.20

$183,303.76

Jess Commissions @ 12%(Est) 21,996.46 161,307.30

Funds Availabl,e

less Insurance Company

Payables

Out of Trust

Ken Combs, Investigator

170,746.50

${270,536.30)

r
17



ole Case #60158 [File closed 03~0247] Notes:.

March 31, 2006 balances. The balances are as fonows:

Premium Bank Account $160,727.60

Accounts Receivables 963/052.21

Total to be Available $1,123,779.81 I
I

less; - -1
!

Insurance Company Payables (1,791,598.25)

Surp,lus Lines Taxes ( 40,217.72)

IJOut of Trust Balance" $ (708/036.16)

Ken Combs was the Investigator on this case.



OIC Case #: 60473

AGENCY'S ABILITY TO MEET PREMIUM OBLIGATIONS To determine the agency's ability to meet

obligations as they come due, I performed the following calculation based on a month-end

report ending May 2006.

Separate Premium Account- Checking $ 40,497

Separate Premium Account - Savings $ 60,958

Accounts Receivable $325,181

Less; Avg.Comm @12.5% $ 40,648 $284,533

Total: $385,988

Payable due Insurers; $352,915

NET DIFFERENCE:. +$ 33,073

Based on the above calculation the agency has sufficient funds In the separate premium

account to meet future obligations.



OICCase#: 1013740

RETURN PREMillMS:

.. ' ..... "

To test for compliance wi~ RCW 48.17.480 Reporting and accounting for premiums, I
selected credits from the insurance company statements for the period January 2006
tlrrough December 2007.

All of the credits had been refunded to the insureds in a timely manner.

There were no violations found during this review.

Agency's Ability to Meet Future Premium Liabilities:

In order to calculate the agency's ability to meet their premiiun liabilities the following
calculations were made based on.balance sheet flIDOlU1tS on December 31, 2007.

Trust Checking .
Trust Savings
ACOOlU1ts Receivable
Funds Available

Insurance Complilly Payables

~'In TnlSf~ Balance

$ 205
38,617
;3,623

42,445

31,671

$10,774

The above calculations shows that the agency is "in trust" by $10,774 and has sufficient
funds to meet its premium liabilities.

SUMMARy:
. .

There were no violations found during the audit. All refunds were retumed promptly to .
the insureds and the agency is in trust. The agency appears to be operating very well in
all areas.

I~
Ken Combs, CPA
Insurance Examiner



ole Case # 1023097 (prior)
Separate Premium Account

Summary
Mary Manum

Financial Examiner­

1(29(2009
7:39 AM

J

Page 1
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OIC Case # 114226

Separate Premium Account
Summary

Mary Manum
Financiai Examiner

4/24/2009
8:44AM

\

Jul,08 Aug.-08 Sep,Q8 Ocl,Q8 Nov,Q8 Dec,08
.

Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 72,378 68,351 68,114 47,548 47,970 80,597
Separate Premium Acct Checking tf2

Separate Premium Acct Savings
Separate Premium Acct Money Market
Accounts Receivable 48,002 127,352 56,477 23,765 39,029 494
Less: Commissions 12.5 % ,575025 ,15919 ,7059.625 -2970.625 -4878.625 -61.75
Less: Accounts over 90 days old
Total $ 112,630 $ 179,784 $ 117,531 $ 68,342 $ 82,120 $ 81,029

Payable to Insurers -44,262 -119,533 -50,943 -2D,495 -31,5051 -29,471
NET DIFFERENCE $ 68,3681 $ 60,251 $ 66,588 $ 47,847 $ 50,615 I $ 51,558

Page 1



OIC Case #: 1023097

AGENCY'S ABIlITY TO MEET PREMIUM OBLIGATIONS

To determine the agency's ability to meet obligations as they come due, I performed the

following calculation based on a month end December 2008 report.

Separate Premium Account Checking

Separate Premium A~countSavings

Accounts Receivable

Less: Avg. commission @ 12.0%

Total:

Payable to Insurers

NET DIFFERENCE

$ 38,727

$69,622

$ 48,440

6,055

$150,734

( $139,206)

$ 11,528

$ 42,385

Based on the above calculation the agency has sufficient funds in the separate premium

account to meet future obligations.

Investigator/Examiner: Not Ken'Combs



WAC 284·12·080 Requirements for separate accounts. (1 )The purpose ofthis.*
$ection is to effectuate RCW 48.17.600 and 48,17.480 with respect to the separatlon~'

arid accounting of premium funds by agents, brokers, solicitors, general agents and 1
[surplu$line brokers, hereinafter called "producers.'1 Pursuant to RCW 48.30.010, the
commissioner has found and hereby defines it to be an unfair practice for any producer,
except as allowed by statute, to conduct insurance business without complying with the
requirements of RCW 48.17.600 and this section. As provided in RCW 48.17.600,
agents for title insurance companies or insurance brokers whose average daily balance
for premiums received on behalf of insureds in the state of Washington equals or
exceeds one million dollars, are exempt from subsections (1) through (6) of this section,
except with respect to premiums and return premiums received in another licensing
capacity.

(2),AII funds representin~r!J~2...and r.etu!!!~!!1!~':fl: received on Washington
business by a producer in his or her fiduciary capacity on or after January 1, 1987, shall
be deposited in one or more identifiable separate accounts whicRmay be interest
bearing.

,(aJA producer may deposit no funds other than premiums and return premiums to
thel'Separate account except as follows:

(i) Funds reasonably sufficient to pay bank charges;

(ii) Funds a producer may deem prudent for advancing premiums, or establishing
reserves for the paying of return premiums; and

(iii) Funds for contingencies as may arise in the business of receiving and
transmitting premiums or return premiums.

(b) A producer may commingle Washington premiums and return premiums with
those produced in oth,er states, but there shall be no commingling of any funds which
would not be permitted by this section.

(3)(a) The separate account funds may be:

(i) Deposited in a checking account, demand account, or a savings account in a bank,
national banking association, savings and loan association, mutual savings bank, stock
savings bank, credit union, or trust company located in the state of Washington. Such an
account must be insured by an entity of the federal government; or

(ii) Invested in United States government bonds and treasury certificates or other
obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United States government is pledged
for payment of principal and interest, repurchase agreements collateralized by securities
issued by the United States government, and bankers acceptances. Insurers may, of
course, restrict investments of separate account funds by their agent.

(b) A nonresident licensee, or a resident producer with affiliated operations under
common ownership in two or more states, may utilize comparable accounts in another
state provided such accounts otherwise meet the requirements of RCW 48.17.600 and
this rule, and are accessible to the commissioner for purposes of examination or audit at
the expense of the producer.



(4) Disbursements or withdrawals from a separate account shall be made for the
following purposes only, and in the manner stated:

(a) For charges imposed by a bank or other financial institution for operation of the
separate account;

(b) For payments of premiums, directly to insurers or other producers entitled theret

(c) For payments of return premiums, directly to the insureds or other persons entiU
thereto;

(d) For payments of commissions and other funds belonging to the separate
account's producer, directly to another account maintained by such producer as an
operating or business account; and

(e) For transfer of fiduciary funds, directly to another separate premium account
which meets the requirements of this section.

(5){:::l'Tlip AntirA nrAmillm rpr"Ai\lAri (including a surplus lines premium tax if paid by

the lhsur~d) LD.!:!~.t~9-£J2~lt§.9JL1J9 th~~R~2!J.D.L§u£bJ~~~,~~~,1L£~~~
nromntllLtnJbF! insur.ar.,nrAA.,anr,:)thArnrorhlr.p.r AntitlAri thArAtn in accordance with the
terms of any applicable agreement between the parties.

~\

<,OJ) Return premiums received by a producer and the producer's share of any
premiums required to be refunded, must be deposited promptly to the separate accoun
Such funds shall be paid promptly to the insured or person entitled thereto.

] ~



Case #
90 Day Less

Limitation on Commission Surplus Line
Taxes

NR? onNR?

Yes Yes No

No No Yes
No Yes No
No No No

60158
._ 01-0443

00-0125
10555 No Yes No
40587 No Yes No
40451 No No No
30437 No Yes No

1013740 No No No
40544 No No No
60473 No Yes No
20176 No Yes . No
114226 No Yes No

1023097 No Yes No
1023097 (prior) No Yes No

980258
~. 980294 No Yes No

980538 Yes Yes No
980490 No Yes No
30098 Yes Yes No

01-0004 No Yes No
Premiums, Accounts Receivable and Carrier Payables were

always included in the calculations.



STATE OF WASHINGTON
MIKE KREIDLER

STATE INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

OFFICE OF
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

Monday, November 15, 2010

WILLIAM H TANNER
ANCHOR BAY INSURANCE MANAGERS, INC,
10049 KITSAP MALL BLVD STE 303
SILVERDALE, WA 98383

OIC Case # 1038881

Phone (360) 725-7000
www.insurance.wa.gov

2...1

AGEN8Y FINANCIAL EXAMINATION - 2009 UNPAID SURPLUS LINE PREMIUM TAX

On October 18, 2010, I went to Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. in Silverdale, Washington
to conduct a limited scope agency financial examination, assisted by Investigator Marianne
Azevedo. The examination was initiated due to the Licensee's failure to pay his 2009 surplus
lines taxes in the amount of $89,325.00 by March 1, 2010 as required by RCW 48.15.120(1). As
of Friday, October 29, 2010, the firm has failed to remit the taxes, and the total amount due
including penalties is now $107,190.00.

We met with William Tanner, President/Owner, and Sally Cabbel], Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
who provided the books and records necessary to complete the examination.

The examination was limited to the transactions and records pertinent to verifying the agency's
compliance with the Insurance Code. The areas audited and the results of the examination are
as follows:

PREMIUM TAX

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. has electronically filed the 2009 annual statement that
self-reports an aggregate total of $89,325.00 in premium tax owing for the year 2009. These
taxes were required to be remitted to the State of Washington by March 1,2010. On March 8,
2010, Mr. Tanner apprised the Office of the Insurance Commissioner via email that the taxes
had not been paid and stated"." I need to discuss aUf options in some detail."

VIOLATION

RCW 48.15.120(1) Premium tax - Surplus lines. "On or before the first day of March of each
year each surplus line broker shall remit to the state treasurer through the commissioner a tax
on the premiums ...transacted by him or her during the preceding calendar year as shown by his
or her annual statement filed with the commissioner..."

Firm was instructed to remit this amount immediately.

Mailing Address: po. Box 40257· Olymp'la, WA 98504-0257
Street Address: 5000 Capitol Blvd.• Tumwater, WA 98501
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SEPARATE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

Premium tax monies were not kept in the premium trust account. Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers Inc. has consistently used premium tax monies to fund operating expenses of the
firm. Review of financiai documents and conversations with William Tanner and Sally Cabbell
demonstrate the following pattern from January 2007 through October 2009:

1. Funds are deposited into the premium trust bank account.

2. Firm transfers monies identified as premium taxes from the premium trust bank account
to the operating bank account. Funds are used to pay operating expenses throughout
the year.

3. Firm remits taxes out of the operating account.

Sworn statements provided by WiJliam Tannerand Sally Cabbell indicate Anchor Bay
experienced severe cash flow problems, and in 2008 they began moving some of the premium
tax monies from the premium trust bank account into the operating bank account to pay general
operating expenses of the firm, such as payroll.

William Tanner states in his October 20, 2010 sworn statement:

"... in part of 2008 and all or almost all of 2009, we kept the premium taxes in the operating
account and used them to fund operations, expecting that we would recoup them, before
they were due, upon the sale of our book to Hull. Unfortunately, we over-estimated the net
receipts from the sale and, in order to continue operations, were not able to pay our taxes in
a timely fashion ...."

Sally Cabbell initially states in her October 20, 2010 sworn statement:

" ...Anchor Bay maintains two bank accounts: a premium trust account and an operating
account. In 2008, we began using some of the premium trust account tax monies to fund
the operating account. ... We were depositing the premiums collected, including the
inspection fees, sales tax and stamping fees, into the premium trust account and moving
some of the tax reserve funds to the operating account to cover payroll and other operating
expenses...."

However, subsequent discussion with Sally Cabbell after analysis of these bank transfers found
that Anchor Bay had actually begun transferring premium tax monies to the operating account in
January 2007, and she had tracked the money movement in 2007 on an excel spreadsheet. Ms.
Cabbell provided another sworn statement indicating that the total amount of the premium tax
funds borrowed to fund operating expenses was $452,000.00, and also provided a copy of her
2007 spreadsheet, which I had her sign.

Ms. Cabbell related that Anchor Bay paid the 2007 and 2008 premium taxes out of the operating
account, so the balance of monies "owed" to the trust account could be considered as offsetting
the funds taken in 2007 and 2008. These tax payments were verified as being made from the
operating account.

In December 2009 the firm attempted to replace some of the premium tax funds removed from
the trust account in anticipation of paying the taxes by March 1, 2010. However, there was so
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little cash in the trust account available to pay insurance carriers and retum premiums; the taxes
could not be paid.

Ms. Cabbell's second swom statement is a schedule tracing the transfers between the premium
trust bank account and the operating bank account. Source documents supporting include:

(1) Bank statements and joumal entries to itemize and describe the $247,000 in premium
tax monies removed from the premium trust account in 2008 and 2009 and the transfers
back into the trust account in December 2009 and January 2010. The descriptions
clearly indicate the firm was aware the funds moved related to premium tax. [Note: The
firm prepared the 2008 premium tax check specifying the Surplus Line Association of
Washington (SLAW) as the payee instead of the State of Washington. This clarifies why
the firm described the tax amounts transferred to the operating account as "SLA."]

(2) Sally Cabbell's schedule, supported by copies of the bank statements, was used to
idel1tifythe ;ZQ07 transfers. [Ms.Cabbell was asked for the 2007 bank statements and
bank reconciliations and initially stated she thought they were in storage offsite. These
were located late in the day on Thursday, October 21,2010.]

Investigator Azevedo performed an analysis of various balance sheet account balances to arrive
at an estimate of the minimum balance the firm should be maintaining in the premium trust bank
account. The analysis indicated a deficiency of $108,365 as of September 30,2010.

VIOLATION

WAC 284-12-080 Requirements for separate accounts. (5)(a) The entire premium received
(including a surplus lines premium tax if paid by the insured) must be deposited into the
separate account.

RCW 48.15.180 Surplus line broker's fiduciary capacity. - Violations. (3) Any surplus line broker
or other person licensed under this chapter who, not being lawfully entitled thereto, diverts or
appropriates funds received in a fiduciary capacity or any portion thereof to his or her own use,
is guilty of theft under chapter 9A.56 RCW. [Diversion of funds to pay general operating
expenses.]

DILIGENT SEARCH

Insurance may only be placed in the non-admitted market after a diligent search of the admitted
market has been performed and coverage is not available. William Tanner related that he does
not perform a search of the admitted market prior to signing the Affidavit attesting that the
search has been performed. Mr. Tanner stated that he was relying on the producer generating
the referral to Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc. to have performed the work. In 2009 the
firm filed over 2,000 Affidavits.

Review of the contents of several insured customer files verified that there was no
documentation to support the contention that a diligent search of the admitted market was
performed.
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VIOLATION

VIOLATIONS

$ 223,311.005% of Premiums Written

Financial Examiner

RCW 48.15.070 Surplus line brokers - Licensing - Bond - Renewal. (3) Every resident surplus
line broker licensed under this chapter must maintain in force while so licensed a bond in favor
of the people of the state of Washington ... in the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars,
or five percent of the premiums from placement of coverage with surplus line insurers in the
previous calendar year, whichever is greater, but not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars
total aggregate liability.

4!Page

The $50,000 bond in favor of the people of the State of Washington is inadequate in amount
and fails to meet statutory requirement. RCW 48.15.070 (3) requires a bond in the amount of
5% of the premiums written in the previous year, and sets a minimum bond requirement of
$2,500 and a maximum of $100,000. The calculation below illustrates the deficiency:

2009 Total Premiums written $4,466,231.69 [Per Annual tax statement filed by firm]

RCW 48.15.040 "Surplus line" coverage. (2). The insurance must not be procurable, after
diligent effort has been made to do so from among a majority of the insurers authorized to
transact that kind of insurance in this state.

On Friday, October 22, 2010 Mr. Tanner signed acknowledgement of the directive to cease
signing Affidavits anq placing insurance in the non~aqmitted market until he has performed and
documented the diligent search required by statute.

Sally Cabbell, CFO, indicated that the firm has continuously maintained the $20,000 bond in
favor of the State of Washington and that the producer bond in favor of the people of the State
of Washington in the amount of $50,000 was recently renewed by Lovsted-Worthington. Ms.
Cabbell stated that Lovsted-Worthington was their sale bonding provider. Lovsted-Worthington
confirmed that the $50,000 producer bond was recently renewed (August 2010) and that there
were no additional bonds other than these two for Washington State.

BON D-Renewal

RCW 48.15.040 "Surplus line" coverage. (5 ) At the time of the procuring of any such insurance
an affidavit setting forth the facts referred to in subsections (2) and (3) of this section must be
executed by the surplus line broker. Such affidavit shall be filed with the commissioner within
thirty days after the insurance is procured. [Misrepresentation; Filing false affidavits.]

The firm, William Tanner, is required to maintain a bond in favor of the people of the State of
Washington in the amount of $100,000.

- .,
,,'



In-Trost Oalcmatioos
2000 Accounts

Interstate Sweep Trust
Key checking Trust
BofA Savings Trust
BofA Checking Trust
McDonalds Investment
Accounts Receivable
Camer Payables
Over/Short
Trust Ratio

2001 Accounts
Interstate Sweep Trust
Key checking Trust
SofA Savings Trust
BofA Checking Trust
McDonalds Investment
Accounts Receivable
Carrier Payables
Over/Short
Trust Ratio

2002 Accounts
Interstate Sweep Trust
Key checking Trust
BofA Savings Trust
SofA Checking Trust
McDonalds Investment
Accounts Receivable
Carrier Payables
Over/Short
Trust Ratio

2003 Accounts
Interstate Sweep Trust
Key checking Trust
SofA Savings Trust
SofA Checking Trust
McDonalds lnvesbnent
Accounts Receivable
Carrier Payables
Over/Short
Trust Ratio

2004 Accounts
Interstate Sweep Trust
Key checking Trust
BofA Savings Trust
SofA Checking Trust
McDonalds Investment
Accounts Receivable
Carrier Payables
Over/Short

~/-/

..
Jan-OO Feb-OO Mar-OO Apr-OO May-oO Jun-OO JuI-OO AugoOO Sep-OO Oct-OO Nov-oO Dec-OO

200 200 12,676 195,399 427,004 480,188 430,380
100 100 100 113 146

(12,576) (1,236) (1.313) (4,O15) (5,419)
2,368 1,195 0 177,044 373,731 410,459 351,768

(2,168) (99S) 200 17,219 52,060 65,827 73,339
0_08 0.17 1.10 1.14 1_16 1.21

Jan-01 Feb-01 Mar-01 Apr-01 May-01 Jun-01 Jul-01 Aug-01 Sep-01 Oct-01 Nov-01 Dec-01

270,582 -,- 692,783 614,962 794,980 709.790 639;458 373,786 ~5,663 634,538 525,732 474,087
146 146 (49,573) 146 146 146 1,396 9,431 5,510 7,857 6,758 6,783

(27.894) (4,398) (57,970) (10,186) (75,132) 31,549 23,064 24,132 57,629 12,121 16,857 71,811
170,743 404,473 512,452 497,214 604,422 606,762 554,019 292,815 329,226 528,117 434,039 478,134
72,091 25,705 72,788 107,708 115,572 134,723 109,899 114,534 99,576 126,399 115,308 74,547

1.42 1.06 1.14 1.22 1.19 1.22 120 1.39 1.30 1_24 1.27 1.16

Jan-02 Feb-02 Mar-02 Apr-02 May-02 Jun-02 Jul-02 Aug-02 Sep-tl2 Oct-tl2 Nov-02 Dec-tl2

398,301 556,883 436,010 832,851 971,940 623,535 1,065,423 891,586 651,348 536,110 672,733 816,713
6,783 (135,478) 8,933 12,202 12,202 12,502 38,477 40,471 332,057 671,089 595,465 541,413

28,114 220,467 28,170 7,424 (51,349) (11,339) 30,823 123,386 149,625 56,710 233,310 68,842
339,550 497,547 507,652 674,430 761,289 1,000,206 926,699 1,217,841 980,897 1,405,539 1,198,895 1,118,415

93,648 144,325 (34,539) 178,047 171,504 (375,508) 208;024 (162,398) 152,133 (141,630) 302,613 308,553
1.28 1.29 0.93 1.26 1.23 0.62 1.22 0.87 1.16 0.90 1.25 1.28

Jan-03 Feb-03 Mar-03 Apr-tl3 May-03 Jun-03 Jul-03 Aug-tl3 Sep-oS Oct-03 Nov-03 Dec-03
5 495 490 485 630,331 547 (537,484) 595 2,973 643 29,058

12,991
1,112,336 1,755,272 872,082 818,016 1,544,597 1,662,096 2,177,720 1,958,033 2,259,278 2,661,631 2,464,237 2,481,040

788,755 47,409 76,985 325,336 388,119 390,429 392,373 401,431 160,580 103,762 106,719 294,134

(55,756) 154,450 (42,323) (4,282) (40,251) 54,764 91,866 78,372 (18,101) (116,028) 190,989 202,218
1,750,744 1,507,560 586,944 890,463 1,514,655 2,388,239 2,295,644 1,555,849 2,128,539 2,178,547 2,230,779 2,428,838

94,591 449,576 320,295 249,097 378,295 349,381 366,862 344,503 273,813 473,791 531,809 590,603
1.05 1.30 1_55 1.28 1.25 1.15 1.16 122 1.13 1.22 1.24 1.24

Jan-04 Feb-04 Mar-04 Apr-04 May-04 Jun-04 Jul-04 Aug-04 Sep-04 Oct-04 Nov-04 Dec-04

706 1,122 599,884 26,853 585 624,954 2,117 5,392 2,416 26,617 51 423
990,191 247,593 494,502 406,334 320,067 398,782 (72,832) 253,398 171,470 65,530 627,080 652,432
201,063 194,490 194,489 194,568 196,640 194,707 298,750 0 0 0 0 0

103,831 103,831 103,961 103,961 103,961 103,961 149,502 0 0 0 0 0

1,500,463 1,686,110 1,612,035 2,352,945 2,403,941 1,535,152 2,096,454 1,237,549 1,273,483 1,749,822 1,311,424 1,315,728

11,088 252,488 (304;843) 1,350,219 1,381,665 1,130,301 1,096,474 1,149,418 1,286,004 1,350,941 960,297 1,072,890

2,336,588 2,122,422 2,314,931 3,682,583 3,617,468 3,298,574 2,831,191 2,370,786 2,157,884 2,636,857 2,616,057 2,721,298

470,754 363,212 385,097 752,297 789,391 689,283 739,274 274,971 575,489 556,053 282,795 320,175



Trust Ratio 1.20 1.17 1.17 1.20 1.22 1.21 126 1.12 1.27 1.21 1.11 1.12
Impact of BofA to Key Transfer Error 123,000 123,000 123,000 123,000 123,000

397,971.00 - - - -Trust Ratio - Factoring in Errors 1.17 1.32 1.2. 1.16 1.16

2005 Accounts Jan-05 Feb-OS Mar-OS Apr-OS May-OS Jun-05 Jul-OS Aug-OS Sep-05 Oct-05 Nov-05 Dec-OS
Interstate Sweep Trust 1,626 1,405 205,337 1,375 1,183 260
Key checking Trust 121,385 465,118 595,010 438,589 197,552 296,490 272,359 442,279 (39,940) 391,089 342,768 73,056
SofA savings Trust
BofA Checking Trust
McDonalds Investment 1,932,729 1,474,8134 1,103,861 2,006,830 1,585,110 1,500,841 1,404,437 657,008 1,108,963 811,663 761,663 1,015,282
Accounts Receivable 1,213,275 1,114,139 1,438,114 1,340,750 1,671,991 1,205,338 1,089,912 1,404,552 1,168,302 1,065,742 1,087,541 1,047,224
Carrier Payables 2,959,147 2,993,680 3,169,392 3,579,044 3,157,923 2,762,914 2,490,655 2,201,585 1,955,247 1,925,137 1,871,902 1,804,090
Over/Short 309,868 61,876 172,930 20S,500 297,913 240,015 276,053 302,254 282,078 343,357 320,070 331,472
Trust Ratio 1.10 1.02 1.05 1.06 1.09 1.09 1.11 1.14 1-14 1.18 1.17 1.18

200a Accounts Jan-Oa Feb-oa Mar-06 Apr-06 May-06 Jun-06 Jul-06 Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-Oa Nov-06 Dec-06
Key checking Trust 7,243 431,593 1,113,523 366,248 281,073 591,931 613,289 22,036 339,410 912,395 505,791 174,045
McDonalds Investment 1,053,055 906,281 684,127 1,787,511 1,342,593 1,095,988 716,014 1,169,076 1,524,098 1,079,369 1,113,066 1,163,066
Accounts Receivable 1,689,185 1,387,802 1,688,506 1,779,246 1,727,575 1,315,599 1,366,345 1,748,840 1,523,359 1,342,002 1,771,271 1,663,616
Carrier Payables 2,318,011 2,527,881 3,068,147 3,542,363 2,989,666 2,657,299 2,364,890 2,441,229 2,885,510 2,758,046 2,783,452 2,397,283
Over/Short 431,472 197,795 418,009 390,642 361;575 346,219 330,758 498,723 501,357 575,720 606,676 603,444
Trust Ratio 1.19 108 1.14 1.11 1.12 1.13 1_14 1.20 1.17 1.21 1.22 1.25

2007 Accounts Jan-07 .Feb-07 Mar-07 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07 Sep-07 Oct-07 Nov-07 Dec-07
Key checking Trust 226,773 (46,721) 55,251 423,532 486,519 260,154 538,594 159,894 150,878 331,185 147,137 305,509
McDonalds Investment 968,170 ' 1,118,170 920,858 876,721 463,022 716,984 489,436 641,639 743,381 495,501 697,162 199,603
Accounts Receivable 1,537,761 1,586,363 1,804,295 1,687,330 1,274,936 1,283,654 1,151,499 1,473,352 1,215,002 1,131,367 1,376,295 1,469,289
Carrier Payables 2,021,221 2,327,106 2,364,925 2,649,772 1,931,672 1,956,602 1,869,806 1,998,494 1,938,618 1,714,224 1,994,362 1,810,117
Over/Short 711,483 330,706 415,479 337,S11 292,805 304,190 309,723 276,391 170,643 243,829 226,232 164,284
Trust Ratio 1.35 1.14 1.18 1.13 1.15 1.16 1.17 1.14 1.09 1_14 1.11 1.09

200S Accounts Jan-08 Feb-08 Mar-08 Apr-OS May-OS Jun-08 Jul-08 Aug-08 Sep-08 Ocl-08 Nov-08 DeC-OS
Key checking Trust 212,266 303,486 404,922 102,362 416,216 358,038 444,175 357,872 612,824 420,155 327,309 257,650
McDonalds Investment 399,603 200,708 300,998 501,456 201,833 451,198 202,709
Accounts Receivable 1,277,743 1,233,880 1,266,124 1,295,350 1,449,719 1,268,311 1,071,002 1,292,723 961,712 869,741 922,456 707,692
Carrier Payables 1,747,807 ' 1,597,208 1,815,196 1,731,792 1,856,305 1,853,864 1,534,253 1,528,592 1,539,176 1,208,747 1,219,542 959,517
Over/Short 141,805 140,866 156,848 167,376 211,463 223,683 1S3,633 122,003 35,360 81,149 30,223 5,825
Trust Ratio 1.08 1.09 1.09 1.10 1.11 1.12 1.12 1.08 1.02 1.07 1.02 1.01

2009 Accounts Jan-09 Feb-09 Mar-09 Apr-09 May-09 Jun-Og Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec..{l9
Key checking Trust 226,256 286,527 162.001 (53,905) (13,697) 418,267 256,612 195,754 242,570 125,768 70,916 86,608
Accounts Receivable 792,360 778,913 819,635 776,465 872,677 764,-897 675,080 585,838 503,757 532,000 217,802 132,948
Carrier Payables 997,510 , 1,059,789 1,001,775 1,084,774 1,161,914 1,148,995 935,084 808,572 788,992 703,335 360,174 254,860
Less commissions 20,473
Over/Short 21,106 5,651 (20,139) (362,214) (302,934) 34,169 (3,392) (26,980) (42,665) (45,567) (71,456) (35,304)

Trust Ratio 1.02 1.01 0.98 0.67 0.74 1.03 1_00 0.97 0.95 0.94 0.80 0.86

2010 Accounts Jan-1O Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-1O Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-1O Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-1O
Key checking Trust 27,4£13 40,073 32,919 87,375 147,639 181,898 133,377 145,420 120,140 131,163 167,537
Accounts Receivable 93,400 52,830 125,115 158,732 176,337 161,832 153,393 98,852 99,136 118,262 157,515 0
Carrier Payables 136,292 48,964 116,994 202,496 276,940 302,736 239,519 229,198 176,200 196,735 286,122 0
Over/Short (15,399) 43,939 41,040 43,611 47,036 40,994 47,251 15,074 43,076 52,690 38,930 0

Trust Ratio 0.89 1_90 1.35 1.22 1.17 1.14 1.20 1.07 1.24 127 U4
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- 'in-Trust Calculations

Nov':'OB Dec-OB

·Nov~07····

327,_3o_9-+-_2---,-5_7,--,-,6-=--50

697,162
147,137

1,376,295

Oct-07
331,185 •
495,501

Apr.OB May-08 Jun-OB

1,05 1.06 1.05
(11 ,119) (11 ,119L--,(_11--,-,1_1_9,-+-)--'---'-_'+-_--'---~
150,000 150,000 150,000-_ _._.. ----.::-:-::-'-::==+-~-::c'-:::-:::-::-+-__;_;:_:::-'-::-c::_::::_I

221,460 246,977 242,606

102,362 416,216 358,038
501,456 201,833 451,198

1,295,350 1--,--,4_4_9-,-,7_1_9-+-1-,---,2_6~8,,---3_11--+----"---------'- __j 1-,--,2_9_2-,---,7_2_3+-_---"----_+---_--'-----_1-- _~22,456

1,731,792 1,856,305 f_1--,--,8_5c-3-,---,8_6_4+-''-------'---------j---'-_'---_I 1,219,542
84,797 103,367 119,958
82,579 108,096 103,725

TrustRatio -- Factoring in Errors ... ·1.17.1,18 1;13

Over/Short 227,513 282,916 187,989 123,687

Impac;tof Taxes in Trust Error 25,000 __?5,000 25,000 25,000
-=--=-----+------,-,-,-,--'--::-:-:-+------,----,,-'-~-I

Impact of BofA to Key Transfer Error 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,~00~0~-----:::-:::_::_'_:=-:::-:c+-___=_=:-::-'-::-=-=:--+---=-

Over/Short (Rev-ised) 402,513 457,916 362,989 298,687

Taxes Payable 103,193 132,563 149,822 169,118

Accounts Receivable 1,586,363 1,804,295 1,687,330 1,274,936
McDonalds Investment 1,118,170 920,858 876,721 463,022

Trust Ratio--Factoring in Errors .12

Key checking Trust (46,721) 55,251 423,532 486,519

Impact of Taxes in Tru_st_E_rr_o_r --+__ (11,119)
Impact of ~ofA to Key Transfer Er~~_r__t--:::-:-::-'-::-:e:::-t-----:::-:::-:::~~------;;1c::c5~0,-;::;00::::-0~1
Over/Short (Revised) 227,774

Key checking",----T,---ru,---s-=--t 404,922
McDonalds Investment 300,998------+--
Accounts Receivable 1,266,124

-----_.

Carrier Payables 1,815,196
Taxes Pay'~_bl_e_____ 67,955
Over/Short 88,893

I6.ccounts Mar-OB

Trust Ratio .1.09 .....•.. ·1.11 1.07 1.06

Trust Rati() .1.05

- Carrier Payables- - - 2,327-,106 2,364-,925- 2;649;7-72--1,931,672

2007 Accounts Feb-07 ....• Mar-07 'Apr~07 May-O?
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-', 'In-l'rusfCalcul.ations

Dec-10

0.61 ··0.60

70,916 86,608

360,174 254,860
217,802 .- 132;948

150,000 78,000
55,812~.~,~12

110,988 113,091
(182,444) (148,395)

.Nov~09 Dec~09

0;80

.. Oct-09

703,335
532,000

150,000
55,812
44,579

125,768

115,666
(161,233)

Jul·09Mar-09
286,527
778,913'

. Feb-09

1,059,789

27,493
Jan-10 '.

93,400

109,742
136,292

(125,141 )

TrustRatio ... Factoring in Errors

Trust Ratio ~Factoringin Errors

Carrier PayabJes

Over/Short

TrUst Ratio

Taxes Payable

Accounts Receivable
Key checking Trust

·· .... ·... Trust Ratio

Over/Short

2010 Accounts

2009 Accounts

--'-1---

I__+I:,--,-m=pa_ct of BofA to Key TransferError__+----=----=---='---'--=----='---=------+--------:----=----=--'~_:_+_--------:::____=__'_:=____=____=_+_---'----=c_=_'_
Impact of Taxes in Trust Error

-----:7------+__

Over/Short (Revised)

I--_+-Im---'p'-----a_ct ()f,?ofA to Key Transfer Error
Impact of Taxes in TrLJ13t.~_rr_or +-----=----:;--'=--'-=':----::-I_~,"=
Over/Short (Revised)

Key checking T_r_u_st'------ _
Accounts Receivable

1__+C_a_r_rie_r P~yab_Ie,-----s _
Taxes Payable
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From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Bill Tanner [btanner@surpluslines.com]

Sunday, November 14,201012:00 PM

'Sally Cabbell'

'Linda Tanner'

Subject: AK Premium Taxes

DIPARTME'N'f'OF e()M:l\tU~l~C,EAND

,ECONO~UC IlEVEl.()PMEN'r

DMSIONOF INSURANCE

BULLETIN 94-09

TO: ALL ALASKA LICENSED PRODUCERS

RO, EO,),' Ht:\Vm~ '. "
Jt.wJfAIJ. AUr.rfA :YnfJ~
fMOO!;f007J 4&:...s615
"'AX,' {lfQ7) .I/!I5~JlI2,g ,
rotJ: (SO;') ~fI~J1

RE: PREMIUM TRUST MONEY ACCOUNT REGULATIONS

Regulations for premium trust money accounts were initially adopted in August of
1990. Revisions of the regulations were adopted in June 1994. Following are several
items of clarification regarding use of trust money accounts in compliance with Alaska
statute and regulations. These comments are in response to questions and concerns
raised as to the proper use of premium trust accounts.

Commingling of Funds in the Trust Money Account

A producer may leave a fund in the trust money account for purposes listed in AS
21.27.360(d):

A licensee may only commingle premium taxes and fees,
premiums, and return premiums with additional money for the
purpose of advancing premiums, establishing reserves for the
payment of return premiums or reserves for receiving and
transmitting premium or return premium money. Money
collected for the payment of premium taxes, policy or filing
fees, late payment charges, and interest from fiduciary money
on deposit may be commingled in a fiduciary account, IWqt J;

~'$ha.ll b~.separ~telyacCClunted (orandpetiodic~Jly. re11loved,,~

rfroJ11 thy fiduoiaryaccoU11t~

It is not required that earned commission be removed from the trust money account.
Commissions retained in the account are considered additions to reserve funds. The
monies left in the account, however, can only be used for advancing premium or
payment of return premium or service charges deducted directly from the account and
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any other use of the reserve funds is not allowed. If the producer chooses to maintain
reserves in the account, the aggregate reserve would be a category listed on a
reconciliation of the total of the trust account to make it clear reserve monies belong to
the producer and not to insurers or insureds. See Record Keeping and Reconciliation of
Trust Money Account later in this Bulletin.

AS 21.27.360(d).requires the periodic removal of interest and late payment charges
remaining in the account. This is to avoid the accumulation of large reserve funds in
the trust money account. Because the purpose of the trust money account is to hold
premium or return premium until forwarded to the insurer or insured, the reserve funds
should not become so large as to be a major portion of the money held in the account.
In addition, it is not appropriate to hide income (commissions earned or other income)
in the trust account to avoid attachment by others under the exemption of 3 AAC
23.720.

Earned Commission

When the contract between a producer and an insurer specifies when commission is
earned by the producer (transferred to the producer's use), contract language shall
supersede the requirements of3 AAC 23.620.

If there is no contract language stating when commission is earned, the regulations
require that commissions can be earned no earlier than the date on which both

I) funds are received by the producer, and

2) insurance coverage is bound.

For example, if the contract between the producer and the insurer stated that
commissions can be transferred to the producer at the time funds are received, the
commissions for policies with that insurer may be removed from the trust money
account at that time. If the contract between the producer and the insurer is silent as to
when commissions are earned or transferred, the requirements of 3 AAC 23.620 would
apply such that commissions are earned after the premiums are received and the
coverage is bound. This, however, does not change the requirement that on
cancellation of an unexpired policy appropriate unearned commission must be added to
unearned premium and returned to the client. This returned commission must come
from the producer's funds.

With these changes in 3 AAC 23.620, the producer may take commission any time
after the two conditions are met. The producer may find, however, that the agency
accounting system provides better internal control and record keeping if commissions
are not taken or "earned" until the settlement date of the account current. In any case,
the producer must be able to show a division examiner the system for determining
when commissions are earned and provide documentation to show that only proper
amounts of commission have been removed from the premium trust account or
transferred to reserves in the account.

12/212010
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The last sentence of3 AAC 23.620 clarifies that if the producer's funds are in the
premium trust account for advance payment of a specific premium to the insurer (prior
to receipt of payment from the client), any amount appropriately considered
commission could be removed from the premium trust account immediately. This is
allowed because the funds representing commission in the transaction are considered
funds of the producer at all times.

Record Keeping and Reconciliation of Trust Money Account

3 AAC 23.520 and 3 AAC 23.530 discuss record keeping requirements of Alaska
producers. 3 AAC 23.520 specifies that a system of control accounts and subsidiary
ledgers is required for accounts receivable, accounts payable, and the trust money
account. The level of detail required in the accounting system for the trust money
account is stated in 3 AAC 23.520(b)(l) so as to allow:

"the ready identification of the dollar amount, by category, of
the money comprising the balance of a control account."

The reference to category in this phrase can be no more detailed than those categories
required in Alaska Statute (AS). Specifically AS 21.27.360 refers to premiums, return
premiums, premium taxes and fees, and money for the purpose of advancing premium
or payment of return premiums or service charges, policy or filing fees, late payment
charges, or interest. The broad categories are 1) money for the payment of premium to
insurers, 2) money for the payment of return premium to insureds, 3) money for the
payment of taxes or fees to third parties, and 4) money owned by the producer held in
the trust account as reserves.

3 AAC 23.520 requires reconciliation of the amounts by category with the total
balance in the account (bank statement account balance and general ledger account
balance). The method by which the producer determines the amount by category is a
business decision made by the producer after considering business volume and the
accounting system. The amounts by category must have support in the accounting
records. To complete the reconciliation, it is not required that the licensee use the
"specific item method" of accounting (the accumulation of separate trust money
receipts in a separate tracking system). Any other procedure which is reliable and
accurate for determining the amounts by category on a periodic basis is acceptable. 3
AAC 23.520(c)(2), however, does require that each receipt of premium trust funds be
entered into the accounting system as a separate transaction.

To show compliance with 3 AAC 23.520, the producer must be able to explain the
movement of trust fund transactions through the accounting system. The explanation
must go from documents in the insured file to accounts receivable (if applicable) to
payment of premium to the insurer, and include the flow of any other items which may
affect the balance of the trust account. The producer must also be able to explain the
calculation of the amounts by category on the reconciliation. The reconciliation ofthe
trust account must be completed periodically which is defined in 3 AAC 23.730 as a
frequency occurring as often as internal financial statements are prepared. We
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recommend preparation of reconciliations monthly so that errors discovered in the
records are corrected on a timely basis.

Advancing of Funds to Pay Premium

Changes to 3 AAC 23.250 and 3 AAC 23.650 will allow the advancing of premium by
the producer without a signed premium finance agreement only if:

(1) the extension of credit to pay premium is on a zero interest cost to the insured, with
no service charge representing income to the licensee or expense to the insured,
however, a late fee in keeping with the standard late fee charged by the licensee may
be collected; and

(2) the insured is notified within 30 days after the extension of credit of the amount of
credit extended and for what purpose.

If the licensee chooses to forward premium without a premium finance agreement, the
licensee must take the risk of extending credit or loaning funds. If notified by the
insured that the insurance was not desired, the producer must reverse the extension of
credit from the insured's records effective to the date the credit was extended.

The notice to the insured of the extension of credit must clearly state the amount of
premium when the loan or extension of credit was made and for what specific policies.
The amount should be broken down by policy ifmore than one policy was involved.
The notice may be made on a monthly statement to the client or by separate
notification as long as it is done within 30 days after the advance of premium through a
loan or extension of credit.

The category of reserve funds held in the trust money account for the purpose of
forwarding premium may be used for the payment of premiums to the insurer when the
insured has not yet paid. Funds held in the account belonging to insureds cannot be
used to forward premium for a different insured who has not paid regardless of the size
of the trust money account.

Application of Refunds to Amounts Due

Changes in 3 AAC 23.680 will allow the use of refunds to offset other amollilts due
from the same insured. However, the insured must be notified of the application of
refund within the 45-day period for processing of refunds in 3 AAC 23.600. This does
not allow the holding of refunds beyond the 45-day period without returning the
money to the insured or sending written notice specifying how the refund was used.

This bulletin has been issued to answer questions regarding the use of fiduciary
accounts to hold premium as required in Alaska statute. This is not a restatement of all
of the regulations on this subject and all producers are encouraged to become familiar
with the regulations as published. The program of examination of trust money accounts
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conducted by the Division of Insurance will continue in the future to evaluate
compliance with AS 21.27.350, AS 21.27.360, and 3 AAC 23.500 to 3 AAC 23.730.

Signed this 9th day of September, 1994

State Home Page IDepartment Home Page I Division Home Page

Thank you for visiting this web page.
For help or information, please send an e·mail message to the Divis ion of Insurance at: -

Revised 08/09/99

Bill

William H. Tanner, CPCU, AU, ASU, CISC
President fawner

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc,
PO Box 2510
Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (800) 929-9794

Email: btanner@surpluslines.com
Emergency Backup Email: anchorbayinsurance@gmail.com
Web Site: http://SurplusLines.com

Visit our Environmental home page at

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

.. ,for a description of the env'lronmental coverages that we offer and for direct links to more than three dozen
Environmental Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
applications too!

Surpluslines.com -- the internet home of surplus lines.
And now, vourinternet home for EnvIronmental Insurance Coveragesl

NOTICE - This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information, It is intended only for the person or
persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender that you have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or integrity of external e-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission,

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means without receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers, Inc,
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ANCHOR BAY INS MANAGERS INC Separate Premium Account 10/2 ANCHOR
10049 KITSAP MALL BLVD STE 303 Summary '10049 K1T5
SILVERDALE WA 98383 Marianne Azevedo,lnvei SILVERDA

360-613-5455 360-613-5<

I I

Sep-10 Auq-10 I Jul-10 Jun-10 Mav-10 Apr-10 Mar-10 I Feb-10 Jan-10 Dec-09 Nov-09,

Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 120140 145420 133377 181898 147639 87375 32919 40073 27493 86608 70916
Separate Premium Acct Checking #2 ------- ---- -- -----

Separate PremiumAccl Savings
Separate Premium Acct Money Market
Accounts Receivable 96,588 96,304 150,845 161,832 176,337 156,184 122,567 50,282 93,400 132,948 217,582
Less: Commissions 11.5% -11,108 -11,075 -17,347 -18,611 -20,279 -17,961 -14,095 -5,782 -10,741 -15,289 -25,022
Less: Accounts over 90 days old
Total $ 205,620 $ 230,649 $ 266,875 $ 325,119 $ 303,697 $ 225,598 $ 141,391 $ 84,573 $ 110,152 $ 204,267 $ 263,476

Payable to Surplus Lines taxes -123115 -120841 -120151 -115882 -112950 -106704 -103217 -99743 -109441 -113091 -110688

Payable to Insurers -190870 -227863 -2381841 -302736 -276940 -202505 -117003 -48974 -136301 -254860 -360183
NET DIFFERENCE $ (108,365) $ (118,055) I $ (91,460) I $ (93,499) $ (86,193) $ (83,611)1 $ (78,829)1 $ (64,144 $ (135,590) $ (163,684 $ (207,395)

".<

,
,

,
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I
t

~NCHOR ElAY INS MANAGERS INC Separate Premium Account ANCHOR BAY INS MAN,
"0049 KITaAP MALL BLVD STE 303 Summary 10049 KITSAP MALL BL'

rllVERDALE WA 98383 Marianne Azevedo SILVERDALE WA 98383

~60.613-5455 360-613-5455

j

I 1 i I I 1 I

,

! I

!Nov-09 Oct-09 Sep-09 Aug-09 Jul-09 Jun-09 May-09 I Apr-09 I Mar-09 Feb-09 Jan-09 12-08 11-08 10-08 9-08 8-08
! I I

,
I I ,,

I 70916, 125768 242570 195754 256612 418267 -13697 -53905 162001 286527 226256 257650 327309 420155 612824 35787;
-- ---- - ---- - - ._-- - - - -- ---- - -- , -- --- -- ---- - - - - - - _.- - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - ------ -------- 1, , ,

i
,

: I I 1
! 217,582 531,780 503,537 585,619' 674,8601 764,677 872,457 1 776,245 819,415, 778,693 792,140 707,4721 922,236j 869,521 961,492! 1,292,50<
I

-57,907 -67,346 -77,6091 -87,938 -100,333 -89,268 -94,233 -89,550i -91,096 -81,359 1 -106,057 -99,995 -110,572i -148,631I -25,022 -61,155, I
I 263,476 $ 596,393 $ 688,200 $ 714,027 $ 853,863 i $ 1,095,006 $ 758,427 $ 633,072 $ 887,183 $ 975,670 $ 927,300 : $ 883,763 $ 1,143,488 $1,189,681 $1,463,744 $1,501,737

; ,

1

,

-
-195943 -182388 -187351 -177161, -166679 -161222-110688 -1153661 -113782 -1046411 -98817 -96581 -85796 -1084783 -1491761 -13610'

! -360183 -703344 -789001 -8085821 -935093 -11490041 -1161923: -67105 -1001784 -10597981 -997519 -959526: -1219551 -120756. ·152860--1539185
1(207,395) $ (222317)1 $ (214,583)1 $(199,196)1 $(180,047 $ (150,579) $ (489,292) $(518,816) $ (310,544)1 $ (266,516)1 $ (257,570) I $ (252,924) I $ (242,742) $ 907,703 $ (224,617)1 $ (162,'965

!

I
I
I
!
i
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INS MANA~ERS INC
MALL BLV~ STE 303
NA98383

Separate Premium Account
Summary

ANCHOR BAY INS MANAGERS INC
10049 KITSAP MALL BLVD STE 303

Marianne Azevedo, SILVERDALE WA 98383

3606135455- -

1 I ! !
8-08 7-08 6-08 5-08 4-08 3-08 2-08 I 1-08 12-07 11-07 10-07 9-07 8-07 7-07 6-07

I

357872 444175 358038 416216 102362 404922 303486 212266 305509 147137 331185 150878 159894 538594! 260154
i

,

, !
1,292,503 1,070,782 1,268,091 1,449,499 1,295,130 1,265,904 1,233,660 1,277,523 1,469,069 1,376,072 1,131,1471 1,214,782 1,473,132 1,151,279, 1,283,434
-148,638 1 -123,1401 -145,830 -166,692 -148,940 -145,579 -141,871 -146,915 -168,943 -158,2481 -130,082' -139,700 -169,410 -132,397 -147,595

I
, ,, !

1,501,737 $ 1,391,817 $ 1,480,299 $ 1,699,023 $1,248,552 $1,525,247 $ 1,395,275 $ 1,342,874 $ 1,605,635 ! $ 1,364,961 $ 1,332,250 $ 1,225,960 $ 1,463,616 $ 1,557,476 , $ 1,395,993 i
i i

-136101 -128391 -119657 -103066' -84497 -67654 -46785, -305587 -295820 -281056 -271152 -249343 -230721 -207753, -192290
-1528601 -1534262 -1853873 -1856314 -1731801 -1815205 -15972171 ,1747816 -1810126 -1994371 -1714234 -1938627 -19885031 -186ID815, -1956611
(162,965 $ (270,836) $ (493,231) $ (260,357) $ (567,746) $ (357,612)1 $ (248,727) $ (710,529) $ (500,311) $ (910,466) $ (653,136) $ (962,010 $ (755,608) $ (520:ID92) $ (752,908) i

Page 3



ANCHOR BAY INS MANAGERS INC
10049 KITSAP MALL BLVD STE 303

evedo, SILVERDALE WA 98~8,i '

360-613-5455

Separate Premium Account
Summary

10/21/2010

Marianne Azevedo, 'Investigator

I I I 1
07 8-07 7-07 6-07 5-07 4-07 3-07 2-07 1-07 I

1
50878 159894 538594 260154 486519 423532 55251 46721 226773 0 0 0 0 0 0

! I
, I

14,782 1,473,132 1,151,279, 1,283,434 1,274,716 1,687,110 1,804,075 1,572,8891 1,524,288 0 0 0 0 0 0
39,700 -169,410 -132,391' -147,595 -146,592 -194,018 -207,469 1 -180,882' -175,293 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

5,960 $ 1,463,616 $ 1,557,~76 i $1,395,993 $ 1,614,643 $ 1,916,624 $ 1,651,857 $ 1,438,728 $ 1,575,768 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - ,
,

~49343 -230721 -2077531 -192290 -168818 -149521 -132263 -102893 -404711 0 0 0 0 0 0
138627 -1988503 -186~815 -1956611 -1931681 -2649781 -2364934 -2339298 -2033413 0 0: 0 0 0 01
·2,010) $ (755,608) $ (520/092) $ (752,908) $ (485,856) $ (882,678) $ (845,340) $ (1,003,463) $ (862,356) $ - $ - 1$ - $ - 1$ - 1$ - 1

Page4
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc Mary Tunis, Examiner
10/21/2010 4:58 PM

Cash Transfers Key Bank Accounts (Transfer Out) Transfer In

Premium Trust
Account (Cash Out) Operating Account

Month Date or Cash In (Cash Out) or Cash In Fi nancial Records- Journal Entry Descriptlon

2007 Jan (25,000.00) '" 25,000.00 Per Salty Cabbell's Worksheet

2007 Aug (65,000.00) ,., 65,000.00 Per Sally Cabbell's Worksheet

2007 Nov (40,000.00) '" 40,000.00 Per Sally Cabbell's Worksheet

2007 Dec (75,000,00) '" 75,000.00 Per Sally Cabbell's Worksheet

20081an 1/8/08 (25,000.00) ... 25,000.00 WA SLA to Operating

2008 Mar 3/5/08 (10,000,00) ./ 10,000.00 WA SLA to Operating

-_.- .. -- - - - _.- . Note: Paid-Washington State Surplus Line Taxes out-ofthe
operatJng account in 2008 offsetting the loans taken from

2007 Taxes 251,144.00 '" (251,144.00) the Premium Trust Account

2008 Sep 9/19/08 (100,000.00) ." 100,000.00 From tax reserve in trust to operating

2008 Nov 11/12/08 (20,000.00) .... 20,000.00 From tax fund to be repaid

2008 Nov 11/28/08 (20,000.00) "" 20,000.00 SLA taxes transfer

2009 Jan 1/6/09 (10,000.00) ~ 10,000.00 From WA SlA tax reserve

2009 Apr 4/1/09 (25,000.00) '" 25,000.00 Taxes to be returned to Trust

lO09Jun 6/9/09 (10,000.00) " 10,000.00 WA SLA tax funds on loan to operating

1009 Aug 8/3/09 (25,000.00) ". 25,000.00 Cash - Premium Trust 8397

2009 Oct 10/28/09 (2,000.00) v" 2,000.00 Borrow from Taxes

Total 2007 through September 30, 2010 Premium Trust
(452,000.00) 452,000.00 funds borrowed for Operating Expenses

2009 Dec 12/10/09 ~ 22,000.00 (22,000.00l Transfer ~artial tax funds back to Trust

2009 Dec 12/14/09 "J: 50,000.00 {50,000.00} Transfer tax reserve to Trust
._~.

2010 Jan 1/14/10 )I 51,000.00 (51,000.00) Transfer to Trust Operatfng capital

Total 2007 through September 3D, 2010 return of funds to
123,000.00 (12:3,000.00. Premium Trust account from the Operating Account

.- _.

I, Sally Cabbell, CFO of Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc" have reviewed this schedule and it appears to accurately reflect the cash
transfers from the Premium Trust Bank Account to the Operating Bank Account to fund operating expenses of Anchor Bay. The
Washington State Surplus line taxes for 2007 were paid out of the operating account In March 2008,

- - -~

=~/t" (LvJ:6-<!' 1/ vd/:1J~d~-t/ /t) /,2-/~ 2-c'J j 0
Print Name f ,/ Sign Name & Date



Sally Cabbal!

From: Richards, Emily [emilyrichards@vertafore.com]

Sent: Thursday, December 30,20102:02 PM
I

To: scabbelf@surpluslines.com

Subject: How income posts in AMS360

Hi Sally,

Page 1 of 1

As you requested in our phone call, here is the email follow up regarding how income posts in AMS360.

When an invoice is posted in the system, the transactions included in that invoice post to their
appropriate general ledger income account. For example, commission resulting from premium posts to a
commission income account, agency fees post to an agency fee income account, etc. You are not able to
lump these accounts together. They will always post to their respective accounts.

Please let me know if you need any other information on this subject.

Thank you!

Vertafore
Unleash your potential

Emily Richards
Product Support Representative
Agency Markets

ornilyrlcharda@v0rtafore.com

1172.4 NE 195th Street, Bothell, WA 98011
T 800 444 4813 ext 6388 I F 866 823 2508
vertafore.com

1119/2011



Message

Bill Tanner

Page 1 of2

From: Sally Gabbell [scabbell@surpluslines.com]

Sent: Friday, October 22,20104:22 PM

To: maryt@oic.wa.gov; marianna@oic.wa.gov

Cc: 'Bill Tanner'

SUbject: Separate Premium Account Summary

Hello again,

As you observed today, Bill and I were taken aback at the large "out of trust" numbers on the
spreadsheet. Even using our old logic of not including taxes in the formula, It seemed impossible that
we could have been that far off. So, I immediately went to review the data I use to calculate trust ratio vis
a vis what you (Mariann) had entered to find out if there was a significant flaw in our accounting system or
if I had just gone insane. I found three problems which explain much and will require an amendment
to your spreadsheet.

.. 1. The investment account was not included as part of the cash.on hand. Mary, you and Idiscussed-the­
fact that we had an investment account where I put Trust monies to earn interest. We had that account
for a few years until our bUSiness declined to the point where it was not worthwhile. That makes a
tremendous difference as that adds between $200,000 to over $1,000,000 to each month from January
07 through July of 08. Those investments are listed on the balance sheet as McDonalds Investment.
You will see that we were in trust some months and when out, by a significantly smaller amount than your
speadsheetsuggests,

2. We found several keying errors from the balance sheets that have an impact on the numbers, albeit
not in our favor, but we wanted you to know why they have changed, I have highlighted those errors on
the spreadsheet I am sending.
3, There is a difference between the balance sheet payables and receivables and the aging report
payables and receivables, There shouldn't be, but there are. Those differences are included on the
spreadsheet as well. I wil) contact the software company to investigate why the same system should
deliver two different numbers and why there is a pattern to the variances. The good news is that most
of the variances are not significant enough to make much difference. Until I get the system trued up, I
will, use both the balance sheet and the aging detail and calculate the trust factor both ways to assure we
stay "in trust",

I have sent, by separate email, a spreadsheet detailing the errors and differences as it is large and may
end up In your spam folder. I wanted you to know it is coming and am pretty sure this email will not go to
spam. Please confirm that you received the spreadsheet.

It is a lot of data to review, so please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,
Sally

Sally CabbeJl
Chief Financial Officer
Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
PO Box 2510
Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext: 242
Fax: (800) 929-9794

Email: scabbell@surpluslines.colt!
Web Site: http':/ISurpluslines.com

1/20/2011



¥essage Page 2 of2

NOTICE ~ This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information. It Is intended only for the person or
persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender that you have received it In error and immediately delete the entire communication, including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or Integrity of external a-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means without receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers, Inc,

112012011



Obvious Problems with the OIC's Trust Calculations

There are several problems with the content of Exhibit 17. Among them are the
following:

~ According to Ms. Azevedo's spreadsheet, we finished February of 2007,
$1,003,463 out of trust, and we finished February of 2008, $248,727 out of
trust. That's an improvement of more than $750,000 in our trust position.
Yet elsewhere, Ms. Tunis indicates that we lost $273,474.05 in 2007.

Obviously, in the absence of some extraordinary event, one does not
improve his trust position by more than three quarters of a million dollars
in roughly the same time frame in which he loses morethan a quarter

.million dollars. Yet Ms. Tunis n-ever addressed that anomaly.

~ In the two year period of January of 2007 through December 2008,
according to Ms. Tunis' report, we lost more than 70% of our business and
almost a half a million dollars - and yet according to Ms. Azevedo's
spreadsheet, we improved our trust position by over $600,000. Ms. Tunis
never addressed that anomaly either.

~ I draw your attention to September through November of 2008. As you
can see, in one month's time, our trust position improved from allegedly
being out of trust by $224,617 to being in trust by $907,703. That's a one
month improvement in our trust position of $1,132,320. And then the next
month, we gave it all back. Now, in fact, this anomaiy was the result of a
typo which Ms. Azevedo later fixed - after we raised issues about the
spreadsheet and after the Order was issued.

But at the time that Ms. Tunis wrote her preliminary report, the report on
which the Order was based, the $1.1 million dollar error was still in the
spreadsheet and the anomaly was obvious. Yet she never addressed it.

~ The trust calculation spreadsheet shows us improving our trust position by
roughly $450,000 between January and February of 2008 - and yet our
total retained commission and fee income that month was $127,000­
before expenses. There were numerous similar situations where one
month deviations could not be explained by the income generated in the
period. And again, Ms. Tunis never addressed any of them.

~ Just look at it top level. Logically, absent an extraordinary event, how
could we possibly still be in business today when, according to Ms. Tunis,
we finished January 2007 more than $862,000 out of trust and then lost
almost a half million dollars in the next two years?



~ For that matter, if we were over $1 mil out of trust, then I would have had
to have removed a lot more than premium taxes from the trust account. I
would have had to have raided at least $600,000, and perhaps as much
as $800,000, of premiums and return premiums from the account as well.

In her report, she goes on for a page and a half about how we didn't keep
premium taxes in the trust account. And yet, nowhere in her notes,
nowhere in her reports, nowhere in the Order itself, can I find a single
reference to the far more serious issue of our having raided the trust
account of more than $600,000 in premiums.

It is absurd on its face that we could engage in thievery on such a grand
scale without getting caught. Our carriers would have yanked our
appointments and the OIC would have been Inundated with complaints
from both carriers and Insureds alike. And yetOIC had exactly zero such
complaints. Another unexplored anomaly.

\

I

I
I
:
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Message

Bill Tanner

Page 1 of2 3D

From: OIC Taxes [Taxes@OICWA.GOVI

Sent: Tuesday, April 06, 2010 10:38 AM

To: Bill Tanner

Subject: RE: Premium taxes for Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc, WAOIC# 168179

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Blue

Bill,

This is an unusual situation; I will have to work with licensing to determine how to proceed. I
will let you know what we determine.

Kriscinda

Kriscihda Hansen I Budget Analyst II I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

Please visit https://fortress.wa.gov/oic/onlineservlces/Login.aspx?moduie=TAX for access to E-Tax.

From: Bill Tanner [mailto:btanner@surplusllnes.com]
Sent: Tue 04/06/10 10:26 AM
To: orc Taxes
Subject: RE: Premium taxes for Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc, WAOIC# 168179

Kriscinda:

Sally forwarded your email to me.

Regrettably, we do not have the ability to pay the taxes at this time and do not expect to have that ability
until sometime in the last quarter of the year. At that point, we wiil receive both a profit sharing check and
the final installment on the sale of much of our book of business to Hull and will be able to make full
payment -- including penaities. Or at least we will if we are allowed to continue to operate until that time.

What do we do now?

Bill

William H. Tanner, CPCU, AU, ASLI, CISC
President I Owner

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
PO Box 2510
Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext: 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (800) 929-9794 .

Email: btanner@surpluslines.com
Emergency Backup Email: anchorbayinsurance@gmail.com
Web Site: http://SurplusLines.com

·onmental home page at

1/19/2011



Message

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

,scription of the environmental coverages that we offer and for direct links to more than three dozen
ental Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
ns tool

Surpluslines.com -- the internet home of surplus lines.
And now, your internet home for Environmental Insurance Coverages!

Page 2 of2

NOTICE M This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information. It is intended only for the person or
persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender thatyou have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does.not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or integrity of external a-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot De considered bound via any electronic means-Without receipt of a specIfic binding confirmation from AnchorBay Insurance
Managers, Inc.

From: OlC Taxes [mailto:Taxes@OlC.WA.GOV]
Sent: Monday, April 05, 2010 1:26 PM
To: scabbell@surpluslines.com
Subject: Premium taxes for Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc, WAOlC# 168179
Importance: High

Good afternoon,
The Washington State Office of Insurance Commissioner has not yet received your

2009 premium tax payment of $89,325, which was due March 1,2010. Additionally, there is

a penalty of $4,466 due. Please login to E-Tax to retrieve your invoices and remit payment as

soon as possible to avoid further penalties.

Regards,

Kriscinda Hansen I Budget Analyst II I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

Please visit https:Ufortress.wa.gov/oic/onlineservices/Login.aspx7module=TAX for access to E-Tax.

1/19/2011
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Bill Tanner

From: Hansen, Kriscinda (OIG) [KriscindaH@OIC.WA.GOV] on behalf of OIC Taxes
[Taxes@OICWA.GOVj

Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 3:39 PM

To: Bill Tanner

SUbject: RE: Anchor Bay Insurance Managers

Follow Up Flag: Foilow up

Flag Status: Blue

Thanks Bill!

Ilool<ed at the statute before I responded, and it says the Commissioner may revoke, suspend or refuse
to renew a license as long as there are taxes due. Taxes and fines may be collected by distraint, or by an
auction instituted by the Commissioner. Those are things the Commissioner can do; I would have to ask,
-but-I would think there are intermediate steps.

If you are not able to pay the taxes in full by the end of the month, please let me know and I will
research to find out options.

Kriscinda

I<riscinda Hansen I Budget Analyst Ii I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

From: Bill Tanner [mailto:btanner@surplusJines.comj
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 2:46 PM
To: OlC Taxes
Subject: RE: Anchor Bay Insurance Managers

Kriscinda:

I love your name by the way...

Just out of curiousity, what would happen jf we just couldn't pay? I've never been late on taxes before -­
of any kind -- so I'm not really sure what would happen? Would I end up in jail? At what point would the
state shut down the business? J can see everything from allowing me to sell the book off and paying you
out of proceeds to shutting me down and selling it yourselves -- and paying me the remainder.

I've just never heard of the subject coming up.

Thanks...

Bill

William H. Tanner, GPGU, AU, ASLI, CISC
President / Owner

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
PO Box 2510
Silverdale, WA 9B383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext: 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (BOO) 929-9794

1119/2011
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Email: btanner@surpluslines.com
Emergency Backup Email: anchorbayinsurance@qmail.com
Web Site: http://SurplusLines.com

:nvironmental home page at

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

!scription of the environmental coverages that we offer and for direct links to more than three dozen
ental Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
ns too!

Surpluslines.com -- the internet home of surplus lines.
And now, your internet home for Environmental Insurance CoveragesI

NOTICE", This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally-privileged information. It Isintendedonlyforthe-person-oT ­
persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate ortake any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender that you have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or integrity of external e-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means without receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers, Inc.

From: Hansen, Kriscinda (OlC) [mailto:KriscindaH@OlC.WA.GOV] On Behalf Of OlC Taxes
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 2:40 PM
To: Bill Tanner
Subject: RE: Anchor Bay Insurance Managers

Thanks Bili. Sorry there's not more we can do.

Kriscinda

Kriscinda Hansen I Budget Analyst II I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

From: Bill Tanner [mailto:btanner@surpluslines.com]
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 2:37 PM
To: OlC Taxes
Subject: RE: Anchor Bay Insurance Managers

We will try to make payment by the end of the month -- whether or not we can depends upon the size of a profit
sharing check that we are expecting in a couple of weeks.

Thanks and regards,

8ii1

William H. Tanner, CPCU, AU, ASLI, CISC
President I Owner

1/19/2011
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Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
PO Box 2510
Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext: 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (800) 929-9794

i=mail: btanner@surpluslines.com
Emergency Backup Email: anchorbayinsurance@qmail.com
Web Site: hltp:IfSurplusLines.com

:nvironmental home page at

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

!scription of the environmental coverages that we offer and for direct links to more than three dozen
ental Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
-ns-too! - -

Surpluslines.com -- the internet home of surplus lines.
And now, your internet home for Environmental Insurance Coverages!

NOTICE - This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information. Jt is intended only for the person or
persons to whom it is addressed. If you are not an intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender that you have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or integrity of external e-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means without receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers, Inc.

From: Hansen, Kriscinda (0lC) [mailto:KriscindaH@OlC.WA.GOV] On Behalf Of OlC Taxes
sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 2:05 PM
To: Bill Tanner
Subject: Anchor Bay Insurance Managers

Good afternoon,

Unfortunately, our statutes do not have any provisions for extensions on filing or payment due. Payments not
made by March 31 are subject to 5% penalties on the balance due; it is another 5% if not paid by April 15 and a
final 10% for any payments not made by April 30. According to the reporting from the Surplus Line Association,
your taxes due are$89,325. Please file your return using E-Tax. Please let me know if i may be of further
assistance.

Regards,
Kriscinda

Kriscinda Hansen I Budget Analyst II I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

From: Bill Tanner [mailto:btanner@surpluslines.com]
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 11:07 AM

1/19/2011
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To: Ole Taxes
SUbject: RE: Are you still there?

We encountered a problem that we didn't expect and basicaily cannot pay the taxes at this time. We owe
approximately $105,000. I'm hoping that there is a way of making some arrangements to pay this over time -­
something like paying $5,000 a month with a bailon payment at the end or... you teil me. Beggars can't be
choosers, if you know what I mean.

This was a one time accounting error that has been fixed and won't be repeated. Unfortunately, it comes at a
time where, between the economy and the soft market, it caught us off guard.

Please advise what our options are in this kind of a situation.

Thanks and regards,

Biil

_WiiliamJc:I. Tanner, CPCU, AU, ASLI, CISC
President! Owner

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
PO Box 2510
Siiverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560 Ext: 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (800) 929-9794

Email: btanner@surpluslines.com
Emergency Backup Emaii: anchorbayinsurance@gmail.com
Web Site: http://SurplusLines.com

:nvironmental home page at

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

,scription of the environmental coverages that we offer and for direcllinks to more than three dozen
ental Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
ns too!

Surpluslines,com -- the internet home of surplus lines.
And now, your internet home for Environmental Insurance Coverages!

NOTICE - This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information. It is intended only for the person or
persons to whom It is addressed. If you are not an Intended recipient, you may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in
reliance upon it. Please notify the sender that you have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, Including any
attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or Integrity of external e-mail communications
and, therefore, cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means without receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance
Managers, Inc.

From: Hansen, Kriscinda (OIC) [mailto:KriscindaH@OIC.wAGOVj On Behalf Of OIC Taxes
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 10:57 AM
To: btanner@surpluslines.com
Subject: RE: Are you. still there?

1/19/2011
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Good morning Bill,
Ken forwarded your email to me, as I work with premium taxes. What may I do to help you? Please let me
know.

Regards,
Kriscinda

Kriscinda Hansen I Budget Analyst It I WA Office of Insurance Commissioner I 360.725.7032
Please think about the environment before printing this message.

From: Combsl Ken (Ole)
Sent: Monday, March. 08, 2010 10:55 AM
To: Hansen, Kriscinda (OIC)
Subject: FW: Are you still there?

__... ,f-o"'" .................. ,.""' ...." .................. """'A...""""..._ •• "'::""V~_~-'O<~":_"""_"".,"""""-_-~" .........._""'_,__~ ....... '""'__•__.--"'..,.,""'.....'_....."_'"~~~~*=""""'~~ ..~~~,~ .•"'".""""""w""'~~~,_, __ ~'""'._y-:

From: Bill Tanner [mailtC):btanner@surpluslines.com]
Sent: Monday, March 08, 2010 9:59 AM
To: Combs, Ken (0lC)
Subject: Are you still there?

Ken:

I heard you were retiring this month so I'm not sure if you are stillt there or not.

However, I need to set up a meeting with you -- you're office or mine, either way. We have not paid our taxes for
last year yet and I need to discuss our options in some detail.

Thanks and regards, .

Bill

William H. Tatmer, CPCU, AU, ASLI, Clse
President I Owner

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc.
POBox 2510
Silverdale, WA 98383
Phone: (800) 929-9560·Ext: 202
Cell: (360) 649-8969
Fax: (800) 929-9794

Email: btanner@surplllsiines.com
Emergency Backup Email: anchorbayinsurance@gmai1.com
Web Site: http://SurplusLil1cs.com

:nvironmental home page at

http://www.surpluslines.com/products/environmental.asp

lcription of the environmental coverages that we offer and for direct links to more than three dozen
mtal Applications. And coming soon: direct links to more than 100 company-specific environmental
IS too!

Surpluslines.com -" the intemet home of surplus lines.

1/19/2011
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And now, your internet home for Environmentallnsnrance Coverages!

NOTICE - This communication may contain confidential, proprietary or legally privileged information. It is intended only for the person or persons to
whom it is addressed. Ifyou are not an intcnded recipient, yOll may not use, read, retransmit, disseminate or take any action in reliance upon it. Please
notify the sender that you have received it in error and immediately delete the entire communication, inclUding any attachments.

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers, Inc. does not encrypt and cannot ensure the confidentiality or integrity ofexternal ewmail communications and, therefore,
cannot be responsible for any unauthorized access, disclosure, use or tampering that may occur during transmission.

Coverage cannot be considered bound via any electronic means withont receipt of a specific binding confirmation from Anchor Bay Insurance Managers,
Inc.

1/19/2011
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Bill Tanner

From: Brown, Charles (OIC) [CharlesB@OICWA.GOVj

Sent: Monday, January 03, 2011 9:30 AM

To: btanner@surpluslines,com

Cc: Tunis, Mary (OIC)

Subject: FW: Anchor Bay - Disclosure Request for Premium Trust Calculations

Attachments: 20101201_085151.pdf

Mr. Tanner,

Although your post hearing request for additional information regarding other audits of other
producers is untimely and the information you requested is irrelevant to any issue in this case, here it is.
Regarding your "dismay" over the OIC information that is available on line, your attention is invited to
the Public Records Act and RCW 42.56.010 which defines a "public record" to include "any writing

'containing information relatirTg-to-the-conduct of gove-rnment"tnat Is "prepared, ownetl,use-d; or
retained" by a state or local agency.

Cha rles Brown
OIC Staff Attorney

From: Tunis, Mary (OlC)
Sent: Wednesday, December 01, 2010 9:20 AM
To: Brown, Charles (0lC)
Subject: Anchor Bay - Disclosure Request for Premium Trust Calculations

Chuck,

I have gone back over 10 years searching for the calculations requested. We do not have 12 surplus line
producer calculations. I have provided the calculations from other examiners who worked for/with
Ken, so that Anchor Bay can have what we can find.

Some facts that may be relevant:

• Many ofthe examinations performed by the examiners related to captive agents and firms that
are virtually 100% direct bill. If the firm did not control the premium trust account, there will
not be a calculation in the file.

• There are a couple of examination files that we are still waiting for to be delivered from
Archive. [I cannot be sure whether the file contains a calculation or not at this point.] Also, 10f
Ken's examinations was so old it had been destroyed.

I will let you know when we have received the other files from Archive.

Mary E. Tunis, CPA, CFE
Financial Examiner
Consumer Protection Division - Licensing
Office of Insurance Commissioner
State of Washington
360-725-7109

1119/2011

I
----1



MaryT@oic.wa.gov
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From: oicproly30@oic.wa.gov [mailto:oicproly30@oic.wa,gov}
Sent: Wednesday, December 01,20108:52 AM
To: Tunis, Mary (Ole)
Subject: Scanned image from MX-M503N

1/19/2011



Brown, Charles (OIC)

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Attachments:

Tunis, Mary (OIC)
Wednesday, January 19, 20112:01 PM
Brown, Charles (OIC) .
FW: STATE OF ALASKA Surplus Line Premiums and Premium Taxes received by licensed
Surplus Lines Producers/Agencies
Alaska Fiduciary Statute and Regs.docx

From: Glover, Gloria G (CED) [mailto:gloria.glover@alaska.gov]
Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2011 10:00 AM
To: Tunis, Mary (DIe) .
Cc: Brunette, Linda A (CEO); Nesheim, Rebecca J (CED)
Subject: RE: Surplus Line Premiums and Premium Taxes received by licensed Surplus Lines Producers/Agencies

Dear Ms. Tunis,
Attached is a copy of our statute and regulations regarding the handling of premiums and premium taxes by producer
licensees. This is where the requirements come from that we have spoken about before. I will respond to your specific
questions below.

Where are the surplus line premium taxes received by the licensed surplus line producer required to be
maintained? [Are the premium taxes required to be maintained in the separate account until remitted to the
State of Alaska?

The Alaska statute is based on a the producer Iicensee having fiduciary responsibility over the payments for insurance.
Statute specifies that money shall be received by the licensee as a fiduciary and shall be prompted accounted for and
paid to the person entitle to the money. In addition the money may not be commingled with other nonfiduciary
monies. inCluded in that fiduciary responsibility is the safeguarding ofthose funds. The statute and regufation does not
specifically require a trust account, however, the fiduciary responsibility would require the segregation, separate
accounting, and safeguarding of the funds. This essentially requires a separate account at a bank which could be termed
a trust account to hold the insurance payment. The statute requires that monies representing premium taxes and fees,
premiums or return premiums are included in the funds that the licensee holds in a fiduciary capacity so premium taxes
should be held together with premiums and return premiums in a separate account.

Are the premium taxes collected by the surplus line producer received in a fiduciary capacity?

Yes, as given in AS 21.27 .360(b}. These statutes apply to the surplus lines producer because the licensing of surplus lines
brokers is included in Chapter 27 (21.27.790 - .820). AS 21.27.360 applies to a "licensee" and "licensee" is defined in AS
21.97.900(28} to be a person orfirm licensed under AS 21.27.

Please let me know if you have other questions.
Gloria G. Glover, CFE
Chief Financial Examiner
Alaska Division of Insurance

From: Tunis, Mary (OIC) (mailto:MaryT@oic.wa.gov)
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2011 3:02 PM
To: Glover, Gloria G (CEO)
Subject: Surplus Line Premiums and Premium Taxes received by licensed Surplus Lines Producers/Agencies

1



Hello Gloria Glover,

I need to confirm in writing the State of Alaska's requirements regarding surplus line premium taxes and the separate
premium account.

1. Where are the surplus line premium taxes received by the licensed surplus line producer required to be
maintained? [Are the premium taxes required to be maintained in the separate account until remitted
to the State of Alaska?

2. Are the premium taxes collected by the surplus line producer received in a fiduciary capacity?

Any relevant statutes or regulations you may be able to provide me would be very helpful.

Thanking you in .advance for your assistance,.

Mary E. Tunis, CPA, CFE
Financial Examiner
Consumer Protection Division - Licensing
Office of Insurance Commissioner
State of Washington
360-725-7109
MaryT@oic.wa.gov

2
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Source: My Sources> States Legal- U.S. > Alaska > Find Statutes. Regulations. Administrative Materials & Court Rules>
AK • Alaska Statutes· Selected Documents W

TOC: Alaska Statutes > L....uJ. > ARTICLE 1. LICENSING > Sec. 21.27.360. Reporting and accounting for premiums
and premium taxes and fees

Terms: fiduciary (Edit Search ISuggest Terms for My Search)

.f'Select for FOCUSTM or Delivery
r··]

Alaska Stat. §.21.27.360

"ALASKA STATUTES
. 20!0 byThe State of Alaska and Matth.ewBender & Company, Inc.

a member of the LexlsNexis Group.
All Rights Reserved."

*** Current through the 2010 Regular SeSSIon ofthe Twenty-Sixth State Legislature ***
*** Annotations current through opinions posted on Lexis.com as of July 15, 2010 ***

TITLE 21. INSURANCE
CHAPTER 27. PRODUCERS, AGENTS, ADMINISTRATORS, BROKERS, ADJUSTERS, AND

MANAGERS
ARTICLE 1. LICENSING

Go to the Alaska Code Archive Directory

Alaska Stat. § 21.27.360 (2010)

Sec. 21.27.360. Reporting and accounting for premiums and premium taxes and fees

(a) A licensee involved in the procuring or issuance of an insurance contract shall report to the
insurer the exact amount of consideration charged as a premium for the contract. The amount
charged shall be shown in the contract and in the records of the licensee.

(b) Except as provided under (h) of this section, all money, except that made payable to the
insurer, representing premium taxes and fees, premiums, or return premiums received by the
licensee shall be received by the licensee as a fiduciary and Shall be promptly accounted for
and paid to the person entitled to the money. Money held by the licensee as a fiduciary may
not be commingled or otherwise combined with other money not held by the licensee as a
fiduciary. .

(c) In addition to any other penalty provided by law, a person who the director has determined
has acted to divert or appropriate money held as a fiduciary for personal use shall be ordered
to make restitution and shall be subject to suspension or revocation under AS 21.27.420 -­
21.27.430 of all licenses and a civil penalty not to exceed $ 50,000 for each violation ...

(d) A licensee may only commingle premium taxes and fees, premiums, and return premiums
with additional money forthe purposeof advancing premiums, establishing reserves for the
payment of return premiums, or reserves for receiving an~ transmitting premium or return
premium money.

http://www.lexis.com/researchlretrieve?cc=&pushme=1&tmpFBSel=all&totaldocs~&tag... 12/29/2010
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(e) Money held by a licensee as a fiduciary may not be treated as a personal asset, as
collateral for a personal or business loan, or as a personal asset or income on a financial
statement, except that money held by the licensee as a fiduciary may be Included in a financial
statement of the licensee if clearly identified as assets held by the licensee as a fiduciary.

(f) This section does riot apply to an individual In-the firm who acts solely on behalf of a firm
that maintains compliance with this section.

(g) [Repealed, § 223 ch 67SLA 1992.]

(h) A licensee who transacts the business of insurance under a motor vehicle rental agency
limited producer license under AS 21.27.150(a)(4) is not required to hold money collected from
a person for'the purchase of rental motor vehicle Insurance coverage in a separate fiduciary
account if

(1) the fees for the rental insurance coverage are· itemized and are a part of a rental motor
vehicle transaction; and

(2) the insurer has given written consent that the money need not be segregated from other
money received by the licensee and the consent is signed by an officer of the insurer.

(I) The director of insUrance may adopt regulations to implement, define, and enforce this
section. -

HISTORY: (§ 1 ch 120 SLA 1966; am §§ 5, 6 ch 149 SLA 1984; am §§ 21, 22 ch 29 SLA 1987;
am §§ 36, 37 ch 51 SLA 1990; am §§ 78 -- 82, 223 ch 67 SLA 1992; am § 42 ch 62 SLA 1995;
am §§ 1,2 ch 77 SLA 2001; am §§ 34 -- 39 ch 81 SLA 2001; am § 22 ch 96 SLA 2004)

NOTES: REVISOR'S NOTES. --Subsection (i) was enacted as subsection (h) and relettered in
2001. -

CROSS REFERENCES. --For criminal provisions- relating to misapplication of property by a
fiduciary, see AS 11.46.620.

ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. --For fiduciary responsibilities of licensees, see 3 AAC 23, art. 4.
For bail bonds, see 3 AAC 23, art. 5.

LexisNexis 50 State Surveys, Legislation 8< Regulations

Insurance Agents & Adjusters

COLLATERAL REFERENCES. --liability of insurance agent, for exposure of insurer to liability
because of failure to fully disclose or assess risk or to report issuance of policy. 35 ALR3d 821.

USER NOTE: For more generally applicable notes; see notes under the first section of this article,
chapter or title.

Source: My Sources> Stales Legal- U.S. > Alaska> Find Statutes. Regulations. Administrative Materials & Court Rules>
AK • Alaska Statutes· Selected Documents lLl

TOC: Alaska Statutes> L..J. > ARTICLE 1. LICENSING> Sec. 21.27.360. Reporting and accounting for
premiums and premium taxes and fees

Terms: fiduciary (Edit Search ISuggest Terms for My Search)
View: Full

DatelTime: Wednesday, December 29,2010 - 6:18 PM EST

http://www.lexis.com/researchlretrieve?cc=&pushme=1&tmpFBSel=al1&totaldocs=&tag... 12129/2010
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Data Source: Balance Sheets of

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc.

Separate Account "In/Out of Trust" Calculation

Revised 12/28/10~lt:@~J~rvrg~p=6iila~loQg$frlie>tifAct6lint.)

3iP
Rev: Mary Tunis, Financial Examiner

Origina I: Ma rianne Azevedo, Investigator

A B C D E F G H I J
1 '2ml"j'~i~

I--
,........ __ """.. ',f.3{,';"

2 Sep-10 Aug-10 Jul-10 Jun-10 May-10 Apr-10 Mar-10 Feb-10 Jan-10

3 Trust Assets;
-

4 Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 120,140 145,420 133,377 181,898 147,639 87,375 32,919 40,073 I 27,493
-

5 Separat~ Premium Acct Checking #2

6 Separate Premium Acct Savings- .~

7 Separate Premium Acct Money Mkt

8 .. Accou-nts Receivable 96,588 150,845
. .. -

161,832 176,337
- .

156,184 122,56796,304 50,282 93,400

9 Less: Commissions 11.5% (11,108) (11,075) (17,347) (18,611) (20,279) (17,961) (14,095) (5,782) (10,741)
-- '--~

10 Less: Accounts over 90 days old

11 Total Trust Assets $ 205,620 $ 230,649 $ 266,875 $ 325,119 $ 303,697 $ 225,598 $ 141,391 $ 84,573 $ 110,152
I---- .. _.. --- --

12
I--- -_. .- ----

13
I-- ._-, ... -_ ... -_.

14 Less - Trust Liabilities:
.. ,- -- .'---

15 Payable to Surplus Lines taxes (123,115) (120,841) (120,151) (115,882) (112,950) (106,704) (103,217) (99,743) (109,441 )
----- .._-

16 Payable to Insurers (190,870) (227,863) (238,184) (302,736) (276,940) (202,505) (117,003) (48,974) (136,301)_.
17 Total Trust Liabilities (313,985) (348,704) (358_,335) (418,618) (389,890) (309,209) (220,220) (148,717) (245,742)

-- ------ - _.".

18
I-- ---- .__ .. - --- .- - --

19 NET DIFFERENCE $ (108,365) $ (118,055) $ (91,460) $ (93,499) $ (86,193) $ (83,611) $ (78,829) $ (64,144) $ (135,590)
I-- ----- -- _.

2D
--- -

21 Add: McDonald Investment Account 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Adjusted Black= "In Trust"; ,

I

22 Red= "Out of Trust" $ (108,365) $ (118,055) $ (91,460) $ (93,499) $ (86,193) $ (83,611) $ (78,829) $ (64,144) $ (135,590)

23
..- .... - --

24 Transfers from Trust to Operating Account:
--- -_. --

Identified as Premium Taxes

I ~~
[ExhilJit#10]:

..- . _ ..,-- --_ .

Other Transfers - 2009 & 2010 (21,847) (57,672) (29,140) (45,882) (30,540) (32,572) (29,284) 0 (35,793)
I-- - . ----_.- -

27 Total transfers from Trust $ (21,847) $ (57,672) $ (29,140) $ (45,882) $ (30,540) $ (32,572) $ (29,284) $ " $ (35,793)
I-- --

28
-" -- -

29 Transfers from Opera~~ng_toTrust: $ 19,156 $65,000 $51,000
--, .. - _._-

30



Data Source: Balance Sheets of

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc.

Separate Account "In/Out of Trust" Calculation

Revised 12/28/10: Includes McDonald Investment Account

Rev: Mary Tunis, Financial Examiner

Original: Marianne Azevedo, Investigator

A K I L I M I N I 0 p Q I R I S I T U V

1 eoJl11J!'1it
2 bec-09 Nov-09 Oct-09 Sep-09 Aug-09 Jul-09 Jun-09 May-09 Apr-09 Mar-09 Feb-09 Jan-09-
3 Trust Assets:_. -
4 Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 86,608 70,916 125,768 242,570 195,754 256,612 418,267 (13,697) (53,905) 162,001 286,527 226,256

2 Separate Premium Acct Checking #2

6 Separate Premium Acct Savings
,

7 Separate Premium Acet Money Mkt - - - ---- -- ,
_.

132.,948
-

- 8 Accounts Receivable 217,582 531,780 503,537 585,619 674,860 764,677 872,457 776,245 819,415 778,693 792,140

-..2.... Less: Commissions 11.5% (15,289) (25,022) (61,155) (57,907) (67,346) (77,609) (87,938) _!.!QO,333) . (89,268) (94,233) (89,550) (91,096)
--- - -. - --,~1----.. ,~ - f----'---

...!Q. Less: Accounts over 90 days old

~ Total Trust Assets $ 204,267 $ 263,476 ...L596,393 $ 688,200 $ 714,027 $ 853~ $ 1,095,006 $ 758,427 $ 633,072 $ 887,183 $ 975,670 c.! 927,3OQ..
-._-' ---- -----,--',-

12
- --- - - -'-- .-f-------,--.--'-f---,-

13- --- -- -- -- - f- - _._- ---

~ Less - Trust Liabilities:
'-- .'-- -- ---c--'-- '-1-'-- --, -----.

~
Payable to Surplus Lines taxes (113,091 ) (110,688) (115,366) (113,782) (104,641) (98,817) (96,581 ) (85,796),,~, 105) (195,943) (182,388~ (187,351)

-- ._- '-'-"-,---,.-- r--'---
Payable to In~urers

---_.
(254,860) (360,183) (703,344) (789,001) (808,582) (935,093) (1,149,004) (1,161,923) (1,084,783) (1,001,784) (1,059,798) (997,519)

17 Total Trust Liabilities (367,951) (470,871) (818,710) (902,783) (913,223) (1,033,~ __ (1 ,245,585) (1,247,719) (1,151,888) (1,197,727) (1,242,186) (1,184,870)- - --- -_. .,__ c f----"'--.--,-'---'- ----"-~,--,-
18

19
--- -- -- ._-,._-

$ (489,292)
f--- -~-- --- ---

NET DIFFERENCE $ (163,684) $ (207,395) $ (222,317) $ (214,583) $ (199,196) $ (180,047) $ (150,579) $ (518,816) $ (310,544) $ (266,516) $ (257,570)
- ---

~ '-- .. -'-_. -_. --'. '- -- '-- -------

21 Add: McDonald Investment Account 0 (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) (245)

,) Adjusted Black= "In Trust";

~ 22 Red= "Out of Trust" $ (163,684) $ (207,640) $ (222,562) $ (214,828) $ (199,441) $ (180,292) $ (150,824) $ (489,537) $ (519,061) $ (310,789) $ (266,761) $ (257,815)

23
24

---. . . .- -..__ . -- --' -- -- ------- .c----
...::...;.. Transfers from Trust to Operating Accou~

-- --,- --'-f---. --._--- '--'-----

Identified as Premium Taxes
2S [Exhibit #10]: (2,000)

(112,533)
_ (25,000) (10,000)

(140,844)
1--(25,000) _ ..J1..O...000)

(54,379)
--

(127,386) (147(183\ (79,397\~ Other Transfers - 2009 & 2010 (35,471) (75,697) (111,479) (140,501) (140,865) (102,259--._-- ._-'

27 Total transfers from Trust $ (54,379) $ (35,471) $ (77,697) $ (112,533) $ (136,479) $ (127,386) $ (150,501) $ (140,844) $ (165,865) $ (147,183) $ (79,397) $ (112,259)
- --- --

28- "-_. --,. -- ._- '--'.-~---.----._-'-- _.,---

29 Transfers from Operating to Trust: $72,000 $2,809 -'--1- -_. ..----._----- -_. ----

3D



Data Source: Balance Sheets of

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc.

Separate Account "In/Out of Trust" Calculation

Revised 12/28/10: Includes McDonald Investment Account

Rev: Mary Tunis, Financial Examiner

Original: Marianne Azevedo, Investigator

A W I X I y Z AA AB AC I AD AE AF I AG I AH

1 S',;\~1515!i:dl

2 12-08 11-08 10-08 9-08 8-08 7-08 6-08 I 5-08 4-08 3-08 2-08 1-08

3 Trust Assets:

4 Separate Premium Acct Checking #1 257,650 327,309 420,155 612,824 357,872 444,175 358,038 416,216 102,362 404,922 303,486 212,266

5 Separate Premium Accl Checking #2

6 Separate Premium Acct Savings

7 Separate Premium Acct Money Mkt
- -8- Accounts Receivable - - 707,472 - - 922,236 - -869,521- - - 961~492- - 1,292,503 -1,070;782 1,268,091 1,449,499 . - 1;295,130 1,265,904 1,233,660 1,277,523-

9 Less: Commissions l1.S% (81,359) (106,057) (99,995) (110,572) (148,638) (123,140) (145,830) (166,692) (148,940) (145,579) (141,871) (146,915)

10 Less: Accounts over 90 days old- ---

..!!. Total Trust Assets $ 883,763 $ 1,143,488 $ 1,189,681 $ 1,463,744 $ 1,501,737 $ 1,391,817 $ 1,480,299 $ 1,699,023 $ 1,248,552 $ 1,525,247 $ 1,395,275 $ 1,342,874
12 , ,

- -- ----

~
14 Less - Trust Liabilities:

-

15 Payabie to Surplus Lines taxes (177,161) (166,679) (161,222) (149,176) (136,101) (128,391) (119,657) (103,066) (84,497) (67,654) (46,785) ~5,587)
--

(1,597,217)16 Payable to Insurers (959,526) (1,219,551) (1,208,756) (1,539,185) (1,528,601) (1,534,262) (1,853,873) (1,856,314) (1,731,801) (1,815,205) (1,747,816)

J2. Total Trust Liabilities (1,136,687) (1,386,230) (1,369,978) (1 ,688,361) (1,664,702) (1,662,653) (1,973,530) (1,959,380)' (1,816,298) (1,882,859) (1,644,002) (2,053,403)
----

18
- ----

19 NET DIFFERENCE $ (252,924) $ (242,742) $ (180,297) $ (224,617) $ (162,965) $ (270,836) $ (493,231 ) $ (260,357) $ (567,746) $ (357,612) $ (248,727) $ (710,529)

20

21 Add: McDonald Investment Account (245) (245) (245) (245) (245) 202,710 452,298 201,833 501,457 300,998 200,708 399,603

,,,,.1~~,;,, ,

vi";'?
Adjusted Black= "In Trust"; ,

22 Red= "Out of Trust" $ (253,169) $ (242,987) $ (180,542) $ (224,862) $ (163,209) $ (68,126) $ (40,933) $ (58,524) $ (66,289) $ (56,614) $ (48,019) $ (310,926)

~
,

Transfers from Trust to Operating Account:
-

24
- --

Identified as Premium Taxes
25 [Exhibit #1 0]: (40,000) (100,000) (10,000) __(25,000)
26 Other Transfers - 2009 & 2010

- --

27 Total transfers from Trust $ - $ (40,000) $ - $ (100,000) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (10,000) $ - $ (25,000)

~ - - -- --

29 Transfers from Operating to!rust:
- - - - -- --

30
---- ---,-- -- - ----

31



-+--- --+--------+-- -- -

separate Account "In/Out of Trust" Calculation Rev: Mary Tunis, Financial Examiner

Revised 12/28/10: Includes McDonald Investment Account Original: Marianne Azevedo, Investigator

AI AJ AK AL AM AN AD AP AQ AR AS AT

4lfI20'OI[~

12-07 11-07 10-07 9-07 8-07 7-07 6-07 5-07 4-07 3-07 2-07 1-07

I

305,509 147,137 331,185 150,878 159,894 538,594
..
260,154 486,519 423,532 55,251 (46,721) 226,773

-------1---- -1--- .~+-----.----+------1- ---- .-f---- ._--+--

4 Separate Premium Acct Checking #1

2
1

A

3 Trust Assets:

Data Source: Balance Sheets of

Anchor Bay Insurance Managers Inc.

5 Separate Prem'lum Acct Checking #2
I--I-'--.--·----------"------I-----+_--,-_+----t------I~---·___+----+_---_+-----1----+------+----+------

6 Separate Premium Acct Savings

7 Separate Premium Acct Money Mkt
J----l---'----------"-----+--·----I~----·-+__---_+_----___t-·----I-----,___j----~___t--____c_:::_::=::t::"~~===I==__=_'~-=.. =t=--~-~===_c_j~~.~.- ..~-.~
-8 AccountsReceivable ---- --- - 1;469,069- -1;376,075 ---1;131;147 -1,21~,782----1,473,132 1,1'51",279 1,283,434- 1,174,716 1,687,110- 1,804,075 1,572,889 1,524,288

, -1------'-------'--+-----'--'------
~ _Less: Commissions 11.50%____ (168,943) (158,249) (130,082) (139,700) (169,410) (132,397) _ (147,595) (146,5_92--'-4)__(194,018) (207,469) (180,882--'-)+----'(~17~5_',2__93__'_)

10 Less: Accounts over 90 days old
- -- . - --'------f------f-----f----+-----+----+-----f-,------..........!,--------+-----+----/---c----_+------1
-.!!.._T_o!.a.1 Trust Ass_9_ts $1,605,635 $1,364,963 $1,332,250 $1,225,960. $1,463,616 $1,557,476 $1,395,993 $1,614,643_ $1,916,624 '. $1,651,857 $ 1,345,286 $1,575,7~

12
1----- --- ---

13 -+--- --+--.--

----I ---- -+------14 Less - Trust Liabilities:- ---

15 Payable to Surplus Lines taxes (295,820) (281,056) (271,152) (249,343) (230,721) (207,753) (192,290). _ (168,818) (149,521) (132,263) (102,8~3) (404,711)
I---.. .. - ...---- ---+-----'-- ---'-f-----'-

16 Payable to Insurers (1,810,126) (1,994,371) (1,714,234) (1,938,627) (1,998,503) (1,869,815) (1,956,611) (1,931,681) (2,649,781) (2,364,934) (2,339,298) (2,033,413)
'-- I---'~--=---'+-~--'----~---'---'--------'---'+_-'----'--.:....-__'_t_~..:......----'------'-+_~----'-~--'---'--'----_'_t----'---'-----.:....----'_+_~--'---_+--'--'----~---:..I__-'---'--:...-__'_t_--'--'----'----____'_I

...!Z. _T_o_taJ Trust Liabilities (2,105,946) (2,275,4_27---'-)+--(~1_'9_85,386) (2, 187,970) (2,229,224) (2,077,568) (2, t~8,901) (2,100,499) (2,799,302) (2,497,_19_7'-1-)~(?,442, 191) _ (2,438,12_4,-

18
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$ (500,311) $ (910,464) $ (653,136) $ (962,010) $ (765,608) $ (520,092) $ (752,908) $ (485,856) $ (882,678) $ (845,340) $ (1,096,905) $ (862,356)

-1----- --+----------f-- ---

19 NET DIFFERENCE
1---- ------~

20

21 Add: McDonald Investment Account 199,603 697,161 495,501 743,381 641,639 489,436 716,985 463,022 876,721 920,858 1,118,170 968,170

$ (300,708) $ (213,303) $ (157,635) $ (218,629) $ (123,969) $ (30,656) $ (35,923) $ (22,834) $ (5,957) $ 75,518 $ 21,265 $ 105,814

(25,000)

$ (25,000)$$$

---' .f----. -------'----------+-- ---

$

..._-+-- ---1--- ----+-----+---.--..

$

(65,000-'-)1--- ._-+-_

(65,000) $$$(75,000) $

(75,000) _----'-(4----'0-'--=-,00..0.,2)'+--__ --f---­

(40,000) $$

23
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24 Transfers from Trust to Operating Account:.:....:__

Identified as Premium Taxes
25 [Exhibit #1 OJ:
26 Other Tran---'sf-;-e-rs----::2=009:-:&::-c2=0c-;-10::0- .- --+-­

.--r--:----,------:-f---:---:'--.,..-t---,,-----+~---+--:------:+...,-----f___:_----+-,_----'-__;__---+__:__---_+__;__---+___:_____:--.,-I
27 Total transfers from Trust

1---
28

~ Transfers from Operating to Trust: -+-_
30
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